
ANDERSON 
COUNTY 
SOUTH CAROLI NA 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman 

Council District 5 

Brett Sanders 
Vice Chairman 

Council District 4 

Craig Wooten 
Council District 1 

Gracie S. Floyd 
Council District 2 

Ray Graham 
Cou neil District 3 

Jimmy Davis 
Council Distr ict 6 

M. Cindy Wilson 
Co uncil District 7 

Lacey A Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

Rusty Burns 
County Administ rator 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY 

Friday, November 20, 2020 at 12:00pm 
Anderson County Civic Center 

3027 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Ms. M. Cindy Wilson 

Agenda Matters only 3. CITIZENS COMMENTS: 
4. EMERGENCY ORDINANCE: 

a. 2020-049: An ordinance to provide for a temporary suspension of the regular 
Anderson County Council operating rules to provide for attendance and voting by 
electronic means during the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

Mr. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes) 
5. RESOLUTIONS: 

a. R2020-033 : A resolution calling upon Anderson County residents to do their part to 
help control the spread of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus. 

Mr. Craig Wooten (allotted 5 minutes) 
6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: 

a.2020-024: An ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +/- 10.01 acres from C-2 
(Highway Commercial) to R-M1 (Mixed Residential) on Highway 81 Nand 227,231 
and 235 Scenic Road, Anderson. TMS # 146-00-08-003; 146-00-08-027; 146-00-08-028 
and 146-00-08-029. (District 4) Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

b. 2020-025: An ordinance authorizing (1) pursuant to Chapter 44 ofTitle 12, South 
Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended, the execution and delivery of a Fee 
Agreement by and between Anderson County, South Carolina and BMW 
Manufacturing CO, LLC; and (2) other matters relating thereto. 
PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

c. 2020-029: An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of and amended and 
reinstated Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreements by and between Anderson County, South 
Carolina and COl Anderson Industrial, LLC with respect to certain economic 
development property in the County, whereby such property will be subject to certain 
payments in Lieu of Taxes, including the provision of certain Special Revenue Credits; 
and other matters related there to. PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

d . 2020-030: An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of an amendment to a 
Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement between Anderson County, South 
Carolina, Euwe Eugen Wexler US Plastics INC. (formerly identified by the County as 
Project Ammo), and Euwe Eugen Wexler US Real Estate INC. to provide for an 
extension of the investment period therein and grant of additional Special Source 
Revenue Credits; authorizing the execution and delivery of a purchase and sale 
agreement to provide for the transfer of certain real property located in the Alliance 
Industrial Park from the County to Project Ammo; approving the inclusion of the 
project in a Multi-County Business and Industrial Park; and other matters related 
thereto. (Project Ammo) PUBLIC HEARING-NO TIME LIMITS 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING: 

a. 2020-015: An ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +/- 141.81 acres from 1-2 
(Industrial Park District) to R-8 (Single Family Residential) at Liberty Highway, 
Anderson. TMS# 119-00-17-026. (District 4) Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

b. 2020-034: An ordinance to Amend Section 38-118 (f) of the Anderson County Code of 
Ordinances, so as to clarify Traffic Impact Study Requirements. 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

Post Office Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622 
www.andersoncountysc.org I (864) 260·4000 



Page Two 
Anderson County Council Agenda for November 20, 2020 

c. 2020-037: An ordinance to approve a Sublease Agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina and 
Lake Hartwell Development Group, LLC for the Asbury Park Site on Lake Hartwell located at the end of 
Asbury Park Road. Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

d. 2020-038: An ordinance (1) authorizing pursuant to Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended, the execution and delivery of a Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement, 
by and between Anderson County, South Carolina and a Company identified by the County as Project 
Underwood, as Sponsor and one or more existing or to-be-formed or acquired Subsidiaries, or affiliated or 
related Entities and certain Sponsor Mfiliates, to provide for a Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes 
Incentive; (2) authorizing pursuant to Title 4, Chapters 1 and 29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 
1976, as amended, the grant of certain Special Source Revenue Credits to Project Underwood; and (3) 
other related matters. (Project Underwood) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

e. 2020-042: An ordinance to develop a jointly owned and operated Industrial/Business Park in conjunction 
with Greenville County, such Industrial/Business Park to be geographically located in Greenville County 
and established pursuant to Sec. 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended; to 
provide for a written Agreement with Greenville County to provide for the expenses of the Park, the 
Percentage of Revenue Application, and the Distribution of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxation. 
(Project Lighthouse) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

f. 2020-043: An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement by and 
between Anderson County, South Carolina and a Company or Companies known to the County at this time as 
Project Malibu with respect to certain Economic Development Property in the County, whereby such property 
will be subject to certain payments in Lieu of Taxes, including the provision of certain Special Source Credits. 
(Project Malibu) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

g. 2020-044: An ordinance authorizing (1) the execution of an Infrastructure Credit Agreement by and between 
Anderson County, South Carolina and Friendship SC Preservation, L.P. to provide for Infrastructure Credits 
with respect to a Rehabilitation Project located at 719 Mauldin Street, Anderson, SC, (2) authorizing the 
execution of a Multi-County Park Agreement with Greenville County to include such property, (3) 
authorizing the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Anderson, and (4) other 
matters related thereto. Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

h. 2020-046: An ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the Park. (Project Spruce) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
8. ORDINANCE FIRST READING: 

a. 2020-048: An ordinance authorizing pursuant to Chapter 44 of Title 12 and Chapter 1 of Title 4, South 
Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended, the execution and delivery of an amendment to a Fee in Lieu of 
Tax and Incentive Agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina, and Project Line Five. 
(Project Line Five) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

9. RESOLUTIONS: 
a. R2020-028: A resolution expressing intent to cease County maintenance on and to authorize County consent 

to Judicial abandonment and closure of Supreme Industrial Drive as C-05-0 108. 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

b. R2020-034: A resolution consenting to the assignment of the rights of JB Ferguson Properties, LLC and 
Estate Planning Consultants, INC. (Collectively "Company") in the Infrastructure Credit Agreement of 
January 1, 2018 , by and among Anderson County, South Carolina and the City of Anderson, South Carolina, 
and the Company; and other matters related thereto. Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 



Page Three 
Anderson County Council Agenda for November 20, 2020 

10. TRANSFERS: 

11. REPORT LAND USE AD-HOC COMMITTEE HELD ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 13,2020: 
3. Proposals 
4. Discussion 
5. Questions 
6. Status of Development Retention Ponds 

12. APPOINTMENTS: 

13. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL: 
Town of Pelzer- District 7 
Tackling the Street - All Districts 

14. ADMINISTRATORS REPORT:t 
a. Building and Codes Report 
b. Special Projects 
c. Paving 
d. Transfers 
e. Sheriff' s Report 

15. CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

16. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL: 

17. ADJOURNMENT: 

Mr. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes) 

(allotted 14 minutes) 

Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a modification of policies 
or procedures in order to participate in this program, service or activity please contact the office of the 
program, service or activity as soon as possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. 

For assistance please contact the Clerk to Council at 864-260-1036. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-049 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR A TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE 
REGULAR ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL OPERATING RULES TO PROVIDE FOR 
ATTENDANCE AND VOTING BY ELECTRONIC MEANS DURING THE COVID-19 
PANDEMIC; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of South Carolina declared a 
State of emergency in South Carolina because of the COVID-19 public health emergency; 

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of South Carolina has subsequently issued various 
Executive Orders designed to address the significant public health, economic, and other impacts 
associated with the COVID-19 pandemic; 

WHEREAS, certain provisions of the Governor' s Executive Orders have been extended 
by subsequently issued Orders related to the COVID-19 pandemic; 

WHEREAS, federal and state guidance to mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 virus 
recommend that in-person events should limit the number of persons in attendance and be 
conducted within distancing guidelines; 

WHEREAS, while it is imperative that local governments continue to operate during state 
of emergency in a fashion to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus and take steps to protect 
the health and safety of the public and officials and staff of local government; and 

WHEREAS, Anderson County Council has authority under South Carolina Code of Laws, 
Section 4-9-130 and Section 2-38 (c)(2) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South 
Carolina to adopt emergency ordinances enacted by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of 
the members of Council present and effective immediately upon enactment without regard to any 
reading, public hearing, publication requirements, or public notice requirements, to meet public 
emergencies affecting life, health, safety or the property of the people. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. County Council Members are permitted to attend County Council meetings and all 
County Council Committee meetings electronically (telephonically, or by video, or by other virtual 
means) in accordance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act and vote on matters 
before the body. An appearance electronically shall also count toward a quorum for purposes of 
conducting business before the body. 

2. County Council further authorize boards and commissions which County Council 
has the legal responsibility to either fill or make recommendations to fill to meet electronically 



(telephonically, or by video , or by other virtual means) in accordance with the South Carolina 
Freedom of Information Act and vote on matters before those bodies. 

3. During the period of effectiveness of this Emergency Ordinance, any County 
Council rules, ordinances, resolutions, or policies which conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be suspended by this Ordinance. 

4. This Ordinance shall be effective upon a single reading and two-thirds vote of 
County Council and shall expire sixty-one days after its effective date unless sooner terminated by 
action of the Anderson County Council. 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this 20th day of November, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



RESOLUTION #R2020-033 

A RESOLUTION CALLING UPON ANDERSON COUNTY RESIDENTS TO DO THEIR PART TO HELP 
CONTROL THE SPREAD OF THE 2019 NOVEL CORONA VIRUS, AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, the 2019 Novel Coronavirus ("COVID-19") is a respiratory disease that can result in 
serious illness or death by the SARS-CoV-2 virus, which is a new strain of coronavirus previously 
unidentified in humans and which can spread from person to person; 

WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (the "CDC") has warned of the high 
public health threat posed by COVID-19 globally and in the United States; 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared that the COVID-19 
outbreak in the United States constitutes a national emergency, which began on March 1, 2020; 

WHEREAS, also on March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of South Carolina (the "State") 
issued Executive Order 2020-08, declaring a State of Emergency based on a determination that 
the COVID-19 poses an actual or imminent public health emergency for the State; 

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State has subsequently declared a continued State of Emergency 
in Executive Orders 2020-15 (March 28), 2020-23 (April 12), 2020-29 (April 27), 2020-35 (May 
12), 2020-38 (May 27), and 2020-40 (June 11); 

WHEREAS, as of November 16, 2020, the South Carolina Department of Health and 
Environmental Control ("DHEC") is reporting that there have been 7,129 confirmed COVID-19 
cases and 198 confirmed COVID-19 deaths in the County since the pandemic began; 

WHEREAS, Anderson County is currently experiencing a dramatic increase in the number of 
identified new COVID-19 cases, with an 7-day moving average of 72 new confirmed cases 
reported by DHEC at as of November 16, 2020, 

WHEREAS, if COVID-19 cases continue to increase in the region, the demand for medical, 
pharmaceutical, personal, and general cleaning supplies may overwhelm sources of supply; the 
private and public sector work force may be negatively impacted by absenteeism; and the 
demand for medical facilities may exceed locally available resources; 

WHEREAS, health authorities, including the CDC, the Surgeon General of the United States, and 
DHEC have made several recommendations regarding steps that each individual can take to 
control the spread of COVID-19; 

WHEREAS, we recognize and respect the value our citizens place in the concept of individual 
liberty; 



WHEREAS, we also recognize and respect the tremendous pain and loss that COVID-19 has 
caused for many families and businesses; 

WHEREAS, we humbly, and respectfully, ask for the public's assistance in this time of great need. 

NOW, THEREFORE, NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved by the Anderson County Council: 

1) That the COVID-19 pandemic is not a hoax or a matter of small concern, but a severe and 

serious public health emergency that will continue to wreak havoc upon the health of our citizens 

and the state of our local economy so long as it continues its unabated transmission among us; 

2) That we ask each and every one of our citizens to be respectful of the health and well

being of their neighbors, including those they may not know, by following the guidelines and best 

practices suggested by DHEC, such as: 

• Practice social distancing by avoiding crowded gatherings and staying at least six feet from 

others; 

• Wear a cloth mask in public; 

• Wash your hands often with soap and water for at least 20 seconds, especially after you 
have been in a public place, or after blowing your nose, coughing, or sneezing; 

• Cover your cough and sneezes with a tissue or use the inside of your elbow; 

• Stay home if you're sick and avoid close contact with people who are sick; 

• Clean AND disinfect frequently touched surfaces daily; 

3) That, with regard to retail establishments and other congregate areas, it is strongly 

recommended and encouraged by the Anderson County Council: 

• Face coverings should be worn by all customers while inside the enclosed area of any 
retail establishment; 

• Retail establishments should require staff to wear face coverings while working in raeas 

open to the public and areas in which interactions where social distancing of at least six 
feet cannot be observed; 

• Food service establishments should require staff who interact with customers to wear 
face coverings. 

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 20111 day ofNovember 2020. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn 
District 5 
ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Craig W oaten 
District 1 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 



Ordinance #2020-024 
Page 1 of 3 

Highway 81 Nand 227, 231, and 235 Scenic Road 

Ordinance #2020-024 

An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 10.01 acres from C-2 (Highway 
Commercial) to R-M1 (Mixed Residential) on a parcel of land, identified as 
Highway 81 Nand 227, 231 and 235 Scenic Road in the Town Creek Precinct 
shown in Deed Book 11217 page 00015. The parcel is further identified as TMS 
#146-00-08-003; 146-00-08-027; 146-00-08-028 and 146-00-08-029. 

Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its County 
Council (the "County Council") has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the "Ordinance") , 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the "Map"); 
and, 

Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 

Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from C-2 to R-M 1 for+/- 10.01 acres of TMS # 146-00-08-003; 146-00-08-
027; 146-00-08-028 and 146-00-08-029 described above; and, 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on September 8, 2020, during which it reviewed the proposed 
rezoning from to C-2 to R-M 1 +/- 10.01 acres of TMS # 146-00-08-003; 146-00-08-027; 
146-00-08-028 and 146-00-08-029 described above; and, 

Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on October 6, 2020, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map: 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Ordinance #2020-024 
Page 2 of 3 

Highway 81 N and 227, 231, and 235 Scenic Road 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to R-M 1 +/- 10.01 acres of 
TMS # 146-00-08-003; 146-00-08-027; 146-00-08-028 and 146-00-08-029 
described above. 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which are hereby deemed separable. 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 
after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council. 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



ATTEST: Ordinance 2020-024 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading : October 6, 2020 

Ordinance #2020-024 
Page 3 of 3 

Highway 81 N and 227, 231 , and 235 Scenic Road 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

2 nd Reading: November 12, 2020 

3 rd Reading: November 20, 2020 

Public Hearing: October 6, 2020 



- - - ----4:;~ -------

a 
~ 

----~=r=~~~ ~~,...._,..~-;;· ~-
~,_,....,...,...,,.~-,_.~ ... ~·-........ ·~ 

~:MtfltJJ----··-·- ·-1---l---- -------.. -·~-- .. -· -·::--: .. 
..,;;::==------~---- ·-

~,::.~,~~....:::r...::..~;.~~~~: 
-~~,_,_.,....,,_,,._, .. -_......... .... ~--..,.......,-:,::r:::.;;;:::".Q;,..~~. ...,._..... . .. , ..... ,.,.,., .• ,..,..,....,~..,..at"~....,. ... ,.__.WI* 

~~ 

-...... _.., __ 

... 
.:~lfB· 



Rezoning Request 
Highway 81 N and Scenic Rd. 
C-2 to R-M1 0 250 500 1,000 Feet 



R-20 

Rezoning Request 
Highway 81 N and Scenic Rd. 
C-2 to R-M1 

1-1 

0 500 1,000 2,000 Feet 



, .... - ..... n1ng quest 
Highway 81 N and Scenic Rd. 
C-2 to R-M1 

0 500 1,000 2,000 Feet 







ORDINANCE NO. 2020-025 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (!)PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 44 OF TITLE 12, 
SOUTH CAROLINA CODE OF LAWS, 1976, AS AMENDED, THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A FEE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA AND BMW MANUFACTURING CO., LLC; AND (2) OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and 
through its County Council (the "Council"), is authorized by Title 12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws 
of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "PILOT Act"): (i) to enter into a fee agreement with 
companies meeting the requirements of such PILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such 
companies as economic development property, to induce such companies to locate in the State of 
South Carolina (the "State") and to encourage companies now located in the State to expand their 
investments and thus make use of and employ manpower and other resources of the State; and (ii) 
to covenant with such companies to accept certain fee-in-lieu of ad valorem tax ("PILOT") 
payments with respect to a project; 

WHEREAS, the County has, by a Resolution adopted on October 6, 2020, taken 
official action to identify the Project (as defined below) for purposes of the applicable fee-in-lieu 
of taxes statute and otherwise; 

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a fee agreement with BMW 
Manufacturing Co., LLC, a Delaware limited liability company authorized to transact business in 
the State (the "Company"), which shall provide, under certain conditions, for payments of fees-in
lieu of taxes for a project qualifying under the provisions of the PILOT Act (the "Fee Agreement"); 

WHEREAS, the County and the Company desire to enter into the Fee Agreement 
as defined in the PILOT Act concerning the Company's investment in certain machinery, 
equipment and other personal property for the purpose of assembling or manufacturing 
automobiles and/or motorcycles and/or parts thereof and all activities relating thereto (the 
"Project"); 

WHEREAS, on the basis of the information supplied to the County by the 
Company, the Project is expected to provide significant economic benefits to the County and 
surrounding areas; 

WHEREAS, in order to induce the Company to locate the Project in the County, 
the County has determined to offer the Company a PILOT arrangement with respect to the Project 
and otherwise make available to the Company the benefits intended by the PILOT Act; 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of such incentives are more fully described 
in the form of the Fee Agreement between the County and the Company prepared and presented 
to this meeting, which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 



WHEREAS, it appears that the Fee Agreement referred to above, which is now 
before this meeting, is in appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and 
delivered by the County for the purposes intended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council in meeting duly 
assembled as follows: 

Section 1. Pursuant to the FILOT Act and particularly Section 12-44-40(H), and 
based solely on information supplied to the County by the Company, the Council has made and 
hereby makes the following findings : 

(a) The Project will subserve the purposes of the FILOT Act; 

(b) It is anticipated that the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment and other public benefits not otherwise adequately 
provided locally; 

(c) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and 
public purposes; 

(d) The benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public; 
and 

(e) Neither the Project nor any documents or agreements entered into by the County 
in connection therewith give rise to or will give rise to any pecuniary liability of the County or 
incorporated municipality or to any charge against their general credit or taxing power. 

Section 2. In order to promote industry, develop trade and utilize the manpower, 
agricultural products and natural resources of the State, the form, terms and provisions of the Fee 
Agreement which is before this meeting and filed with the County Administrator are hereby 
approved and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference as if the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. In the name of and 
on behalf of the County, the Chairman of Council is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to 
execute, acknowledge and deliver the Fee Agreement to the Company and the Clerk to Council is 
hereby authorized and directed to attest the same. 

Section 3. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this 
meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall not be materially adverse to the 
County and as shall be approved by the official or officials of the County executing the same, upon 
advice of counsel, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any 
and all changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 4. Each of the Chairman of Council and the County Administrator, for and 
on behalf of the County, is hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement, the performance of all 

Page 2 of4 Ordinance 2020-025 
4846-4362-0038 v.2 



obligations of the County under and pursuant to the Fee Agreement, and the carrying out of the 
transactions contemplated thereby and by this Ordinance. 

Section 5. The consummation of all transactions contemplated by the Fee 
Agreement is hereby approved. 

Section 6. This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of South Carolina. 

Section 7. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and 
if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 8. All orders, resolutions, ordinances and parts thereof in conflict herewith 
are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full 
force from and after its passage and approval. 

Page 3 of4 Ordinance 2020-025 
4846-4362-0038 v.2 



ENACTED this 20th day ofNovember, 2020. 

ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Attorney 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

October 6, 2020 
November 12, 2020 
November 20, 2020 
November 20, 2020 

Page 4 of4 Ordinance 2020-025 
4846-4362-0038 v.2 



FEE AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

AND 

BMW MANUFACTURING CO., LLC 

DATED AS OF 

NOVEMBER 20, 2020 



SECTION 11 .1. Notices .... ... .............................. ........................... ..... .... ....... ........ ....... .... .... . 15 
SECTION 11.2. Binding Effect.. ... ....... .. .... ... .. .... .... ...... ..... ...... .... .... .... ........... ....... ...... ...... ... 16 
SECTION 11.3. Invalidity and Severability ..... .... .................... ........ ............ ...... ....... ........ .... 16 
SECTION 11.4. Payments Due on Saturday, Sunday and Holidays ..... .. ....... ................... ... . 16 
SECTION 11 .5. Fiscal Year; Property Tax Year .... .. .. ..... ........ ........ ...... ... ...... ... ... ................ 16 
SECTION 11.6. Amendments, Changes and Modifications ....... ... ... .. ......... ... .. ... .... ........ ..... 16 
SECTION 11 .7. Execution of Counterparts ... .. ........ ... ..... ............... ....... ................ .. ........ ..... 16 
SECTION 11 .8. No Warranties by the County ..... ... ....... .......... ...... ...................................... 17 
SECTION 11.9. Applicable Law .......... ... ..... ...... ... ............ .......... ........ ....... ........ ........ ........... 17 
SECTION 11.1 0. Entire Understanding .. .... ..... ......... ..... .... .......... .............. ........ ....... .. .......... 17 
SECTION 11 .11 . Law Governing Construction of Agreement ....... .... .................. .... ..... ...... 17 
SECTION 11 .12. Headings .. ............. ....... .................... .... .... .... ................... .... ... ................... 17 
SECTION 11.13 . Further Assurance ................................ ..... ... ... .. ............. ........... ...... ......... . 17 
SECTION 11.14. No Liability of County' s Personne1.. ... ........ ........ ......... ...... ............. ...... ... 17 
SECTION 11.15. Execution Disclaimer. ......................................................... ..... ..... ...... ...... 18 

EXHIBIT A Description of Sites 

11 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9142 v.3 



ARTICLE I 

RECAPITULATION AND DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.1. Statutorily Required Recapitulation. Pursuant to Section 12-44-55(B) of 
the Act, the County and the Company agree to waive the recapitulation requirements of Section 
12-44-55 of the Act to the extent that and so long as the Company timely provides the County with 
copies of all filings required by the Act to be made by the Company with regard to the Project. If 
the Company should be required to retroactively comply with the recapitulation requirements of 
Section 12-44-55 of the Act, then the County agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to waive all 
penalties of the County for the Company' s noncompliance. 

SECTION 1.2. Rules of Construction; use of Defined Terms. Unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise, in this Fee Agreement words and terms defined in Section 1.3 hereof are used 
with the meanings ascribed thereto. The definition of any document shall include any amendments 
to that document, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

SECTION 1.3. Definitions. 

"Act" means Title 12 Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as in effect on 
the date hereof, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

"Administration Expenses" shall mean the reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs 
incurred by the County, total not to exceed $5,000, in connection with the review of the Documents 
and all resolutions, ordinances and other documents relating thereto. 

"Affiliate" means any entity, now existing or to be formed in the future, which controls, 
is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Company. 

"Chair" means the Chair of County Council (or the person or persons authorized to 
perform the duties thereof in the absence of the Chair). 

"Commencement Date" means the last day of the property tax year when Project property 
is first placed in service, except that this date must not be later than the last day of the property tax 
year which is three years from the year in which the County and the Company have entered into 
this Fee Agreement. 

"Company" means BMW Manufacturing Co., LLC, a limited liability company duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Delaware and authorized to transact business in South 
Carolina, and its successors and assigns. 

"County Council" means the County Council of the County. 

"County" means Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, and its successors and assigns. 

2 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9 142 v.3 



and with such schedules as the DOR may provide in connection with projects subject to the Act 
(as such filing may be amended or supplemented from time to time). 

"Replacement Property" means any property acquired or constructed by the Company 
after the Investment Period as a replacement for any property theretofore forming a part of the 
Project and disposed of, or deemed disposed of, as provided in Section 5.2 hereof. 

"Sites" means sites at which Project property is located in the County as described in 
Exhibit A and shall include future sites in the County, which shall be noted on schedules or 
supplements to Exhibit A; provided, that any requirement that the Company provide such 
schedules or supplements with respect to future sites may be satisfied by the Company's filing 
with DOR of an SCDOR PT -300 or such comparable forms as DOR may provide in connection 
with projects subject to the Act. 

"Stage" in respect of the Project shall mean the year within which Equipment, if any, is 
placed in service during each year of the Investment Period. 

"State" means the State of South Carolina. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee 
Agreement shall be deemed to include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and 
modifications to such agreement or document. 

ARTICLE II 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY; INDUCEMENT 

SECTION 2.1 Limitation of Liability. Anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding, any obligation which the County may incur as a result of the transactions 
described in the Documents or with respect to the Project does not and shall never constitute an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory 
limitation and shall never create a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge upon its general 
credit or against its taxing powers. 

SECTION 2.2. Inducement. The County and the Company acknowledge that pursuant 
to the Act, upon execution of this Fee Agreement, and subject to the Act and the terms and 
conditions contained herein, the Project will be subject to Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes and will not 
be subject to ad valorem property taxation in the State, and that this factor, among others, has 
induced the Company to enter into this Fee Agreement. 

4 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9142 v. 3 



with applicable laws, each item of real and tangible personal property comprising the Project shall 
be considered economic development property under the Act. 

SECTION 3.2. Covenants by the County. The County covenants with the Company as 
follows: 

(a) The County agrees to do all things deemed by the County, in its reasonable 
discretion, reasonably necessary and proper as requested by the Company in writing to effectuate 
the intent of the Documents and the transactions contemplated by the Documents including, but 
not limited to, the execution, delivery and performance of its obligations in the Documents and in 
accordance with the Act, all for the purposes of promoting industrial development, developing 
trade, and utilizing and employing the manpower and natural resources of the County and the State. 

(b) To the extent permitted by law, the Company may request of the County an 
extension of the Investment Period, for investments in excess of the statutory minimum(s), in 
accordance with and up to the limits permitted under Section 12-44-30(13) of the Act. The grant 
of any such extension by the County may be approved by a resolution of County Council. Upon 
the granting of any such extension the County agrees to, at the Company's expense, cooperate with 
the Company in assisting the Company to file with the DOR a copy of such extension within 30 
days of the date of execution thereof by the County. 

SECTION 3.3. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company makes 
the following representations and warranties to the County: 

(a) The Company is a limited liability company validly existing and in good standing 
under the laws of Delaware and is authorized to transact business in the State of South Carolina. 
The Company is authorized and empowered to execute and deliver the Documents to which it is a 
party and to fulfill its obligations described in the Documents. The Company' s fiscal year end is 
December 31. The Company will notify the County if the Company changes its fiscal year. 

(b) The Project will consist of new or additional investments in machinery, equipment 
and/or other personal property used for the purpose of assembling or manufacturing automobiles 
and/or motorcycles and/or parts thereof, and activities related thereto . 

(c) Neither the execution and delivery of the Documents to which the Company is a 
party, nor the consummation and performance of the transactions described in the Documents 
violate, conflict with, or will , to its best knowledge, result in a material breach of any of the 
material terms, conditions or provisions of any agreement, restriction, law, rule, order or regulation 
to which the Company is now a party or by which it is bound. 

(d) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity 
before or by any judicial or administrative court or agency, public board or body, pending or 
threatened, against or affecting the Company wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding 

6 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9142 v.3 



County Auditor, the Anderson County Assessor and DOR within thirty (30) days after the date of 
execution and delivery hereof. 

ARTICLE V 

PAYMENTS-IN-LIEU-OF-TAXES; DISPOSITION OF PAYMENTS-IN-LIEU-OF
TAXES 

SECTION 5.1. Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes. The parties acknowledge that under Article 
X, Section 3 of the South Carolina Constitution, the Project is exempt from ad valorem property 
taxes. However, the Company shall be required to make the Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes with 
respect to the Project as provided in this Section 5.1. In accordance with the Act, and unless this 
Fee Agreement is sooner terminated, the Company shall make annual Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes 
with respect to the Project, said payments being due and payable at the times and places, and in 
the same manner and subject to the same penalty assessments as prescribed by the County or DOR 
for ad valorem taxes. Such amounts shall be calculated and payable as follows : 

(a) The Company has agreed and hereby agrees to make annual Payments-in-Lieu-of-
Taxes with respect to the Project in an amount equal to the property taxes that would be due with 
respect to such property, if it were taxable, but using (i) an assessment ratio of 6.0%; (ii) a millage 
rate which is the lower of (A) the cumulative property tax millage rate levied on behalf of all taxing 
entities within which the Project is located on June 30 of the year preceding the calendar year in 
which this Fee Agreement is executed or (B) the cumulative property tax millage rate levied on 
behalf of all taxing entities within which the Project is located on June 30 of the calendar year in 
which this Fee Agreement is executed; and (iii) a fair market value estimate determined by the 
DOR for personal property, using the original income tax basis for South Carolina income tax 
purposes less depreciation allowable for property tax purposes, except that the Company is not 
entitled to extraordinary obsolescence. The understanding of the Company and the County is that 
the millage rates applicable to the Sites listed on Exhibit A are as set forth on Exhibit A. 

(b) The Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes shall be made on the basis that the Project 
property, if it were otherwise subject to ad valorem property taxes, would be allowed all applicable 
exemptions from those taxes, except for the exemptions allowed under Section 3(g) of Article X 
ofthe South Carolina Constitution and Section 12-37-220(B)(32) and (34) ofthe Code of Laws of 
South Carolina, 1976, as amended. 

(c) The Company shall make Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes for each year during the term 
hereof, as set forth in Section 5.3 hereof, beginning with the tax year following the year the Project 
property is first placed in service. The Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes shall be made to the County 
Treasurer on the due dates which would otherwise be applicable for ad valorem property taxes for 
the Project, with the first payment being due on the first date following the delivery of this Fee 

8 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834·5505·9142 v.3 



such property, such property shall be treated as Replacement Property, subject to the terms of 
Section 5.1(d) and the Act. 

SECTION 5.3. Fee Term . The applicable term of this Fee Agreement shall be measured 
for each Stage beginning from the last day of the property tax year in which the Project property 
is placed in service in that Stage through the last day of the property tax year which is the twenty
ninth year following such year; provided, that the maximum term of this Fee Agreement shall not 
be more than 30 years from the end of the last year of the Investment Period. Unless sooner 
terminated pursuant to the terms and provisions herein, this Fee Agreement shall terminate with 
respect to the Project or any Stage or part thereof upon the earlier to occur of (a) payment of the 
final installment ofPayments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes pursuant to Section 5.1 hereof, or (b) exercise by 
the Company of its option to terminate pursuant to Section 10.1 hereof. 

SECTION 5.4. Minimum Investment. The Company agrees that it will make the 
minimum statutory investment in the Project during the investment period, as required by the Act, 
and in the event the Company fails to satisfy such requirement, then the Project shall revert 
retroactively to ad valorem taxation as required under Section 12-44-140 of the Act and the 
Company shall, within one hundred eighty (180) days of the end of the statutory investment period, 
make payment to the County of the difference between the Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes actually 
made and the total retroactive amount referred to in this Section 5.4, plus interest at the same rate 
assessed for non-payment of ad valorem taxes . Notwithstanding any termination of this Fee 
Agreement, the County shall have the same rights to receive payment for any retroactive ad 
valorem taxes, deficiency payments, and interest and the same enforcement rights as it would have 
with respect to ad valorem taxes, but the County shall not be entitled to receive any payments for 
penalties under this Section 5.4. The County's rights arising under this Section 5.4 prior to such 
termination shall survive any such termination. 

SECTION 5.5. Investment Maintenance. If at any time during the term of this Fee 
Agreement following the period of time in which the Company must make its minimum 
investment required under the Act (as specified in Section 5.4 hereof), the Company's investment 
based on income tax basis without regard to depreciation falls below such minimum statutory 
investment requirement, the Company shall no longer qualify for the Payments-in-Lieu of Taxes 
provided herein in accordance with Section 12-44-140(C) ofthe Act. 

ARTICLE VI 

PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION AND ABATEMENT 

SECTION 6.1. Protection of Tax Exempt Status of the Project. In order to insure that 
the Project is not and will not become subject to ad valorem property taxes under the laws of the 
State of South Carolina or any political subdivision thereof, the County and the Company covenant 
that: 

10 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9142 v.3 



being made a party to a lawsuit, the Company shall reimburse the County for the out-of-pocket 
costs incurred by the County in such litigation. 

SECTION 8.2. Indemnification Covenants 

(a) The Company shall and agrees to hold the County and its County Council members, 
officers, agents and employees harmless from all pecuniary liability in connection with those 
reasons set forth in Section 8.2(b ). Such indemnification obligation shall survive any termination 
of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that neither the County 
nor any of its members, officers, agents and employees shall incur any pecuniary liability to any 
third-party by reason of any claim or loss or damage to property or any injury or death of any 
person or persons occurring in connection with the planning, design, acquisition, construction and 
carrying out of the Project, if the County or any of its members, officers, agents or employees 
should incur any such claim, loss or damage, then, in that event the Company shall indemnify and 
hold harmless the County and its members, officers, agents and employees against any such claim, 
loss or damage and all costs and expenses incurred in connection with any such claim, and upon 
notice and request from the County, the Company at its own expense shall defend the County and 
its officers, agents and employees in any such action or proceeding. 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be obligated to indemnify 
the County or any of its individual members, officers, agents and employees for expenses, claims, 
losses or damages arising from the intentional or willful misconduct or gross negligence of the 
County or any of its individual officers, agents or employees. 

(d) Other than as to the carrying out of any express duties of the County under this Fee 
Agreement, the County, prior to taking any action requested by, or reasonably necessitated by 
action of, the Company hereunder, shall be entitled, upon request of the County and prior notice 
to the Company of the need for and estimate of the expenses to be incurred and allowing the 
Company an opportunity prior to incurring such expenses to comment on the same, to payment by 
the Company of any reasonable out of pocket, direct costs incurred or expected to be incurred by 
the County in connection therewith, including attorneys fees . 

SECTION 8.3. Assignment and Leasing. Subject to and pursuant to the Act, including 
Section 12-44-120 thereof, with the County's consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
any or all of the Company's interest in the Project and/or this Fee Agreement may be transferred 
or assigned by the Company or any assignee to any other entity; provided, however, that such 
consent is not required in connection with financing-related transfers or any other transfers not 
requiring the consent of the County under the Act. The County hereby expressly consents to any 
transfer or assignment by the Company of any or all of its interest in the Project and/or this Fee 
Agreement to any Affiliates of the Company and to any transfer or assignment of any or all of such 
interest among such Affiliates. Except as otherwise required by the Act or this Fee Agreement, a 
transaction or an event of sale, assignment, leasing, transfer of an interest herein, disposal, or 

12 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9 142 v.3 



(c) If any material representation or warranty on the part of the Company made in the 
Documents, or in any report, certificate, financial or other statement furnished in connection with 
the Documents or the transactions described in the Documents shall have been false or misleading 
in any material respect. 

SECTION 9.2. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default shall have 
happened and be subsisting the County may (i) terminate this Fee Agreement by providing at least 
thirty (30) days ' written notice to the Company specifying the termination date, or (ii) take 
whatever action at law or in equity may appear legally required or necessary or desirable to collect 
the payments and other amounts then due or to enforce performance and observance of any 
obligation, agreement or covenant of the Company, under the Documents. Although the parties 
acknowledge that the Project is exempt from ad valorem property taxes, the County and any other 
taxing entity affected thereby may, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, exercise the 
remedies provided by general law (Title 12, Chapter 49) and the Act relating to the enforced 
collection of taxes; it being the express intent of the parties that the County, without limitation and 
at a minimum, shall have the same remedies available by law to collect delinquent Payments-in
Lieu-of-Taxes as if they were delinquent ad valorem tax payments, including execution upon the 
lien referred to in this Section. Notwithstanding termination of this Fee Agreement, and except as 
set forth in Section 5.4, the County shall have the same rights to receive payment for any delinquent 
Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes, deficiency payments, interest or penalties, and the same enforcement 
rights, as it would have with respect to ad valorem taxes, and the County' s rights under this Fee 
Agreement with respect to any such payments then due and owing shall survive any such 
termination. The County' s right to receive Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes shall have a first priority 
lien status pursuant to Section 12-44-90 of the Act and Chapters 4 and 54 ofTitle 12 of the Code 
of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended. 

SECTION 9.3. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any warranty, 
covenant or agreement contained in this Fee Agreement should be breached by the Company or 
the County and thereafter waived by the other party to this Fee Agreement, such waiver shall be 
limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach. 

ARTICLE X 

OPTION OF THE COMPANY 

SECTION 10.1. Option to Terminate. From time to time (including without limitation 
any time during which there may be subsisting an Event of Default) and at any time upon at least 
30 days notice, the Company may terminate this Fee Agreement with respect to the entire Project 
or any portion thereof; provided, however, that such termination shall be subject to the rights of 
the County under Sections 5.4, 8.2, 8.4, and 9.2 of this Fee Agreement, which rights shall survive 
termination of this Fee Agreement. Upon termination of all or part of this Fee Agreement, the 
Company will become liable for ad valorem property taxes on the Project or such portion thereof 
as is so terminated from inclusion in the Project, as well as for any amounts already due and owing 
under this Fee Agreement, which latter amounts, if any, shall be paid to the County with the next 

14 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9 142 v.3 



Any notice shall be deemed to have been received as follows: (1) by personal delivery, 
upon receipt and (2) by certified mail, 3 business days after delivery to the U.S . Postal authorities 
by the party serving notice. 

SECTION 11.2. Binding Effect. This Fee Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and 
shall be binding upon the County and the Company and their respective successors and assigns. 

SECTION 11.3. Invalidity and Severability. In the event that the Act or the Payments
in-Lieu-of-Taxes arrangement described in Section 5.1 hereof is determined to be invalid or 
unenforceable in its entirety, the parties hereby agree that except as the final judicial decision may 
otherwise require, the Company shall be entitled to retain any benefits received under or pursuant 
to this Fee Agreement; otherwise, in the event any provision of this Fee Agreement shall be held 
invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, that decision shall not invalidate 
or render unenforceable any other provision of this Fee Agreement, unless that decision destroys 
the basis for the transaction, in which event the parties shall in good faith attempt to preserve, to 
the maximum extent possible, the benefits provided and to be provided to the Company hereunder 
by either restructuring or reconstituting this Fee Agreement under any then applicable law, 
including but not limited to Chapter 29 of Title 4 and Chapter 12 of Title 4, Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, as amended. 

SECTION 11.4. Payments Due on Saturday, Sunday and Holidays. Whenever any 
payment to be made hereunder shall be stated to be due on a Saturday, a Sunday or a holiday, such 
payment shall be made on the next business day. 

SECTION 11.5. Fiscal Year; Property Tax Year. If the Company's fiscal year changes 
in the future so as to cause a change in the Company's property tax year, the timing of the 
requirements set forth in this Fee Agreement shall be revised accordingly, except that Payments
in-Lieu-of-Taxes shall always be required to be made at the same time and subject to the same 
conditions, penalties, and enforcement, as with ad valorem taxes. 

SECTION 11.6. Amendments, Changes and Modifications. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Fee Agreement, this Fee Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, 
altered or terminated without the written consent of the County and the Company. To the 
maximum extent allowed by law, any such County consent, including specifically and without 
limitation any County consent referred to in this Fee Agreement, may be provided by a resolution 
of County Council, in the sole discretion of the County; provided, however, that County consent 
may also be provided by the Chair and the County Administrator as set forth in Section 8.3. 

SECTION 11.7. Execution of Counterparts. This Fee Agreement may be executed in 
several counterparts, only one of which shall be an original; provided, however, that any action 
may be brought upon any counterpart of this Fee Agreement or any counterpart of any document 
that is attached to this Fee Agreement as an exhibit. 

16 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9 142 v.3 



SECTION 11.15. Execution Disclaimer. Notwithstanding any other provlSlon, the 
County is executing this Fee Agreement as statutory accommodation to assist the Company in 
achieving the intended benefits and purposes of the Act. The Company acknowledges that no court 
has reviewed the Act, particularly with respect to its interpretation as it relates to this Fee 
Agreement, and that there are no judicial or administrative precedents with respect to certain of 
the Act's provisions or certain of the ancillary and administrative provisions presented thereunder, 
and that the County makes no representations or warranties, either express or implied, as to the 
constitutionality of the Act. 

18 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9 142 v.3 



EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF SITES 

The sites listed below are the Sites as of , 2020, and may be 
supplemented as set forth in the definition of"Sites" in Section 1.3 of the Fee Agreement: 

COMPANY NAME STREET ADDRESS CITY ZIP MILLAGE 
RATE 

Champion Tooling & Machining 3035 White Hall Road Anderson 29626 
Clariion 341 0 Highway 24 Anderson 29626 

Drake Products Corporation 3401 Hwy. 24 Anderson 29622 

Euwe Eugen Wexler US 171 All iance Pkwy Williamston 29697 

Fraenkische lndustri 416A Ellison Road Anderson 29621 
lnergy Automotive Systems 5100 Old Pearman Road Anderson 29623 

Mergon 5350 Old Pearman Road Anderson 29625 
Mergon 5505 Old Pearman Rd . Anderson 29625 

PackiQ 1 American Way Anderson 29621 

Plastic Omnium 5100 Old Pearman Road Anderson 29625 
Proper Mold 101 Clemson Research Blvd . Anderson 29625 
Proper Polymers 101 Clemson Research Blvd . Anderson 29625 
Roylco Inc. 3251 Abbeville Hwy Anderson 29624 

20 

Ordinance 2020-025 

4834-5505-9 142 v.3 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-029 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 
AMENDED AND RESTATED FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND COl ANDERSON 
INDUSTRIAL, LLC WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, WHEREBY SUCH 
PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF 
TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE 
CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the "County'~, acting by and 
through its County Council (the "County Council'~ , is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "FILOT Act'~ , Title 4, Chapter 1 (the "Multi-County Park 
Act'~, and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
industrial projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in 
respect of investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through 
all such powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the "State'~ will be promoted and 
trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and 
thus utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public 
welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise 
provided locally; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County Council adopted on March 5, 2019 an inducement resolution (the "Inducement Resolution'~ with 
respect to certain proposed investment by COl Anderson Industrial, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability 
company (the "Company'~ (which was known to the County at the time as "Project 20190114'~, with 
respect to the acquisition, construction, and installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, 
machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property to constitute a new 
distribution/manufacturing facility in the County (collectively, the "Project'~ ; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $13,000,000 in the County within the Investment Period (as such term is defmed in the 
hereinafter defmed Fee Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a "project" and "economic development property" as such terms are 
defined in the PILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the PILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
Vill, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park such that the Project 
will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Resolution, the County agreed to, among other things, (a) 
enter into a fee in lieu of tax and special source credit agreement with the Company, whereby the County 
would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by the Company with respect to the Project, 
and (b) provide for certain infrastructure credits to be claimed by the Company against its payments of fees
in-lieu-oftaxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and 



WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2019-009 adopted on April16, 2019, the County Council 
authorized the County to enter into a fee in lieu of tax agreement and special source credit agreement with 
the Company which classified the Project as "economic development property" under the PILOT Act and 
provided for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the provision of infrastructure credits to reimburse the 
Company for payment of the cost of certain infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further 
described therein and which fee in lieu of tax agreement was entered into and dated as of May 1, 2019 (the 
"Original Fee Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, due to market considerations, the Company has requested certain amendments to the 
Original Fee Agreement and the County is agreeable to the requested amendments to the Original Fee 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement (the "Fee 
Agreement") which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 

WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a "project" and "economic development property" as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the PILOT Act, and the County's actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the PILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of 
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council is hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Fee Agreement in the name of 
and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and directed to attest the 
same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the Company and cause a copy of the 
same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be 
in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such minor changes therein 
as shall be approved by the Chairman of County Council, upon advice of counsel, his execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of 
Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

2 
NPGVLl : 1938916.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



Section 3. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 4. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this 20th day of November, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

October 6, 2020 
November 12, 2020 
November 20, 2020 
November 20, 2020 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

3 
NPGVLI :1938916.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of October 6, 2020, November 12, 
2020 and November 20, 2020, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present 
and voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated: ______ ,, 2020 

NPGVLI : 1938916.1 



AMENDED AND RESTATED 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND 

SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

Between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

and 

COl Anderson Industrial, LLC 

Dated as of May 1, 2019 
Amended as of 

November 20, 2020 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS .. .... ............................ ........ ..... .... .. ....... ..... ......... ................. ..... .. .... ........ ...... ............... ......... 2 

SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ... .... ...... .. ........ .. ...... ...... ........... ..... ............ ............. ..... .. .. ...... .. ...... .. .... 6 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 2 .01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY .. ...... ....... .... ........ ....... ..... ......... . 7 

SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY .. ....... ..... ............... ............. .... 7 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ........... .. .... ... .. .. ...... ....... .... ...... .. .. ........ ........ .... ....................................... ... ...... ............ ........ 8 

SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ..... .. ... .. .......... ......... .. .. ..... ..... ... ... .... ...... .............. ............................... .. ..... ....... ... 8 

SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ...... ....................................... ...... ...... ........... ..... .. ..... ........ ....... ................ ........ ... .. . 8 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

SECTION4.01 FILOTPAYMENTS ......... .. .... .. .. .. ........ ......... .. ........ ..... ... ....... ... ... .... ... ...... .......... .... .... ...... ..... .................. 10 

SECTION 4 .02 SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS .. .. .. .. .... .......... .... .. .. ...... ........... .. ........................ .. ............ ...... .... ... 11 

SECTION 4 .03 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT REQUIREMENT .. ................................. .. ........... .. ........ .. .. 12 

SECTION 4.04 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ......... .............. .. ........... .. ........................ ....... .... ........ .. .. .. .. .. ...... .. ......... .... ..... 12 

SECTION 4 .05 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .......... .......... .... ............ ...... ...... .. .. .. ........ .. .. .. .... .... ..... 13 

SECTION 4 .06 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OFT AXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ... ...... ......... .......... ....... ......... ..... ...... ...... ..... .... ......... .......................................... ... .... .. .... 13 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ............................... .. ..... ....... .... ......... ........... .... .. .. ... ................... ... .. .......... 14 

SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ............................ ... .. ....... ...... ..... .. .... ... .... ....... .... .... ....... .. .... ... ... .. .. .. ...... .. .............. . 14 

SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ............... ....... .. .... ...... .. ...... ........... ..... ........ .. ............... ... ........ ........... ...... ..... ........ .. .. . 14 

SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY' S LIABILITY .. .... .... .... ...... .. .... .. ........ .. .... .. .. ...... .. .......................... .. ............ .. .... 14 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS .. .... .... .. .... ................ .. .. .. ...... .... ...... .... .. .... ...... 15 

SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ...... .... .. .. .. .. ...... ........... ........ .... ...... ..... ............ ....................................... 15 

SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ..................... .. ........... ...... .... .... .. .. .... ..... .......... ... ...... ...... .... .... ... ...... .. ............. 16 

SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY' S PERSONNEL .... .............. .... .. .. .... .. .... .. .. .... .. .. .... .... .... .. .... .. ........ .................. 16 

SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS .. .. ...... .. .. .. ................ .. .... .. ................................ ........ .......... .. ...... . 16 

SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES .... .. .. .. ............ .... .. ............ ...... .. .. ...... .... .. .... .... .................. .. .. .. ................... 17 

SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .. .. ............ .. .. .. .. .. .... .. .... .. .. ...... .. .. .. ............ ...................................... .. ........ .... .. ... 17 

SECTION 5. 12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ....... .. .. ....... ..... .. .. .. ..... .. .... ... .. .... ... ............. .. ....................................... .... ....... ..... .. 17 

SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................. .. .... ..... ......... .. ........... .. ......... .. ................... .. .. .. ... ..... 17 

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT .. .... .. .... .... .. .... .... .. ........ .... ........ .. .... ....... ....................... .. .............................. .... ..... 19 

SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT ....................................... .. .... .... .. .. ...... ............ .......... .......... ...... ....... .... ........ 19 

SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES .... .. .. ........ .. .. .. .... .. .... .... ...... .. 20 

SECTION 6.04 Now ANER ..... ... ............ ..... ..... ......... ......... ..... ..... .... .. .. ................ .. .. .. ............................. ..... ............ ..... 20 

NPGVLI : 1938537.1 
Ordinance 2020-029 



ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES .... ..... ............. ... .... .. ............................ ........ ... ................... .. ........... ...... .......... .... .......... ............ 21 

SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT ...... ....... .. .................................................................................................................... 21 

SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ................. ..... ... ...... ..... ..... .... .. ...... ..... .................. .......... ..... ............................. .. ........... 22 

SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW .................................................................................................................................. 22 

SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .......... ..... .. .... ...................... ........ ... ......................... .................. .................. ............. ............ . 22 

SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ....................... .... ................... ........... .... ... ......... ..................... ... ...................................... 22 

SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................... ................................................................ 22 

SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .................... .. .................................. .. ........... .. ................ .. ...... .. ........ .... 22 

SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .......................................... .... ................................................................... 22 

SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 23 

SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ........................... ............. ..... ...... ........................... ... ... .. ........ .............. .. .. ........................ .. ....... 23 

SECTION7.12BUSINESSDAY .. ...... .............................................................................................................................. 23 

EXHlBIT A - DESCRIPTION OF LAND 

EXHrBIT B- INVESTMENT CERTlFICA TION 

EXHlBIT C- INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTlFICATION 

11 

NPGVLI: 1938537.1 
Ordinance 2020-029 



SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
AMENDED AND RESTATED 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code"), 
the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code. The following is a 
summary of the key provisions of this Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement. This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Amended 
and Restated Fee in Lieu ofT ax and Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 
12-44-55 of the Code. 

Company Name: 
Projected Investment: 
Location (street): 

1. FILOT 
Required Investment: 
Investment Period: 

Assessment Ratio: 
Fixed Millage: 

Clawback information: 

2.MCIP 
Included in an MCIP: 
If yes, Name & Date: 

3. SSRC 
Total Amount: 
No. ofYears 
Yearly Increments: 
Clawback information: 

4. Other information 

COl Anderson Industrial, LLC Project Name: Project 20190114 
$13,000,000 
Highway 86 Tax Map No.: 240-00-01-010-000 

$13 ,000,000 
5 years Ordinance No./Date: 2019-009/Apri116, 2019 

to be provided 
6% Term (years): 
316.5 mills Net Present Value (if 

yes, discount rate): 
If the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement is not made during the Standard 
Investment Period, the FILOT is terminated retroactively 

To be included in Anderson/Greenville Park (2010) 

30 years 
85% years 1 - 5, 35% years 6 - 30 
If the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement is not made during the Standard 
Investment Period, the SSRC is terminated retroactively. 

In the event $13 ,000,000 has been invested within the Standard Investment Period, the 
Standard Investment Period shall be extended an additional5 years. 

Ill 

NPGVLI : 1938537.1 
Ordinance 2020-029 



AMENDED AND RESTATED 
FEE IN LIEU OFT AX AGREEMENT 

TillS AMENDED AND RESTATED FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE 
CREDIT AGREEMENT (the "Fee Agreement") is made and entered into as of , 2020 by 
and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the "County") , a body politic and corporate 
and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the "State") , acting by and through the Anderson 
County Council (the "County Council'') as the governing body of the County, and COl Anderson 
Industrial, LLC, a limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of South 
Carolina (the "Company") . 

RECITALS 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "FILOT Act"), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended 
(the "Code") , authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage industries 
now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, products, 
and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the requirements of 
the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development property and 
provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-1-17 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source 
revenue credit ("Special Source Revenue Credit'~ fmancing secured by and payable solely from revenues of 
the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, 
namely: the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
"Infrastructure") . 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a new 
distribution/manufacturing facility in the County. 

4. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to accomplish, 
the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or maintained, and the 
anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(l) of the FILOT Act, the County 
fmds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; (b) the 
Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality therein and to 
no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are 
proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created with 
an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the Code 
and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

6. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 2019-009 adopted on April 16, 2019, as an inducement to the 
Company to invest in the Project, the County Council authorized the County to enter into a fee in lieu of tax 
agreement which classifies the Project as Economic Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides 



for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the provision of Special Source Revenue Credits to reimburse the 
Company for payment of the cost of certain Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further 
described therein and which fee in lieu of tax agreement was entered into and dated as of May 1, 2019 (the 
"Original Fee Agreement"). 

7. The County and the Company desire to amend and restate in its entirety the terms and 
provisions of the Original Fee Agreement, all as set forth in greater detail in this Fee Agreement. 

8. By enactment of an Ordinance on , 2020, the County Council has authorized the 
County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 
provision of Special Source Revenue Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain 
Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01 Definitions 

The terms that this Article defmes shall for all purposes ofthis Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

"Administration Expenses" shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; provided, 
however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County has 
furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the reason it 
has been or will be incurred. 

"Affiliate" shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity which 
owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or which 
is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) 
or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such 
Sponsor Affiliate), as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship to the 
Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 267(b) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Code" shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended. 

"Commencement Date" shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

"Company" shall mean COl Anderson Industrial, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, 
and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any 
other person or entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company. 

2 
NPGVLI: 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



"Condemnation Event" shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority through 
condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 

"Contract Minimum Investment Requirement" shall mean, with respect to the Project, investment 
by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least $13,000,000 in Economic Development Property 
subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the absence of this Fee Agreement). 

"County" shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as the 
governing body of the County. 

"County Administrator" shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 

"County Assessor" shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

"County Auditor" shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

"County Council" shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

"County Treasurer" shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

"Defaulting Entity" shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

"Deficiency Amount" shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

"Department" shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

"Diminution in Value" in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to PILOT payments 
which may be caused by the Company's or any Sponsor Affiliate's removal and/or disposal of equipment 
pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a result of any 
damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

"Economic Development Property" shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the PILOT Act, 
selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its annual filing of a SCDOR PT -300S 
or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be amended from time to time) for each year 
within the Investment Period. 

"Equipment" shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

"Event of Default" shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

3 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



"Exemption Period" shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year after 
the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in service 
and ending on the Termination Date. In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption Period applies 
to each year's investment made during the Investment Period. 

"Extended Investment Period" shall mean the period ending five (5) years after the end of the 
Standard Investment Period. 

"Fee Agreement" shall mean this Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source 
Credit Agreement. 

"FILOT" or "FILOT Payments" shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

"FILOT Act" shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

"FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement" shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 

"Improvements" shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, access10ns, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

"Infrastructure" shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

"Investment Period" shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Standard Investment Period plus the 
Extended Investment Period, if applicable. 

"Standard Investment Period" shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition ofEconomic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement Date. 

"Land" means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

"MCIP Act" shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

"MCIP Agreement" shall mean the Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (20 10 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, between the County and 
Greenville County, South Carolina, as the same may be further amended or supplemented from time to 
time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with respect to the Project to offer the benefits of 
the Special Source Revenue Credits to the Company hereunder. 

"MCIP" shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

4 
NPGVLI: 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



"Phase" or "Phases" in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word "Phase" shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the Investment 
Period. 

"Project" shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property. Notwithstanding anything in this Fee 
Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the PILOT 
pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the PILOT Act, including without limitation property which has been 
subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; provided, 
however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real property 
portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the PILOT Act. 

"Removed Components" shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

"Replacement Property" shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of whether 
such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether more than 
one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent that the 
PILOT Act permits . 

"Special Source Credits" shall mean the annual special source credits provided to the Company 
pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof. 

"Sponsor Affiliate" shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the PILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

"Standard Investment Period" shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement Date. 

"State" shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

"Termination Date" shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual PILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

"Transfer Provisions" shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the PILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

5 
NPGVLI : 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02 Project-Related Investments 

The term "investment" or "invest" as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments by the Company. 

[End of Article I] 

6 
NPGVLI: 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 2.01 Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 

The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows : 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and acts 
through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a "project" within the 
meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01 (a) hereof is 316.5 mills, which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2019, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) ofthe FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a MCIP 
for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special Source 
Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02 Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows : 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of South 
Carolina, is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, 
and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a "project" within the meaning of the FILOT 
Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of a 
distribution/manufacturing facility, and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act permits as the Company 
may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met, the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Standard 
Investment Period. 

[End of Article II] 

7 
NPGVL 1: 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

Section 3.01 The Project 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct and 
acquire the Project, and (ii) meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Standard 
Investment Period. The Company anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 2019. In the event, the Contract Minimum Investment 
Requirement has been met within the Standard Investment Period, the Investment Period shall be extended 
to include the Extended Investment Period. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the County 
hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets which are 
eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and which the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate selects 
for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT -300S form (or comparable form) to be filed with 
the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) and that by listing such assets, such assets 
shall automatically become Economic Development Property and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem 
taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained in this Fee Agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not be obligated to complete the acquisition 
of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, does not meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement within the Standard Investment Period, the provisions of Section 4.03 
hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee Agreement, 
in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02 Diligent Completion 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon as 
practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Standard Investment Period. 

Section 3.03 Filings and Reports 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer a copy of 
their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than thirty (30) 
days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the completed 
Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, and to their 
counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the Department 
within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all parties hereto. 

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project. Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) confirm 
the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made by the 
Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with respect to 
property placed in service as part of the Project. 

8 
NPGVLI : 193853 7 .l 

Ordinance 2020-029 



[End of Article III] 

9 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



FILOT PAYMENTS 

Section 4.01 FILOT Payments 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, 
as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with respect to the 
Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial investment of sums 
sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 12-44-50(A)(l) of the 
FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the FILOT Payments in 
accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall make payments in lieu 
of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the Project and is placed in 
service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall make payments in lieu of 
ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic Development Property or, if 
there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and payable and subject to penalty 
assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the County for ad valorem taxes. 
The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be in accordance with the following 
procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income tax 
basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to depreciation 
(provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that the Company 
and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length transaction is equal to the 
original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market value is by appraisal) and 
original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal property less depreciation for each 
year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary obsolescence shall be allowable. The 
fair market value of the real property for the first year of the Exemption Period remains the fair market 
value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the Exemption Period. The determination of 
these values shall take into account all applicable property tax exemptions that State law would allow to 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were taxable, except those exemptions that Section 
12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent ( 6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to establish 
the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic Development 
Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such longer period of 
years in which the FILOT Act permits the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT 
payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of 316.5 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value to 
determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable payment 
dates. 

10 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County. If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with appropriate 
reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates. 
Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates, 
with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates previously remitted FILOT 
Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable tax exemptions to which the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic Development Property was not and 
had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and (ii) be reduced by the total amount of 
FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had made with respect to the Project pursuant to 
the terms hereof. 

Section 4.02 Special Source Credits 

(a) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-1-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to receive, and the 
County agrees to provide, annual Special Source Credits against the Company' s FILOT Payments for a 
period of five (5) consecutive years in an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of that portion ofFILOT 
Payments payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment made by the 
Company in the Project during the Standard Investment Period), calculated and applied after payment of the 
amount due the non-host county under the MCIP Agreement, and thereafter, for a period of twenty-five (25) 
consecutive years in an amount equal to thirty-five percent (35%) of that portion ofFILOT Payments payable 
by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment made by the Company in the 
Project during the Investment Period), calculated and applied after payment of the amount due the non-host 
county under the MCIP Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken. 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the Company 
exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company shall be 
responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the preceding 
sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

(d) Should the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement not be met by the end of the 
Standard Investment Period, any Special Source Credits otherwise payable under this Agreement shall no 
longer be payable by the County, and the Company shall be retroactively liable to the County for the amount 
of the Special Source Credits previously received by the Company, plus interest at the rate payable for late 
payment of taxes. Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable 
to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth (1201h) day following the last day of the Standard 
Investment Period. 

11 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



(e) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credit is taken 
against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the Project 
at any time during the term of this Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), the 
amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property was 
removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(f) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for Fll.,OT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such Fll.,OT Payments otherwise due by the 
amount of the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax year. 

(g) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the Fll.,OT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory limitation, 
are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax or license, and are not 
a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the County. 

Section 4.03 Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Standard Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate and the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount which is equal to 
the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on the 
Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other political 
units as if the items of property comprising the Economic Development Property were not Economic 
Development Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and abatements to 
which the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled in such a case, through and including 
the end of the Standard Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount ofFll.,OT payments the Company and 
such Sponsor Affiliates have made with respect to the Economic Development Property (after taking into 
account any Special Source Revenue Credits received) (such excess, a "Deficiency Amount") for the period 
through and including the end of the Standard Investment Period. Any amounts determined to be owing 
pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth 
(120111

) day following the last day of the Standard Investment Period. 

(b) As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the County 
Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding December 
31 of each year during the Investment Period. 

Section 4.04 Removal of Equipment 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project in 
its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the Project 
and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to the terms 
of this Fee Agreement. Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is scrapped or sold or 
removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem property taxes to the 
extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem property taxes. 

12 
NPGVLI :1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



Section 4.05 FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic Development 
Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement Property, then, pursuant 
and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard to such Replacement Property in 
accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the Economic 
Development Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is deemed to replace the oldest 
Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is disposed of 
in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service. Replacement 
Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the original income tax 
basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the same property tax year. 
More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic Development Property. 
To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property exceeds the original income 
tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject 
to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for Economic Development Property were not 
allowable. Replacement Property is entitled to treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period 
of time remaining during the Exemption Period for the Economic Development Property which it 
is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be recorded 
using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate and 
assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06 Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the FILOT payments 
with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion as the amount 
of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic Development Property 
as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, that if at any time subsequent 
to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining in the County based on the 
original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is less than the FILOT Act 
Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment thereafter due hereunder and 
continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled to the incentive provided in 
Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore commence to pay regular ad 
valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01 (b) hereof. 

[End of Article IV] 

13 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 5.01 Cessation of Operations 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County's obligation to provide the FILOT incentive ends, and this 
Fee Agreement is terminated, if the Company ceases operations at the Project. For purposes of this Section, 
"ceases operations" means closure of the facility or the cessation of production and shipment of products 
to customers for a continuous period of twenty-four (24) months. The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof 
relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, if this Fee Agreement is terminated in accordance 
with this Section prior to the end of the Standard Investment Period. Each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is terminated pursuant to this subsection, that under no 
circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliates. 

Section 5.02 Rights to Inspect 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all reasonable 
times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The County and 
its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice, to 
have access to examine and inspect the Company's South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. The 
aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and necessary 
terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of Section 5.03 
hereof. 

Section 5.03 Confidentiality 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein "Confidential Information"). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County "Confidential Information." The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law. Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04 Limitation of County's Liability 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any fmancial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or a 
debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County with 
respect to the Special Source Revenue Credits shall be payable only from FILOT payments received from 

14 
NPGVLI : 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



or payable by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent 
the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05 Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the PILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-120 
of the PILOT Act or any successor provision, any fmancing arrangements entered into by the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for purposes of the Transfer 
Provisions. Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it is not intended in this Fee 
Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the Company, any Sponsor 
Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06 Inderrmification Covenants 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to inderrmify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the "Inderrmified 
Parties") harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, contractors, 
and agents during the Term, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, defend and save the Inderrmified 
Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the Term from (i) entering into and performing 
its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach or default on the 
part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of any of its obligations under this Fee 
Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or its agents, contractors, 
servants, employees or licensees, (v) any act of negligence of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or lessee 
of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or (vi) any environmental violation, condition, or effect with 
respect to the Project. The Company shall indemnify, defend and save the County harmless from and 
against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising as aforesaid or in 
connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from the County, the Company 
shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County 
(the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Inderrmified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings required 
of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the PILOT, by reason of the execution of this Fee 
Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, or by reason of the County's relationship to the Project or by the operation of the Project by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in connection with the 
violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the County or any of the 
other Inderrmified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Company shall 
indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or 
corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection with any such claim 
or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the Company shall defend 
them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which 
shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall not apply to the extent 

15 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the 
County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party resulting 
from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, shall 
survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07 Qualification in State 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08 No Liability of County' s Personnel 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and shall 
be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and no 
recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing body 
of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no recourse 
shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein 
contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09 Assignment, Leases or Transfers 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all or 
any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the Project, 
or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of such 
arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part of the 
Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, synthetic 
lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar arrangement or 
succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of such portion of the 
Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the Project in question to the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or is 
leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate. In order to 
preserve the PILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion of the Project so transferred, 
leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any transfer to an Affiliate of the 
Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing arrangements pursuant to clause (b) 
above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, 
as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent ratification of the County which consent or 
subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing 
entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) 
above and such financing entity assumes in writing the obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or 
reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the 
transferee or financing entity shall become obligated to make PILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee 
shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior 
transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; (iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, 

16 
NPGVLI : 193853 7. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the 
County and the Department a true and complete copy of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, 
the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall comply with all other requirements of the Transfer 
Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the assumption 
by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate under this Fee 
Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this Section. 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions . 

Section 5.10 Administration Expenses 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly provided 
for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the 
County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the County's or 
Indemnified Party' s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and requesting 
payment of same. 

Section 5.11 Priority Lien Status 

The County's right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51 , 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12 Interest; Penalties 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was due 
and, in the case of FILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law and 
subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 

Section 5.13 Sponsor Affiliates 

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 
investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to the 
terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably acceptable to 
the County. The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice of any Sponsor 
Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the calendar year during 

17 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in accordance with 
Section 12-44-130(B) of the PILOT Act. 

[End of Article V] 

18 
NPGVLI : 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



DEFAULT 

Section 6.01 Events of Default 

The following shall be "Events of Default" under this Fee Agreement, and the term "Event of 
Default" shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the following 
occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the PILOT Payments described 
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or 

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently 
pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to 
cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 

Section 6.02 Remedies Upon Default 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the "Defaulting 
Entity") shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of the following 
remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder. 

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company's (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet the 
PILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement or the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other 
than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make PILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the PILOT Act. In this regard, and 

19 
NPGVLI : 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies that 
general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced collection of 
ad valorem taxes to collect any PILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03 Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred. 

Section 6.04 No Waiver 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power, 
or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or remedy 
hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in writing and 
signed by the waiving party hereto. 

[End of Article VI] 

20 
NPGVLI: 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 7.01 Notices 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such provision 
shall control: 

If to the Company: 

COl Anderson Industrial, LLC 
c/o: VanTrust Real Estate, LLC 
4900 Main Street, Suite 400 
Kansas City, Missouri 64112 

With a copy to: 

James K. Price 
Nexsen Pruet, LLC 
55 E. Camperdown Way, Suite 400 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601 

If to the County: 

Anderson County 
Attn: Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
P.O. Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 

With a copy to : 

Anderson County Attorney 
P.O. Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 

Section 7.02 Binding Effect 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns. In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of the 
County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other such 
political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee Agreement 
shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any entity, officer, 
board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of the County has 
been transferred. 

21 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



Section 7.03 Counterparts 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04 Governing Law 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05 Headings 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06 Amendments 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07 Further Assurance 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the PILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08 Invalidity; Change in Laws 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue is 
unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of this 
Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the terms of 
this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the PILOT Act, to the extent not 
inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof. If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and such 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most closely the legal, valid, and 
enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the maximum 
benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions ofthe PILOT Act, to locate the Project 
in the County. In case a change in the PILOT Act or South Carolina laws eliminates or reduces any of the 
restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates and the PILOT incentive, 
the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full consideration to reformation of this Fee 
Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with 
the benefits of such change in the PILOT Act or South Carolina laws. 

Section 7.09 Termination by Company 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days ' written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party hereto 

22 
NPGVLI : 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



(including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any provisions 
which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following such 
termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu of 
taxation that would apply absent this Agreement. The Company's obligation to make FILOT Payments 
under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination pursuant to this 
section. 

Section 7.1 0 Entire Understanding 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation 
to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates delivered in 
connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11 Waiver 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12 Business Day 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of Article VII] 

23 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the County Administrator and to be attested 
by the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its 
duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

[Signature Page 1 to Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

24 
NPGVLL : 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



COl ANDERSON INDUSTRIAL, LLC 
a South Carolina limited liability company 

By: 
Name: David M. Harrison 
Its : Manager 

{Signature Page 2 to Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu ofT ax and Special Source Credit Agreement} 

25 
NPGVLl: 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

All that piece, parcel or lot of land in Williamston Township, Anderson County, State of South Carolina, 
containing seventy-three (73) acres, more or less, lying and being on the north side of Highway #86 as shown 
on that certain plat prepared by B.F. Wigington, surveyor, dated March 19, 1941 and recorded in the Register 
of Deeds Office for Anderson County in Plat Book 15 at Page 105. 

TMS#240-00-0 1-01 0-000 

A-1 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



EXHffiiTB 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I , the of COl Anderson Industrial, LLC (the "Company'~ , do hereby 
certify in connection with Section 4.03 of the Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu ofT ax and Special Source 
Credit Agreement dated as of , 2020 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the 
Company (the "Agreement'~, as follows : 

(1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31 , 20 _ was $ ____ _ 

(2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning , 20 _ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment Period) 
and ending December 31 , 20 _, is $ ____ _ 

All capitalized terms used but not defmed herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this __ day of ____ , 20 _. 

Name: _ _ ____________ _ 
Its : _______________ _ 

B-1 
NPGVLI : 1938537. 1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



EXHIBITC 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I , the of COl Anderson Industrial, LLC (the "Company'ry, do hereby 
certify in connection with Section 4.02 of the Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source 
Credit Agreement dated as of , 2020 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the 
Company (the "Agreement'ry, as follows : 

(1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Revenue Credits previously 
received by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is $ _ __ _ 

(2) As of December 31, 20 _, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure 
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$ _ __ _ 

(3) Of the total amount set forth in (2) above, $ ____ pertains to the investment in personal 
property, including machinery and equipment, at the Project. The applicable personal property, and 
associated expenditures, are listed below: 

Personal Property Description Investment Amount 

All capitalized terms used but not defmed herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this __ day of ____ , 20_ 

Name: _______________ _ 
Its: _______________ _ _ 

C-1 
NPGVLI : 1938537.1 

Ordinance 2020-029 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-030 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 
AN AMENDMENT TO A FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, 
EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US PLASTICS INC. (FORMERLY IDENTIFIED 
BY THE COUNTY AS PROJECT AMMO), AND EUWE EUGEN WEXLER 
US REAL ESTATE INC. TO PROVIDE FOR AN EXTENSION OF THE 
INVESTMENT PERIOD THEREIN AND A GRANT OF ADDITIONAL 
SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 
TO PROVIDE FOR THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATED IN THE ALLIANCE INDUSTRIAL PARK FROM THE COUNTY 
TO PROJECT AMMO; APPROVING THE INCLUSION OF THE PROJECT 
IN A MULTI-COUNTY BUSINESS OR INDUSTRIAL PARK; AND OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its County 
Council (the "County Council") is authorized by Title 12 and Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively "Act"), and Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina 
Constitution (i) to enter into agreements with qualifying companies to encourage investment in projects 
constituting economic development property through which the economic development of the State of 
South Carolina (the "State") will be promoted by inducing new and existing manufacturing and 
commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize and employ manpower and other 
resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such industry to accept certain fee payments in lieu of ad 
valorem taxes ("PILOT") with respect to such investment ("PILOT Payments"); (iii) under Section 4-1-
170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended ("MCIP Act"), to create multi-county 
industrial parks with one or more contiguous counties and include certain properties therein, and, in its 
discretion, include within the boundaries of these parks the property of qualifying industries, and under 
the authority provided in the MCIP Act, the County has created previously a multi-county park with 
Greenville County, South Carolina ("Park"); (iv) to provide credits to qualifying companies to Offset 
qualifying infrastructure related expenditures pursuant to Sections 4-1-175, 4-29-68 and 12-44-70 of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended ("Infrastructure Credit Act"); and (v) to make and 
execute contracts of the type hereinafter described pursuant to Section 4-9-30 of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the County 
Council adopted on March 17, 2015 an inducement resolution (the "Inducement Resolution") and enacted 
on April 21 , 2015 an ordinance with respect to certain proposed investment by EUWE EUGEN WEXLER 
US PLASTICS INC., a South Carolina corporation ("Sponsor"), EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US REAL 
ESTATE INC., a South Carolina corporation ("Sponsor Affiliate"), along with one or more existing, or 
to-be-formed or acquired subsidiaries, or affiliated or related entities (collectively, the "Company") 
(formerly identified by the County as Project Ammo) and any Sponsor Affiliates (as defined under the 
Act and the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement (defined below)) that the Sponsor may designate and 
have the County approve herein or by future resolution (the "Company"), with respect to the design, 
acquisition, construction and equipping of a manufacturing facility in the County (collectively, the "20 15 
Project"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Resolution, the County entered into a PILOT Agreement 
with the Company dated April 21 , 2015 (the "2015 PILOT Agreement"), whereby the County provided 
therein for a payment of a fee- in-lieu-of taxes by the Company with respect to the Project, and provided 



for certain infrastructure credits to be claimed by the Company against certain payments of fees-in-lieu-of 
taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and 

WHEREAS, in 2020, the Company and the Sponsor Affiliate approached the County regarding 
its desire to expand the 2015 Project by making additional investments in the County which are expected 
to result in approximately $8 ,600,000 of new capital investment and the creation of 16 new full-time 
equivalent jobs, with benefits ("Expansion" and, together with the 2015 Project, the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project the Company has requested that the County authorize 
the transfer by the County of that certain parcel of real property of approximately 12.962 acres that is 
identified as Tax Map No. 1690011005 and which is more particularly described on Exhibit A hereto (the 
"Property"), to the Company; 

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a "project" and comprised of "economic development property" as 
such terms are defined in the Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the MCIP Act and the MCIP Agreement and as a further inducement to 
the Company to locate the Project in the County, the County desires to (i) locate the Project in the Park 
and ensure that the Project remains in the Park or in any other multi-county park created under the MCIP 
Act for no less than the term of the Fee Agreement and (ii) grant certain Infrastructure Credits against the 
Company's FILOT payments made to the County in connection with the Project for purposes of assisting 
the Company in paying for qualifying Infrastructure expenditures relating to the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the County Council desires to amend the FILOT Agreement to provide for 
additional infrastructure credits and provide for other provisions reflective of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the parties recognize and acknowledge that the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates 
would not otherwise undertake the Project in the County but for the delivery of the incentives as set forth 
herein; and 

WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the 
form of an Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement, attached hereto as 
Exhibit B ("Amended & Restated FILOT Agreement"), which is reflective of the Project and which the 
County proposes to execute and deliver; and 

WHEREAS, it appears that the Amended & Restated FILOT Agreement above referred to, which 
is now before this meeting, is in appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and 
delivered or approved by the County for the purposes intended. 

WHEREAS, the State' s Coordinating Council for Economic Development ("CCED") approved 
or will approve a monetary grant for the Project ' s benefit, specifically to offset some of the costs 
associated with the Project ("State Grant"), the funds of which will be received and administered by the 
County, or its affiliates, as grantee, for the benefit of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the parties recognize and acknowledge that the Company would not otherwise locate 
the Project in the County but for the delivery of the Incentives; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 
DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 

2 Ordinance 2020-030 
PPAB 5872198v4 



Section 1. Findings. The County hereby fmds and affirms, based on information provided by the 
Company: (i) the Expansion will benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, 
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; (ii) the Expansion gives 
rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality and to no charge against its 
general credit or taxing power; (iii) the purposes to be accomplished by the Expansion are proper 
governmental and public purposes; and (iv) the benefits of the Expansion to the public are greater than the 
costs to the public. 

Section 2. Authorization to Transfer the Property. The County hereby authorizes the County 
Administrator to transfer the Property to Project Ammo, its affiliates or assigns by deed for use in the 
Expansion pursuant to the terms of that certain Agreement to Purchase and Sell Land, attached hereto as 
Exhibit C. The County Administrator shall have authority to execute any and all legal documents, 
contracts, deeds or other items necessary to transfer the Property to Project Ammo. 

Section 3. Authorization to Execute and Deliver Amended & Restated Fee Agreement. The 
form, terms, and provisions of the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement (which includes the provision of 
Special Source Revenue Credits) presented to this meeting, attached hereto as Exhibit B and filed with 
the Clerk to County Council be and it is hereby approved, and all of the terms, provisions, and conditions 
thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement was set 
out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and the Clerk to County Council 
be and they are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, acknowledge, and deliver the 
Amended & Restated Fee Agreement in the name and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the 
Amended & Restated Fee Agreement to be delivered to the Company. The Amended & Restated Fee 
Agreement to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such 
changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder and as shall be 
approved by the officials of the County executing the sarile upon the advice of the County Attorney, their 
execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions 
therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 4. No Recapitulation Required. Pursuant to Section 12-44-55(B) of the PILOT Act, the 
County hereby agrees that no recapitulation information, as set forth in Section 12-44-55(A) of the PILOT 
Act is required to be provided by the Company in the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement, or in any 
other documents or agreements in connection with the fee-in-lieu of tax arrangement between the 
Company and the County, so long as the Company shall file a copy of the South Carolina Department of 
Revenue form PT-443, and any subsequent amendments thereto, and all filings required by the FILOT 
Act with the County after the execution of the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement by the County and 
the Company. 

Section 5. Grant Administration. The County shall administer the State Grant and immediately 
after receipt by the County and confirmation of the Company's compliance with the terms and conditions 
of the State Grant, shall provide the proceeds of the State Grant to the Company for the purposes set forth 
in the State Grant agreement. 

Section 6. Park Boundaries. The County Council agrees to include the Expansion in the Park 
and ensure that the Expansion remains in the Park or in any other multi-county park created under the 
MCIP Act for no less than the term of the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement. 

Section 7. Further Acts. The County Council authorizes the County Administrator, other 
County staff, and the County Attorney, along with any designees and agents who any of these officials 
deems necessary and proper, in the name of and on behalf of the County (each an "Authorized 
Individual"), to take whatever further actions, and enter into whatever further agreements, as any 

3 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5872198v4 



Authorized Individual deems to be reasonably necessary and prudent to effect the intent of this Ordinance 
and induce the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

Section 8. Indemnification. (a) The Company shall and, in the Amended & Restated Fee 
Agreement agrees to, indemnify, defend and save the County, as well as its employees, officers, agents 
and elected officials (hereinafter collectively the "Indemnified Parties") harmless against and from all 
claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, company or other entity arising from the conduct or 
management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project during the term of the Amended & 
Restated Fee Agreement, and the Company further shall indemnify, defend and save the Indemnified 
Parties harmless against and from all claims arising from any act, error or omission occUrring during the 
term of the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement from: (i) any condition of the Project, (ii) any breach or 
default on the part of the Company in the performance of any of its obligations under the Amended & 
Restated Fee Agreement, or any other agreement pertaining to the Project, (iii) any act of the Company or 
any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, related to the Project, or (iv) any act of 
any assignee or sublessee of the Company, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees 
of any assignee or sublessee of the Company, related to the Project, or (v) any environmental violation, 
condition or effect related to the Project. The Company shall indemnify, defend and save the Indemnified 
Parties harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim 
arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from 
an Indemnified Party, the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding, with 
counsel reasonably acceptable to the County. All such indemnification and save harmless provisions 
shall be, and are, set forth in the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Agreement, or the undertakings required of the 
County hereunder by reason of the performance of any act requests of it by the Company, or by reason of 
the operation of the Project by the Company, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in 
connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the 
Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Company shall 
indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, 
company or other legal entity, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the 
Company shall have the sole right and duty to assume, and shall assume, the defense thereof, at its 
expense, with full power to litigate, compromise, or settle the same in its sole discretion; provided the 
Company shall obtain the prior written consent of the County to settle any Sl.lCh claim unless such claim is 
for monetary damages for which the Company has the ability to, and does, pay. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if the Indemnified Party is the County, in the event the County reasonably believes there are · 
defenses available to it that are not being pursued or that the counsel engaged by the Company reasonably 
determines that a conflict of interest exists between the County and the Company, the County may, in its 
sole discretion, hire independent counsel to pursue its own defense, and the Company shall be liable for 
the reasonable cost of such counsel. 

(c) These indemnification covenants, at a rrurumum, shall be considered included in and 
incorporated by reference in subsequent documents after the closing which the County is requested to 
sign, and any other indemnification covenants in any subsequent documents shall not be construed to 
reduce or limit the above indemnification covenants, but may expand them or expound upon them, as may 
be shown in greater detail in such subsequent documents. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency, 
the indemnification, defense and save harmless provisions of the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement 
shall always govern. 

4 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5872198v4 



Section 9. Compliance. Whenever the County shall be required by any governmental or 
financial entity to file or produce any reports, notices, returns or other documents while the Amended & 
Restated Fee Agreement is in effect, the Company or owner of the Project at the time shall promptly 
furnish to the County through the County Attorney the completed form of such required documents 
together with a certification by the Company or owner that such documents are accurate and not in 
violation of any provisions of law or of the other documents of this transaction, and that the documents 
meet the legal requirements of such filing or delivery. In the event of the failure or refusal of the 
Company or owner to comply with this provision, the Company or owner agrees to pay the statement for 
attorneys fees and administrative time presented by the County for producing and filing such documents, 
such statement to be paid within thirty (30) days after presentation by the County, and to promptly pay 
any fees , penalties, assessments or damages imposed upon the County by reason of its failure to duly file 
or produce such documents. 

Section 10. Statutory Accommodation. Notwithstanding any other provisions, the County is 
executing the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement as statutory accommodation to assist the Company in 
achieving the intended benefits and purposes of the Act. The County has made no independent legal or 
factual investigation regarding the particulars of this transaction and it executes in reliance upon 
representations by the Company that the documents comply with all laws and regulations, particularly . 
those pertinent to industrial development projects in South Carolina. 

Section 11. General Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith 
are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 12. Severability. Should any part, provision, or term of this Ordinance be deemed 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding or 
determination shall not affect the rest and remainder of the Ordinance or any part, provision or term 
thereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

This Ordinance takes effect and is in full force only after the County Council has approved this 
Ordinance following three readings and a public hearing. 

5 Ordinance 2020-030 
PPAB 5872198v4 



(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

October 6, 2020 
November 12, 2020 
November 20, 2020 
November 20, 2020 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

6 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5872198v4 



EXHffiiT A 

Legal Description 

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, with any improvements thereon, situate, lying and 
being in the State of South Carolina, County of Anderson, Hopewell Township, and being 
designated as 12.962 acres on that certain plat by F & S Surveyors Engineers & Planners, Inc. , 
dated April 29, 2015 , recorded May 6, 2015 in Plat Book S2174, Page 0007, in the office of the 
ROD for Anderson County. Reference to said plat is craved for a more complete description, 
with all measurements being a little more or less. 

This being a portion of the same property conveyed to Anderson County, South Carolina by deed 
ofBrookfield Associates Limited Partnership, dated February 2, 2015, and recorded February 3, 
2015 in Book 11694, page 24, in the office ofthe ROD for Anderson County. 

TMS# 169-00-11-005-000 

7 Ordinance 2020-030 
PPAB 5872 198v4 



EXHffiiTB 

Amended & Restated Fee Agreement 

[Attached] 

8 Ordinance 2020-030 
PPAB 5872198v4 



EXHIDITC 

AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE AND SELL LAND 

[Attached] 

9 Ordinance 2020-030 
PPAB 5872198v4 



AMENDED & RESTATED 

FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT 

BY AND AMONG 

EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US PLASTICS INC., AS SPONSOR 

AND 

EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US REAL ESTATE INC., AS SPONSOR AFFILIATE 

AND 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Originally dated as of April21, 2015 

Amended & Restated as of November 20, 2020 

PREPARED BY: 

PARKER POE ADAMS & BERNSTEIN LLP 
1221 MAIN STREET, SUITE 1100 

COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29201 
(803) 255-8000 



Section 1.1 

Section 2.1 
Section 2.2 

Section 3.1 
Section 3.2 
Section 3.3 
Section 3.4 
Section 3.5 
Section 3.6 
Section 3.7 
Section 3.8 
Section 3.9 
Section 3.10 
Section 3.11 
Section 3.12 
Section 3.13 
Section 3.14 
Section 3.15 
Section 3.16 
Section 3.17 
Section 3.18 
Section 3.19 
Section 3.20 
Section 3.21 

Section 4.1 
Section 4.2 
Section 4.3 
Section 4.4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Page 

Terms ........ ...... .................. ...... .... ...... .... ............ ..... ..... ... .. ..... ..... .... ...... .... ...... ................. 2 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Representations of the County .. ... ...... ......................................................... ..... ............. 5 
Representations of the Company and Sponsor Affiliates .................................... .. ....... 5 

ARTICLE III 
FILOT PAYMENTS 

Negotiated Payments ........ .. ..... ........ ....... ....... ... .. .. ... .......... ...... ...................... ......... ........ 5 
Special Source Revenue Credit .. ............................. .. ...................... . , .. .............. .. .......... 7 
PILOT Payments on Replacement Property .................... .. ............ .. .......... .. ...... .... .... .. . 7 
Reductions in Payments of Taxes Upon Removal, Condemnation or Casualty .......... 8 
Place and Allocation of FILOT Payments .. ................................ .. .... .. .... .. ...... .... .. .. .. .. .. 8 
Removal of Equipment .... .. .......... ........ ... ..... .......... ... .... .... .... ........................... .............. 8 
Damage or Destruction of Project.. ........ .. .... .... .. .. .... .. ...................... .. ........................... 8 
Condemnation ... ..... ......... ............... ....... ..... .... ....... .... ..................................................... 9. 
Maintenance of Existence .............. .. ......... .... ........ .. .. .. ...... ...... ..... ................ ................. 9 
Confidentiality/Limitation on Access to Project .. .......................... .. .............. .. .. .... ...... . 9 
Addition of Sponsor Affiliates ... ........... .......................... .... ....... .... .............................. 10 
Assignment and Subletting ........ ....... ................................. ...... ......... .. .... .. ....... .... .. ... .... 10 
Events of Default ....... ....... ....... .... ... ....... ................... ...................... ....... .. ....... ...... .. ..... 10 
Remedies on Default ... .. ... ...... .. ...... ... ..... ...... ... .... ..................... ...... .... ... ..... ....... .. ... .. .... 11 
Collection of PILOT Payments ........ .. .... .... .... .. .... .. ...... .. .................. .. .......... .. .. .. ........ . 11 
Remedies Not Exclusive ...... .................. .. ...... ....... .......... .............. ................................ 11 
Leased Equipment ... ........ ..... ... ....................... ........ ... .... .... ..... .. ... .. ........ ... .... ............. ... 11 
Waiver of Recapitulation Requirements .. .. .. ............ .. .. .. .............. .. ............................. 10 
Fiscal Year; Property Tax Year .. ............ .. .................... .... .................... .. .................... . 12 
Reports; Filings ...... ... ........... .... ........................ ......... ................ ... ... ..... ..... ....... ....... .... 12 
Payment of Administrative Expenses .. .. .... .. ...................................................... .. ........ 12 

ARTICLE N 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Notices ... ............ .. ...... .... .... ................... ....... ......... ........ ... ... ........ ................... ............... 12 
Binding Effect ... .... .... ....... ......................... .. ... ....... .... ....................... ....... ......... ...... ... ... 13 
Counterparts .... ....... .... .. .... ...... ..... .. ...... ..... .... ......... ............... ... .. ...... ..... ..... ....... .... ....... 14 
Governing Law ........ ................................... ......... ...... ......... .... ..... ....... ..... ..... ....... ....... .. 14 

Ordinance 2020-030 



Section 4.5 
Section 4.6 
Section 4.7 
Section 4.8 
Section 4.9 

Headings oooooo o ooooooooooooooooooooo o oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo o o o oooOOo0000 0 000000000 0 00 0 00000000 000 00000 14 

Amendments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 

Further Assurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 

Severability 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 

Limited Obligation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 

11 Ordinance 2020-030 



AMENDED & RESTATED FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT 

THIS AMENDED & RESTATED FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT 
("Fee Agreement") originally made and entered into as of April21 , 2015 and amended and restated as of 
November 20, 2020, by and between Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina ("State"), acting by and through the 
Anderson County Council ("County Council") as the governing body of the County, EUWE EUGEN 
WEXLER US PLASTICS INC. , a South Carolina corporation, along with affiliated or related entities, 
and assigns, as Sponsor (collectively, "Company") (formerly identified by the County as Project Ammo), 
and EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US REAL ESTATE INC. , a South Carolina corporation, as Sponsor 
Affiliate ("Sponsor Affiliate") (hereinafter, the County, the Company, and the Sponsor Affiliate are 
referred to individually as a "Party" and, collectively, as "Parties"). 

WITNESSETH: 

(a) The County acting by and through its County Council is authorized by Title 12 and Chapter 
44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively "Act"), and Article VIII, 
Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (i) to enter into agreements with qualifying companies to 
encourage investment in projects constituting economic development property through which the 
economic development of the State will be promoted by inducing new and existing manufacturing and 
commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize and employ manpower and other 
resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such industry to accept certain fee payments in lieu of ad 
valorem taxes ("PILOT") with respect to such investment; (iii) under Section 4-1-170 of the Code of 
Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended ("MCIP Act"), to create multi-county industrial parks with one 
or more contiguous counties and include certain properties therein, and, in its discretion, include within 
the boundaries of these parks the property of qualifying industries, and under the authority provided in the 
MCIP Act, the County has created previously a multi-county park with Greenville County, South 
Carolina ("Park"); (iv) to provide credits to qualifying companies to offset qualifying infrastructure 
related expenditures pursuant to Sections 4-1-175, 4-29-68 and 12-44-70 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended ("Infrastructure Credit Act"); and (v) to make and execute contracts of the 
type hereinafter described pursuant to Section 4-9-30 of the Code; and 

(b) Pursuant to the Act, the County has determined that (i) the Project (as defmed herein) will 
benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other 
public benefits not otherwise provided locally; (ii) the Project will not give rise to any pecuniary liability 
of the County or any incorporated municipality or to any charge against any of their general credit or 
taxing power; (iii) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public 
purposes; and (iv) the benefits of the Project to the public will be greater than the costs to the public; and 

(c) Pursuant to the Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the County Council 
adopted on March 17, 2015 an inducement resolution (the "Inducement Resolution") and enacted on 
April 21 , 2015 an ordinance with respect to certain proposed investment by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates (as defined under the Act and the Amended & Restated Fee Agreement (defmed 
below)) that the Sponsor may designate and have the County approve herein or by future resolution, with 
respect to the design, acquisition, construction and equipping of a manufacturing facility in the County 
(collectively, the "2015 Project"); and 

(d) Pursuant to the Inducement Resolution, the County entered into a PILOT Agreement with the 
Company and the Sponsor Affiliate dated April 21, 2015 (the "2015 PILOT Agreement"), whereby the 
County provided therein for a payment of a fee- in-lieu-of taxes by the Company with respect to the 

Ordinance 2020-030 



Project, and provided for certain infrastructure credits to be claimed by the Company against certain 
payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi
County Park Act and the Company committed to invest $11 ,125,000 in new capital investment ("20 15 
Investment Commitment") in the County and to create at least forty-five new, full-time equivalent jobs 
("20 15 Jobs Commitment"); and 

(e) As of December 31 , 2019, the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates have invested more than 
$20,000,000 and created over 100 new full-time equivalent jobs in the County, surpassing the 2015 
Investment Commitment and 2015 Jobs Commitment; and 

(f) In 2020, the Company and the Sponsor Affiliate approached the County regarding its desire to 
expand the 2015 Project by making additional investments in the County which are expected to result in 
approximately $8,600,000 of new capital investment and the creation of approximately 16 new full-time 
equivalent jobs, with benefits ("Expansion" and, together with the 2015 Project, the "Project"); and 

(g) Pursuant to County Council Ordinance No. 2020-030 adopted November 20, 2020, ("Fee 
Amendment Ordinance"), authorized (i) the execution and delivery of this Amended & Restated Fee 
Agreement with the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates, (ii) the grant of certain revised Special Source 
Revenue Credits (defined below) in amounts as more fully described in this Amended and Restated Fee 
Agreement, and (iii) the extension of the Investment Period (defmed below) by five years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows, with the understanding that no 
obligation of the County described herein shall create a pecuniary liability or charge upon its general 
credit or taxing powers, but shall be payable solely out of the sources of payment described herein and 
shall not under any circumstances be deemed to constitute a general obligation to the County: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Terms. The terms defined in this Article shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement 
have the meaning herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

''Chair" means the Chair of the County Council. 

"Clerk of County Council" means the Clerk to the County Council. 

"Code" means the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended. 

"Commencement Date" means the earlier of: (a) the last day of the first property tax year during 
which Economic Development Property (defined below) is placed in service; or (b) the last day of the 
property tax year that is three years from the year in which the Parties entered into this Fee Agreement. 

"County" means Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and political 
subdivision of the State of South Carolina, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the Anderson 
County Council as the governing body of the County. 

"County Council" means the Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

"Department" means the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

2 Ordinance 2020-030 



"Diminution of Value" in respect of any Phase of the Project means any reduction in the value 
based on original fair market value as determined in Step 1 of Section 3.1 of this Fee Agreement, of the 
items which constitute a part of the Phase which may be caused by (i) the Company' s removal of 
equipment pursuant to Section 3.6 of this Fee Agreement, (ii) a casualty to the Phase of the Project, or any 
part thereof, described in Section 3.7 of this Fee Agreement, or (iii) a condemnation to the Phase of the 
Project, or any part thereof, described in Section 3.8 of this Fee Agreement. 

"Economic Development Property" means all items of real and tangible personal property 
comprising the Project which qualify as economic development property under the Act, become subject to 
this Fee Agreement, and which are identified by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate in 
connection with its annual filing of a SCDOR PT -100, PT -300 or comparable forms with the Department 
(as such filing may be amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period, as that 
period may be extended by subsequent, formal action of County Council, or automatically as permitted 
under the Act or under this Fee Agreement. Title to all Economic Development Property shall at all times 
remain vested in the Company and, as applicable, in the Sponsor Affiliate, except as may be necessary to 
take advantage of the effect of Section 12-44-160 of the Act. 

"Equipment" means all of the machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures , together with any and 
all additions, accessions, replacements and substitutions thereto or therefor acquired by the Company and, 
as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, during the Investment Period as a part of the Project. 

"Event of Default" means any Event of Default specified in Section 3.13 of this Fee Agreement. 

"Fee Term" or "Term" means the period from the date of delivery of this Fee Agreement until the 
last Phase Termination Date unless sooner terminated or extended pursuant to the terms of this Fee 
Agreement. 

"PILOT" means fee in lieu of ad valorem tax(es) . 

"PILOT Payment(s)" means the payment(s) in lieu of ad valorem tax(es) which the Company 
and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, is obligated to pay to the County. 

"Improvements" mean improvements, together with any and all additions, accessions, 
replacements and substitutions thereto or therefor acquired by the Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate, during the Investment Period as part of the Project. 

"Investment" shall mean that amount set forth in the recitals of this Fee Agreement and shall 
include but not be limited to (i) taxable and non-taxable capital expenditures, without regard to 
depreciation, which are made by the Company or the Sponsor Affiliate towards or for the benefit of the 
Project; (ii) capital expenditures, whether considered Economic Development Property or non-Economic 
Development Property, without regard to the depreciation, which are made by the Company or the 
Sponsor Affiliate towards or for the benefit of the Project, regardless of the source of payment of such 
expenditures; (iii) the value of any assets leased by the Company or the Sponsor Affiliate, without regard 
to the depreciation, regardless of the source of payment of such expenditures so long as the value of such 
leased assets are reported by the Company or the Sponsor Affiliate on their respective SCDOR PT-100 or 
PT-300; and (iv) any other expenditures made by the Company or the Sponsor Affiliate that the County 
and the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, may mutually agree upon in a writing that is 
executed by an authorized representative of the Company and the County Administrator. The Investment 
for purposes of the Investment stated herein shall include those expenditures made by both the Company 
and the Sponsor Affiliate prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

3 Ordinance 2020-030 



"Investment Period" means the period beginning with the first day that Economic Development 
Property is purchased or acquired and ending ten years after the Commencement Date. The minimum 
investment must be completed within ten years of the Commencement Date. The Investment Period is 
expected to end December 31, 2026. Pursuant to Section 12-44-30(13) of the Act, the County may, at its 
discretion, extend this period. 

"Jobs" shall be further defined as any new, full-time jobs created by the Company and the 
Sponsor Affiliate. 

"Minimum Investment" shall have the meaning given to such term under Section 12-44-
30(14) of the FILOT Simplification Act. 

"Phase" or "Phases" in respect to the Project means the Equipment, Improvements and Real 
Property, if any, placed in service during each year of the Investment Period, as extended. 

"Phase Termination Date" means with respect to each Phase of the Project the day thirty-nine 
years after each such Phase of the Project becomes subject to the terms of this Fee Agreement. Anything 
contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the last Phase Termination Date shall be no later than 
December 31 of the year of the expiration of the thirty-ninth full calendar year, after the Commencement 
Date. 

"Project" means the Equipment, Improvements, and Real Property, together with the acquisition, 
construction, installation, design and engineering thereof, in phases. 

"Real Property" means the real property upon which any part of the Project is to be constructed 
and expanded, as described in Exhibit A attached hereto and as supplemented from time to time, together 
with all and singular the rights, members, hereditaments and appurtenances belonging or in any way 
incident or appertaining thereto acquired or constructed by the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor 
Affiliate; all Improvements now or hereafter situated thereon; and all fixtures now or hereafter attached 
thereto, but only to the extent such Improvements and fixtures are deemed to become part of the Project 
under the terms of this Fee Agreement. 

"Removed Components" means the following types of components or Phases of the Project or 
portions thereof, all of which the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, 
shall be entitled to remove from the Project with the result that the same shall no longer be subject to the 
terms of the Fee Agreement: (a) components or Phases of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, in their sole discretion, determine to be inadequate, 

· obsolete, worn-out, uneconomic, damaged, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary; or (b) components or 
Phases of the Project or portions thereof which the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, in 
their sole discretion, elect to remove pursuant to Section 3.7(c) or Section 3.8(b)(iii) of this Fee 
Agreement. 

"Replacement Property" means any property which is placed in service as a replacement for any 
item of Equipment or any Improvement which is scrapped or sold by the Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate and treated as a Removed Component under Section 3.6 hereof regardless of whether 
such property serves the same function as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether more than 
one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement. 

"Sponsor Affiliate" means an affiliate that joins with or is an affiliate of the Company, including 
Euwe Eugen Wexler US Real Estate Inc., whose Investment with respect to the Project shall be 

4 Ordinance 2020-030 



considered part of the Investment and qualify for FILOT Payments pursuant to Section 3.1 hereof and 
Sections 12-44-30(A) and 12-44-130 of the Act. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
is deemed to include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such 
agreement or document. 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1 Representations of the County. The County hereby represents and warrants to the 
Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State which acts 
through the County Council as its governing body and by the provisions of the Act is authorized and 
empowered to enter into the transactions contemplated by this Fee Agreement and to carry out its 
obligations hereunder. The County has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement 
and any and all other agreements described herein or therein. 

(b) The Project constitutes a "project" within the meaning of the Act. 

(c) By due corporate action, the County has agreed that, subject to compliance with applicable 
laws, each item of real and tangible personal property comprising the Project shall be considered 
Economic Development Property under the Act. 

Section 2.2 Representations of the Company and Sponsor Affiliate. The Company and Sponsor 
Affiliate hereby represent and warrant to the County as follows : 

(a) The Company and the Sponsor Affiliate are corporate entities, duly organized and in good 
standing under the laws of the State of South Carolina, and each has the power to enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

(b) The Company's and the Sponsor Affiliate' s execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement 
and their compliance with the provisions hereof do not result in a default, not waived or cured, under any 
Company or Sponsor Affiliate restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Company or the 
Sponsor Affiliate are now a party or by which they are bound. 

(c) The Company and Sponsor Affiliate intend to operate the Project as a "project" within the 
meaning of the Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company and Sponsor Affiliate intend to operate 
the Project for such purposes as permitted under the Act, as the Company may deem appropriate. 

(d) The availability of the FILOT and the allowance of Special Source Revenue Credits, with 
regard to the Economic Development Property authorized by the Act, along with other incentives 
provided by the County, have induced the Company and the Sponsor Affiliate to undertake the Project in 
the County. 

ARTICLE III 
FILOT PAYMENTS 

Section 3.1 Negotiated Payments . 

5 Ordinance 2020-030 



(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the Act, the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor 
Affiliate, are required to make PILOT Payments on all Economic Development Property comprising the 
Project and placed in service, as follows: (i) the Company shall make PILOT Payments in lieu of ad 
valorem taxes with respect to each Phase of the Project placed in service on or before each December 31 
within the Investment Period. 

(b) The amount of such annual PILOT Payments shall be determined by the following procedure: 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Phase of the Project placed in service in any 
given year for such year and for the following 39 years, unless extended by the Parties 
in accordance with the Act, using original income tax basis for State income tax 
purposes for any real property (provided, if real property is constructed for the fee or is 
purchased in an arms-length transaction, fair market value is deemed to equal the 
original income tax basis, otherwise, the Department will determine fair market value 
by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes less 
depreciation for each year allowable to the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor 
Affiliate, for any personal property as determined in accordance with Title 12 of the 
Code, as amended and in effect on December 31 of the year in which each Phase 
becomes subject to the Fee Agreement, except that no extraordinary obsolescence shall 
be allowable but taking into account all applicable property tax exemptions which 
would be allowed to Company under State law, if the property were taxable, except 
those exemptions specifically disallowed under Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the Act, as 
amended and in effect on December 31 of the year in which each Phase becomes 
subject to the Fee Agreement. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of 6.0% to the fair market value as determined for each year 
in Step 1 to establish the taxable value of each Phase of the Project in the year it is 
placed in service and in each of the thirty-nine years thereafter or such longer period of 
years that the annual fee payment is permitted to be made by the Company and, as 
applicable, by the Sponsor Affiliate, under the Act. 

Step 3: Multiply the taxable value determined in the preceding step by a millage rate equal to 
309.5 mills, which is believed to be that rate in effect on June 30, 2014 for all taxing 
entities for the Project site (which millage rate shall be a fixed rate for the term of this 
Fee Agreement), to determine the amount of the PILOT Payments which would be due 
in each year of the Fee Term on the payment dates prescribed by the County for such 
payments for a total of forty ( 40) years for each item of eligible Project property, or 
such longer period of years that the annual fee payment is permitted to be made by the 
Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, under the Act. 

Step 4: With respect to the initial twenty (20) annual PILOT Payments paid to the County, the 
County shall subtract from the PILOT Payment to be invoiced to the Company an 
amount equal to the value of the annual Special Source Revenue Credits as further 
defmed under Section 3.2 of this Fee Agreement. 

(c) The County shall ensure that the Project is incorporated and will remain in the Park during 
the Fee Term. If, for any reason, the Park Agreement is modified, or otherwise terminated, then the 
County shall ensure that the Project shall be immediately placed into another multi-county park 
arrangement established pursuant to the MCIP Act, to which the County is party and that would enable 
the Sponsor and any Sponsor Affiliate receive the benefits afforded by having the Project incorporated 
into a Park. 

6 Ordinance 2020-030 



(d) In the event that the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate do not 
cumulatively maintain the Minimum Investment in the Project, the portions of the Project 
previously subject to the PILOT shall revert prospectively to normal ad valorem tax treatment, 
taking into account and calculating appropriate reductions for all applicable exemptions and 
allowable depreciation permitted by law. 

(e) In the event that the Act and/or the above-described PILOT Payments or Special Source 
Revenue Credits are declared invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties 
express their intentions that such payments and this Fee Agreement be reformed so as to most closely 
effectuate the legal, valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and, as 
applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, with the benefits to be derived hereunder. If the Project is deemed to be 
subject to ad valorem taxation, the payment in lieu of ad valorem taxes to be paid to the County by the 
Company shall become equal to the amount which would result from taxes levied on the Project by the 
County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other political units as if the 
Project was and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act. In such event, any amount 
determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company, as the case may be, with respect to a 
year or years for which payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes have been previously remitted by the 
Company to the County hereunder, shall be reduced by the total amount of payments in lieu of ad 
valorem taxes made by the Company with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof, and further 
reduced by any abatements provided by law. 

Section 3.2 Special Source Revenue Credit. As an inducement for the Investment and in 
accordance with Section 12-44-70 of the Act, the County grants to the Company, and, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliate, a Special Source Revenue Credit ("SSRC") in accordance with the schedule attached 
hereto as Exhibit C. 

With respect to the SSRC, the County shall automatically reflect the SSRC against the PILOT 
Payment on those PILOT invoices provided by the County to the Company and the Sponsor Affiliate. 
The Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, shall be permitted to utilize the SSRC to offset 
any qualifying expenditures as provided under the Code. 

The Company and Sponsor Affiliate shall use the SSRC to pay for or reimburse itself for eligible 
expenditures ("Cost of Infrastructure"), which includes the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, 
improving, or expanding the infrastructure serving the Real Property. Prior to the first year' s SSRC to be 
credited against the Company's PILOT Payments as provided in this Section 3.2, the Company shall 
certify the cumulative total amount of the Cost of the Infrastructure as of December 31 of the year to 
which such PILOT Payments relate. For example, should the Company elect to apply the SSRC against 
its 2015 fee in lieu of tax bill (which would be due and payable on or before January 15, 20 16), the 
Company shall certify the cumulative total amount of the Cost of the Infrastructure as of December 31 , 
2014. The form of such certification is attached hereto as Exhibit "B". The Company shall re-certify the 
cumulative amount of the Cost of the Infrastructure if, in any year in which an SSRC is to be applied, the 
cumulative amount of the SSRCs will exceed the cumulative amount of the Cost of Infrastructure as 
previously certified. 

The Company shall not claim or be entitled to any abatement of ad valorem property taxes to which it 
might otherwise be entitled with respect to any property for which an SSRC is provided by the County. 

Section 3.3 FILOT Payments on Replacement Property. If the Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate, elect to replace any Removed Components and to substitute such Removed 
Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Project, then, pursuant and subject to Section 12-

7 Ordinance 2020-030 



44-60 of the Act, the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, shall make statutory payments in 
lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard to such Replacement Property as follows : 

(a) to the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property ("Replacement Value") is 
less than or equal to the original income tax basis of the Removed Components ("Original Value") the 
amount of the FILOT Payments to be made by the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, 
with respect to such Replacement Property, shall be calculated in accordance with Section 3.1 hereof; 
provided, however, in making such calculations, the original cost to be used in Step 1 of Section 3.1 shall 
be equal to the lesser of (x) the Replacement Value or (y) the Original Value, and the number of annual 
payments to be made with respect to the Replacement Property shall be equal to thirty (30) (or, if greater, 
the maximum number of years for which the annual fee payments are available to the Company and, as 
applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, for each portion of the Project under the Act, as amended) minus the 
number of annual payments which have been made with respect to the oldest Removed Components 
disposed of in the same property tax year as the Replacement Property is placed in service; and 

(b) to the extent that the Replacement Value exceeds the Original Value of the Removed 
Components ("Excess Value"), the FILOT Payments to be made by the Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate, with respect to the Excess Value, shall be equal to the payment that would be due if the 
property were not Economic Development Property. 

Section 3.4 Reductions in Payments of Taxes Upon Removal, Condemnation or Casualty. In 
the event of a Diminution in Value of any Phase of the Project after the Investment Period and during the 
remainder of the Fee Term, the payment in lieu of taxes with regard to that Phase of the Project shall be 
reduced in the same proportion as the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair 
market value of that Phase of the Project as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 3.1 hereof. 

Section 3.5 Place and Allocation of FILOT Payments. The Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate, shall make the above-described FILOT Payments directly to the County in accordance 
with applicable law as to payment, collection and enforcement of FILOT Payments. FILOT Payments are 
to be allocated in accordance with the Act. 

Section 3.6 Removal of Equipment. Subject always to Section 3.3, the Company and, as 
applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, shall be entitled to remove the following types of components or Phases 
of the Project from the Project with the result that said components or Phases ("Removed Components") 
shall no longer be considered a part of the Project and shall no longer be subject to the terms of this Fee 
Agreement: (a) components or Phases which become subject to statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem 
taxes; (b) components or Phases of the Project or portions thereof which the Company, and, as applicable, 
the Sponsor Affiliate, in their sole discretion, determine to be inadequate, obsolete, uneconomic, worn
out, damaged, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary; or (c) components or Phases of the Project or 
portions thereof which the Company, and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, in their sole discretion, 
elect to remove pursuant to Section 3.7(c) or Section 3.8(b)(iii) hereof. 

Section 3. 7 Damage or Destruction of Project. 

(a) Election to Terminate. In the event the Project is damaged by fire, explosion, or any other 
casualty, the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, shall be entitled to terminate this Fee 
Agreement. 

(b) Election to Rebuild. In the event the Project is damaged by fire , explosion, or any other 
casualty, and if the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, do not elect to terminate this Fee 
Agreement, the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate may, in their sole discretion, 

8 Ordinance 2020-030 



commence to restore the Project with such reductions or enlargements in the scope of the Project, 
changes, alterations and modifications (including the substitution and addition of other property) as may 
be desired by the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate. All such restorations and 
replacements shall be considered substitutions of the destroyed portions of the Project and shall be 
considered part of the Project for all purposes hereof, including, but not limited to, any amounts due by 
the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, to the County under Section 3.1 hereof, to the 
extent allowed by the Act. 

(c) Election to Remove. In the event the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, elect 
not to terminate this Fee Agreement pursuant to subsection (a) and elects not to rebuild pursuant to 
subsection (b), the damaged portions of the Project shall be treated as Removed Components. 

Section 3.8 Condemnation. 

(a) Complete Taking. If, at any time during the Fee Term, title to or temporary use of the entire 
Project should become vested in a public or quasi-public authority by virtue of the exercise of a taking by 
condemnation, inverse condemnation or the right of eminent domain, or by voluntary transfer under threat 
of such taking, or in the event that title to a portion of the Project shall be taken rendering continued 
occupancy of the Project commercially infeasible in the judgment of the Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate, then the Company or the Sponsor Affiliate (with respect to its Project property only) 
shall have the option to terminate this Fee Agreement as of the time of vesting of title by sending written 
notice to the County within a reasonable period of time following such vesting. 

(b) Partial Taking. In the event of a partial taking of the Project or transfer in lieu thereof, the 
Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, may elect: (i) to terminate this Fee Agreement (with 
respect to its Project property only); (ii) to repair and restore the Project, with such reductions or 
enlargements in the scope of the Project, changes, alterations and modifications (including the 
substitution and addition of other property) as may be desired by the Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate; or (iii) to treat the portions of the Project so taken as Removed Components. 

Section 3.9 Maintenance of Existence. The Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate 
agree (i) that they shall not take any action which will materially impair the maintenance of their 
corporate existence and (ii) that they will maintain their good standing under all applicable provisions of 
State law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any changes in the corporate existence of the Company or, as 
applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, that result from internal restructuring or reorganization of the Company 
or, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, or their parents are specifically authorized hereunder; and further, 
subject to the provisions of Section 3 .13( d) hereof, the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate 
are entitled to cease operations of the Project at any time without that cessation constituting an Event of 
Default under this Fee Agreement. Likewise, benefits granted to the Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate, under this Fee Agreement shall, in the event of any such restructuring or 
reorganization, be transferred to the successor entity under the provisions of Section 3.12 hereof. Such 
transfers to a successor entity substantially similar in nature and function to the Company and, as 
applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, are specifically approved and authorized by the County without any 
further action by the County Council. 

Section 3.10 Confidentiality/Limitation on Access to Project. The County acknowledges and 
understands that the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, utilize confidential and 
proprietary "state-of-the-art" information and data in their operations, and that a disclosure of any 
information, including, but not limited to, disclosures of financial or other information concerning the 
Company's operations and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate's operations, could result in substantial 
harm to them and could thereby have a significant detrimental impact on their employees and also upon 

9 Ordinance 2020-030 



the County. Therefore, the County agrees that, except as required by law and pursuant to the County's 
police powers, neither the County nor any employee, agent or contractor of the County: (i) shall request 
or be entitled to receive any such confidential or proprietary information; (ii) shall request or be entitled 
to inspect the Project or any property associated therewith; provided, however, that if an Event of Default 
shall have occurred and be continuing hereunder, the County shall be entitled to' inspect the Project 
provided they shall comply with the remaining provisions of this Section; or (iii) shall knowingly and 
intentionally disclose or otherwise divulge any such confidential or proprietary information to any other 
person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so by 
State law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, whenever the County shall be required by any governmental or 
financial entity to file or produce any reports, notices, returns or other documents while the Fee 
Agreement is in effect, the Company or owner of the Project at the time shall promptly furnish to the 
County through the County Attorney the completed form of such required documents together with a 
certification by the Company or owner that such documents are accurate and not in violation of any 
provisions of law or of the other documents of this transaction, and that the documents meet the legal 
requirements of such filing or delivery. In the event of the failure or refusal of the Company or owner to 
comply with this provision, the Compariy or owner agrees to pay the statement for attorneys fees and 
administrative time presented by the County for producing and filing such documents, such statement to 
be paid within thirty (30) days after presentation by the County, and to promptly pay any fees, penalties, 
assessments or damages imposed upon the County by reason of its failure to duly file or produce such 
documents. Prior to disclosing any confidential or proprietary information or allowing inspections of the 
Project or any property associated therewith, the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, may 
require the execution of reasonable, individual, confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements by any 
officers, employees or agents of the County or any supporting or cooperating governmental agencies who 
would gather, receive or review such information or conduct or review the results of any inspections. 

Section 3.11 Addition of Sponsor Affiliates. Upon request of and at the expense of the 
Company, the County may approve any future Sponsor Affiliate that qualifies under the Act for the 
benefits offered under this Fee Agreement and which agrees to be bound by the provisions hereof. 

Section 3.12 Assignment and Subletting. This Fee Agreement may be assigned in whole or in 
part and the Project may be subleased as a whole or in part by the Company and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Mfiliate, so long as such assignment or sublease is made in compliance with Section 12-44-120 
of the Act. To the extent any consent of the County for such assignment or sublease is required by the 
Act and requested, the County may grant such consent by adoption of a Resolution, not to be 
unreasonably withheld. 

Section 3.13 Events of Default. The following are "Events of Default" under this Fee 
Agreement, and the term "Events of Default" means, whenever used with reference to this Fee 
Agreement, any one or more of the following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, to make, upon levy, the 
PILOT Payments described in Section 3.1 hereof; provided, however, that the Company or, as applicable, 
the Sponsor Mfiliate, shall be entitled to all redemption rights for non-payment of taxes granted by 
applicable statutes; or 

(b) Failure of the Company or, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, to make payment of any 
other amounts payable to the County under the Agreement, of which default has not been cured within 
ninety (90) days of written notice of nonpayment from the County. 

(c) Failure by the Company or, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, to perform any of the other 
material terms, conditions, obligations or covenants of the Company or, as applicable, the Sponsor 

10 Ordinance 2020-030 



Affiliate hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of ninety (90) days after written notice from 
the County to the Company or, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, specifying such failure and requesting 
that it be remedied, unless the County shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its 
expiration. 

Section 3.14 Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred and 
shall be continuing, the County, after having given written notice to the Company or, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate, of such default and after the expiration of a ninety (90) day cure period shall have the 
option to take any one or more of the following remedial actions: 

(a) Terminate the Fee Agreement; or 

(b) Take whatever action at law or in equity that may appear necessary or desirable to collect the 
other amounts due and thereafter to become due or to enforce performance and observance of any 
obligation, agreement or covenant of the Company or, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate; under this Fee 
Agreement. 

(c) With respect to the SSRC, the exclusive remedy shall be set forth in Section 3.2 of this Fee 
Agreement. 

Section 3.15 Collection of FILOT Payments. In addition to all other remedies herein 
provided, the nonpayment of FILOT Payments shall constitute a lien on the Project for tax purposes as 
provided in Section ~ 2-44-90 of the Act. In this regard, and notwithstanding anything in this Agreement 
to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies provided by general law (including Title 12, 
Chapter 49, of the Code) relating to the enforced collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT . 
Payments due hereunder. 

Section 3.16 Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the County 
under this Fee Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each 
and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other lawful remedy now or 
hereafter existing. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any continuing 
default hereunder shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but 
any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 
In order to entitle the County to exercise any remedy reserved to it, it shall not be necessary to give 
notice, other than such notice as may be herein expressly required and such notice required at law or 
equity which the Company is not competent to waive. 

Section 3.17 Leased Equipment. To the extent that applicable law allows or is revised or 
construed to allow the benefits of the Act, in the form of Fll-OT Payments as described in Section 3.1 
hereof, to be applicable to personal property to be installed at the Project and leased to but not purchased 
by the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, from at least one third party, under any form of 
lease, then that personal property, at the Company's or Sponsor Affiliate 's sole election, will become 
subject to Fll-OT Payments to the same extent as the Equipment under this Fee Agreement, upon proper 
application of the law and applicable procedures by the Company, and, as applicable, the Sponsor 
Affiliate and so long as the value of such leased assets are reported by the Company or the Sponsor 
Affiliate, as applicable, on their respective SCDOR PT -100 or PT -300. 

Section 3.18 Waiver of Recapitulation Requirements. As permitted under Section 12-44-55 
of the Act, the Company and County hereby waive application of any of the recapitulation requirements 
as set forth in Section 12-44-55, to the extent that, and so long as, the Company provides the County with 
copies of all filings which the Company is required to make pursuant to the Act. 

11 Ordinance 2020-030 



Section 3.19 Fiscal Year; Property Tax Year. If the Company's and, as applicable, the 
Sponsor Affiliate ' s, fiscal year changes so as to cause a change in the Company' s property tax year, then 
the timing of the requirements of this Fee Agreement are automatically revised accordingly. 

Section 3.20 Reports; Filings. 

(a) Each year during the term of this Fee Agreement, the Company shall deliver to the Anderson 
County Auditor a copy of their most recent annual property tax returns filed with the Department with 
respect to the applicable portions of the Project. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Agreement, as well as a copy of the completed forms 
PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the Anderson County Auditor, the Anderson County Assessor 
and the Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 3.21 Payment of Administrative Expenses. The Company will reimburse, or cause 
reimbursement to, the County from time to time for reasonable and necessary amounts that are customary 
and standard, including reasonable attorney' s fees and costs, actually incurred, or that will be actually 
incurred, by the County with respect to the County's fulfillment of its obligations under the Fee 
Agreement and other related documents ("Transaction Documents") in the implementation of its terms 
and provisions ("Administrative Expenses"). The Company will make such reimbursement of 
Administrative Expenses upon written request therefor, but in no event later than sixty (60) days after 
receiving written notice from the County specifying the nature of such expense and requesting the 
payment of the same. The County acknowledges that it imposes no charges in the nature of impact fees 
or recurring fees in connection with the incentives authorized by the Transaction Documents, and, aside 
from reasonable attorneys' fees set forth below, or as may be necessitated in the future by request of the 
Company pertaining to matters outside of the immediate scope of this Agreement, the County anticipates 
(but cannot guarantee) that no out of pocket expenses in connection with the Transaction Documents and 
the transactions authorized hereby should arise in the future . The parties understand that counsel to the 
County may invoice the Company for those expenses related to the review of the Transaction Documents 
and all resolutions, ordinances and other documentation related thereto in an amount not to exceed $ 
5,000.00. 

Section 3.22 Miscellaneous Incentives. The County shall provide for the following miscellaneous 
incentives: (i) the waiver of any County-controlled sewer impact fees for the Project up to $50,000; (ii) 
the waiver of any County-controlled building code and other County applicable fees for the Project up to 
$50,000; (iii) and a dedicated County liaison to assist the Company and the Sponsor Affiliate with all 
locational, permitting and startup matters in connection with the Project and with ongoing existing 
business support services provided by the County 

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 4.1 Notices. Any notice, election, demand, request or other communication to be 
provided under this Fee Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or three 
business days after deposited with the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or addressed to such other address as any party shall 
have previously furnished in writing to the other party), except where the terms hereof require receipt 
rather than sending of any notice, in which case such provision shall control: 

AS TO THE COUNTY: Anderson County, South Carolina 

12 Ordinance 2020-030 



WITH A COPY TO: 
(shall not constitute notice) 

AS TO THE COMPANY: 

AS TO SPONSOR 
AFFILIATE: 

WITH A COPY TO: 
(shall not constitute notice) 

ATTN: Rusty Barns 
County Administrator 
101 South Main Street 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29621 
Telephone: + 1 (864) 260-4062 
Facsimile: + 1 (864) 260-4356 
Email: rbums@andersoncountysc.org 

Anderson County, South Carolina 
ATTN: Leon Harmon 
County Attorney 
101 South Main Street 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29621 
Telephone: + 1 (864) 222-2123 
Facsimile: +1 (864) 833-1665 
Email: lharmon@andersoncountysc.org 

EuWe EUGEN WEXLER US Plastics Inc. 
ATTN: Kevin Smith, Vice President of Finance & Administration 
1 71 Alliance Pkwy 
Williamston, SC 29697 
Telephone: 1 (864) 760 - 6310 
Email : k.smith@euwe.com 

Eu We EUGEN WEXLER US Real Estate Inc. 
ATTN: Kevin Smith, Vice President of Finance & Administration 
1 71 Alliance Pkwy 
Williamston, SC 29697 
Telephone: 1 (864) 760 - 6310 
Email: k.smith@euwe.com 

Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP 
ATTN: Sam C. Moses, Esquire 
1221 Main Street, Suite 1 i 00 
Columbia, South Carolina 29202 
Telephone: (803) 255-8000 
Facsimile: (803) 255-8017 
Email: sammoses@parkerooe.com 

Section 4.2 Binding Effect. This Fee Agreement is binding, in accordance with its terms, upon 
and inure to the benefit of the Company, the Sponsor Affiliate and the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns, to the extent allowed by law. In the event of the dissolution of the County or the 
consolidation of any part of the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of 
the County to any other such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises and 
agreements of this Fee Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from 
time to time and any entity, officer, board, commission, agency or instrumentality to whom or to which 
any power or duty of the County has been transferred. 

13 Ordinance 2020-030 



Section 4.3 Counterparts. This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
and all of the counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 4.4 Governing Law. This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection 
herewith shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 4.5 Headings . The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are 
inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 4.6 Amendments. The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or 
amended in writing by an agreement or agreements lawfully entered into between the parties. 

Section 4.7 Further Assurance. From time to time, and at the Company's and Sponsor 
Affiliate ' s expense, the County agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and Sponsor Affiliate such 
additional instruments as either may reasonably request to effectuate the purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 4.8 Severability. If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and such illegal, 
invalid or unenforceable provision shall be reformed so as to most closely effectuate the legal, valid and 
enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company, and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, with 
the maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company 
and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, the strong inducement to locate the Project in the County. 

Section 4.9 Limited Obligation. NEITHER THE PROJECT NOR THE NEGOTIATION, 
EXECUTION, DELIVERY OR IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS FEE AGREEMENT SHALL GIVE 
RISE TO ANY PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COUNTY OR ANY IN CORPORA TED 
MUNICIPALITY NOR TO ANY CHARGE AGAINST THEIR GENERAL CREDIT OR TAXING 
POWER. 

Section 4.10 Indemnification. (a) The Company shall indemnify, defend and save the 
County, as well as its employees, officers, agents and elected officials (hereinafter collectively the 
"Indemnified Parties") harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, company 
or other entity arising from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project 
during the term of the Fee Agreement, and the Company further shall indemnify, . defend and save the 
Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising from any act, error or omission occurring 
during the term of the Fee Agreement from: (i) any condition of the Project, (ii) any breach or default on 
the part of the Company in the performance of any of its obligations under the Fee Agreement, or any 
other agreement pertaining to the Project, (iii) any act of the Company or any of its agents, contractors, 
servants, employees or licensees, related to the Project, or (iv) any act of any assignee or sublessee of the 
Company, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or sublessee of 
the Company, related to the Project, or (v) any environmental violation, condition or effect related to the 
Project. The Company shall indemnify, defend and save the Indemnified Parties harmless from and 
against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising as aforesaid or in 
connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from an Indemnified Party, 
the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding, with counsel reasonably 
acceptable to the County. All such indemnification and save harmless provisions shall be, and are, set 
forth in the Fee Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties not incur 
pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Agreement, or the undertakings required of the County 
hereunder by reason of the performance of any act requests of it by the Company, or by reason of the 

14 Ordinance 2020-030 



operation of the Project by the Company, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in connection 
with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the 
Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Company shall 
indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, 
company or other legal entity, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the 
Company shall have the sole right and duty to assume, and shall assume, the defense thereof, at its 
expense, with full power to litigate, compromise, or settle the same in its sole discretion; provided the 
Company shall obtain the prior written consent of the County to settle any such claim unless such claim is 
for monetary damages for which the Company has the ability to, and does, pay. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if the Indemnified Party is the County, in the event the County reasonably believes there are 
defenses available to it that are not being pursued or that the counsel engaged by the Company reasonably 
determines that a conflict of interest exists between the County and the Company, the County may, in its 
sole discretion, hire independent counsel to pursue its own defense, and the Company shall be liable for 
the reasonable cost of such counsel. 

(c) These indemnification covenants, at a minimum, shall be considered included in and incorporated 
by reference in subsequent documents after the closing which the County is requested to sign, and any 
other indemnification covenants in any subsequent documents shall not be construed to reduce or limit the 
above indemnification covenants, but may expand them or expound upon them, as may be shown in 
greater detail in such subsequent documents. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency, the 
indemnification, defense and save harmless provisions of the Fee Agreement shall always govern. 

[signatures on following pages] 

15 Ordinance 2020-030 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council and the 
County Administrator and to be attested by the Clerk to County Council; the Company and the Sponsor 
Affiliate have caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day 
and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

16 Ordinance 2020-030 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council and the 
County Administrator and to be attested by the Clerk to County Council; the Company and the Sponsor 
Affiliate have caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day 
and year first above written. 

EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US PLASTICS INC. 

BY __________________________ _ 

ITS ________________________ _ 

17 Ordinance 2020-030 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council and the 
County Administrator and to be attested by the Clerk to County Council; the Company and the Sponsor 
Affiliate have caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day 
and year first above written. 

EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US REAL ESTATE 
INC. 

BY __________________________ _ 

ITS ________________________ ___ 

18 Ordinance 2020-030 



EXHffiiTA 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, with any improvements thereon, situate, lying and 
being in the State of South Carolina, County of Anderson, Hopewell Township, and being 
designated as 12.016 acres on a plat entitled "Plat of2 Parcels of Land, 12.571 Ac & 12.407 Ac. , 
Alliance Park surveyed at the request of Eugen Wexler" by F & S Surveyors Engineers & 
Planners, Inc., dated April 29, 2015, recorded May 6, 2015 in Plat Book S2174, Page 0007, in 
the office of the ROD for Anderson County. Reference to said plat is craved for a more complete 
description, with all measurements being a little more or less. 

This being a portion fo the same property conveyed to Anderson County m South Carolina by 
deed of Brookfield Associates Limited Parnership, dated Febraury 2, 2015, and recorded Fbruary 
3, 2015 in Book 11694, page 24, in the office of the ROD for Anderson County. 

TMS No. 169-00-11-029 

AND 

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, with any improvements thereon, situate, lying and 
being in the State of South Carolina, County of Anderson, Hopewell Township, and being 
designated as 12.962 acres on a plat entitled "Plat of2 Parcels of Land, 12.571 Ac & 12.407 Ac., 
Alliance Park surveyed at the request of Eugen Wexler" by F & S Surveyors Engineers & 
Planners, Inc. , dated April 29, 2015, recorded May 6, 2015 in Plat Book S2174, Page 0007, in 
the office of the ROD for Anderson County. Reference to said plat is craved for a more complete 
description, with all measurements being a little more or less. 

This being a portion fo the same property conveyed to Anderson County m South Carolina by 
deed of Brookfield Associates Limited Pamership, dated Febraury 2, 2015, and recorded Fbruary 
3, 2015 in Book 11694, page 24, in the office of the ROD for Anderson County. 

TMS No. 169-00-11-005 

19 Ordinance 2020-030 



EXHIBIT "B" 

CERTIFICATE AS TO CUMULATIVE INVESTMENT IN 
COST OF INFRASTRUCTURE 

EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US PLASTICS INC. 
EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US REAL ESTATE INC. 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 

CERTIFICATE AS TO CUMULATIVE 
INVESTMENT IN COST OF THE 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

I, , the authorized officer of the undersigned company (the 
"Company''), do hereby certify that as of , __ , the Company 
has invested $ in the Costs of Infrastructure at the Project, as such 
terms are defined in the Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement by 
and among EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US PLASTICS INC., as Sponsor, EUWE EUGEN 
WEXLER US REAL ESTATE INC., as Sponsor Affiliate, and Anderson County, South 
Carolina dated as ofNovember 20, 2020. 

rN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal as of the __ day of 

EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US PLASTICS INC. 

BY: -------
NAME: _____ _ 
TITLE: _____ _ 

20 Ordinance 2020-030 



EXHffiiT C - Schedule of SSRC Benefits 

SSRC Term Year Associated Tax SSRC Benefit 
Year 

1 2017* 90% 
2 2018 90% 
3 2019 90% 
4 2020 90%** 
5 2021 90% 
6 2022 90% 
7 2023 80% 
8 2024 80% 
9 2025 80% 
10 2026 80% 
11 2027 50% 
12 2028 50% 
13 2029 50% 
14 2030 50% 
15 2031 50% 
16 2032 50% 
17 2033 50% 
18 2034 50% 
19 2035 50% 
20 2036 50% 

* Under the terms of the 2015 PILOT Agreement, the Company elected to take its first year of SSRC 
Benefits in tax year 2017, rendering tax year 2017 "year 1" under the 2015 PILOT Agreement. For more 
details, see 20 15 PILOT Agreement. 

**Under the terms of the 2015 PILOT Agreement, the County granted Company an SSRC of 90% for 
"years 1-4" and an SSRC of 80% for "years 5-1 0" and an SSRC of 50% for "years 11-20." With respect 
to the Amended & Restated PILOT Agreement, the County and the Company have agreed to an extension 
of the 90% credit for two additional years. For more details, see 2015 PILOT Agreement. 

21 Ordinance 2020-030 



AGREEMENTTOPURCHASEANDSELLLAND 

BY AND BETWEEN 

ANDERSON COUNTY ("SELLER"), 

AND 

EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US REAL ESTATE INC. ("BUYER") 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Pa e 

SECTION 1 : SALE OF THE PROPERT¥. ...... ..... ... ..... ........ ......... .... ... .... .... ... ........................ 3 

SECTION 2: EARNEST MONEY .......................... .. .................... ........... .... .......... .... ... ... .. .... .... 3 

SECTION 3 : PURCHASE PRICE. ......... ..... ....... ............. ....... ....... ... .. ... ...... .. .. ......... ................ . .4 

SECTION 4: COSTS AND PRORATIONS ... .. ... ... ................ ............ ... ...... .. ..... ..... .... ... ........ ... .4 

SECTION 5 : TITLE AND SURVEY .......... ...... ..... .... ..... .... ....... ..... ................ .... ........... ... ..... .... .4 

SECTION 6: CLOSING .. ............... ..... ..... ... .......... ... ....... .......... ... ..... ...... .. ... .... ................ ..... ....... 5 

SECTION 7 : CONDITIONS TO BUYER'S OBLIGATIONS ........ .... .. .... .......... ..... .. ... ... ....... 7 

SECTION 8 : INSPECTION .... .... ........... .... ...................... ....... ..... .... .. ..... .. .................... .............. 7 

SECTION 9 : SELLER' S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ......... ... .. ...... ... ........ 7 

SECTION 10: EMINENT DOMAIN ..... .. ... ....... .... ......... .... ... ... ........ .................... ...... ..... ....... .... 8 

SECTION 11 : NOTICES ... ........ .... .. .. ..... ...... ... .... .... ... ... ........ .... ............. .... .. ... ..... .... .... ............... 9 

SECTION 12: REMEDIES ..... ...... .... ...... ........ ...... ... ...... ......... .... .. ... ....... ........... .... .. .... .... ..... .. ... lO 

SECTION 13 : MISCELLANEOUS ......... ....... ... ...... .... .... ..... ......... .... ................ ..... ..... ..... ... .. ... 1 0 

EXHffiiTA 

EXHmiTB 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL AGREEMENT 

2 Ordinance 2020-030 
PPAB 5936792v3 



AGREEMENTTOPURCHASEANDSELLLAND 

THIS AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE AND SELL LAND ("Agreement") is made as 
of , 2020 ("Effective Date") by and among ANDERSON COUNTY ("Seller") and 
EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US REAL ESTATE INC. ("Buyer"). 

A. Seller owns the Property; and 

B. Seller has agreed to sell and Buyer has agreed to buy the Property, all on the terms 
hereinafter set forth. 

IN CONSIDERATION of the agreements contained herein and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Seller agrees to sell 
and Buyer agrees to purchase the Property for the Purchase Price and subject to the terms and 
conditions hereinafter set forth. 

SECTION 1: SALE OF THE PROPERTY 

1.1 Property. The property which is the subject of this Agreement is the approximately 12. 
acres of land, more or less, located in Alliance Park in Anderson County, South Carolina, which is a 
portion of the property described in Exhibit A ("Land"), the exact boundaries and acreage to be 
determined by the survey referred to in Section 1.2 below, together with all rights, hereditaments, and 
appurtenances thereto belonging or appertaining, all rights of ingress and egress to and from the Land, all 
rights of Seller in any roads, streets, rights of way or easements affecting or bounding the Land, all rights 
to any sanitary sewer capacity, drainage, water or other facilities benefitting or pertaining to the Land, and 
all improvements and fixtures located thereon (collectively, the "Property"). 

1.2 Survey. The exact acreage and description of the Property shall be determined by a 
survey to be prepared at Buyer's expense by a surveyor selected by Buyer ("Survey"). After the Survey 
is completed, Exhibit A hereto shall be deemed to be replaced by a new Exhibit A containing a legal 
description based on the Survey, and, thereafter, the new legal description shall be the legal description of 
the Land for all purposes relating to this Agreement. The Survey shall certify to the nearest hundredth of 
an acre, the number of acres included in the Land. 

SECTION 2: EARNEST MONEY 

2.1 Deposit of Earnest Money. Within five (5) business days after the Effective Date, 
Buyer will deposit in escrow with an escrow agent selected by Buyer ("Escrow Agent") One Thousand 
Dollars ($1 ,000) in earnest money. The earnest money (including any interest thereon, collectively, the 
"Earnest Money") shall be disbursed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

2.2 Disbursement of Earnest Money. If under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
Seller is entitled to payment of the Earnest Money, then not earlier than five (5) business days following 
written notice to Buyer and Escrow Agent by Seller, Escrow Agent shall notify Buyer of its intent to 
disburse the Earnest Money to Seller and thereafter, any and all Earnest Money previously deposited with 
Escrow Agent shall be disbursed to Seller. If under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Buyer is 
entitled to a refund of the Earnest Money, then, not later than five (5) business days following written 
notice to Seller and Escrow Agent by Buyer, Escrow Agent shall notify Seller of its intent to disburse the 
Earnest Money to Buyer and thereafter, any and all Earnest Money previously deposited with Escrow 

3 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



Agent shall be disbursed to Buyer. If the Closing occurs, then the Earnest Money shall, at Buyer' s 
option, be applied as a credit to Buyer against the Purchase Price or returned to Buyer. The foregoing 
notwithstanding, if the Escrow Agent receives notice of a dispute from either party, it shall not disburse 
the Earnest Money until it receives a written release from each party. "Refund the Earnest Money" 
shall mean the Escrow Agent shall promptly return the Earnest Money to Buyer (less $10.00 which will 
be forwarded to Seller as consideration for this Agreement), this Agreement shall no longer have any 
force or effect, and neither party shall have any further rights or liabilities hereunder except as set forth in 
Section 14.8. 

2.3 Rights of Escrow Agent. Upon receipt of the Earnest Money, Escrow Agent shall 
promptly deposit the same into a non-interest bearing escrow account with such bank as Escrow 
Agent may select (the "Depository"). Purchaser and Seller hereby acknowledge that the Escrow 
Agent shall have no liability to any party on account of its failure to disburse the Earnest Money in 
the event of an unresolved dispute as to which party is entitled to receive the same. In the event of 
any dispute as to who is entitled to receive the Earnest Money and interest earned thereon, Escrow 
Agent shall have the right, at its sole election, either to retain the funds and disburse them in 
accordance with the final order of a court of competent jurisdiction or to deposit the Earnest Money 
with said court, pending a final decision of such controversy. The parties hereto further agree that 
Escrow Agent shall not be liable for failure of the Depository and shall only be liable otherwise in 
the event of its gross negligence or willful misconduct. Seller acknowledges and agrees that Buyer 
may elect to use its counsel as Escrow Agent, and in the event Buyer's counsel does act as Escrow 
Agent, Buyer's counsel shall not be precluded from representing Buyer in connection with the 
acquisition of the Property or any other matter arising in connection with this Agreement, including 
without limitation, any dispute. 

SECTION 3: PURCHASE PRICE 

The purchase price ("Purchase Price") of the Property shall be Three Hundred Sixty-Five 
Thousand Five Hundred and no/100 Dollars ($365 ,500). The Purchase Price shall be paid at Closing by: 
(i) official bank check issued by a national bank; or (ii) bank wire transfer. 

SECTION 4: COSTS AND PRORATIONS 

4.1 Closing Costs. Seller shall pay for all deed taxes and transfer taxes applicable to this 
transaction. Buyer shall pay for, the cost of the Survey, the costs of title examination, title insurance 
premiums and recording the deed. Each party shall pay its own attorney's fees. 

4.2 Taxes. Ad valorem real property taxes for the Property for the year in which the Closing 
occurs shall be prorated as of the Closing Date and Seller' s prorated share shall be credited to Buyer 
towards the Purchase Price at Closing. Seller shall pay all other unpaid assessments, late listing penalties 
and prior years ' ad valorem property taxes, including any "roll-back" or "deferred" taxes, on or before the 
Closing Date, in connection with the Property. If the current year' s taxes and/or other applicable 
assessments have not been determined at the time of Closing, the proration shall be based upon the 
previous year' s taxes and/or assessments, and Buyer and Seller shall adjust between themselves any 
difference in the estimated and actual tax prorations within thirty (30) days after the actual tax statements 
for the Property for the year of Closing have been received. 

SECTION 5: TITLE AND SURVEY 

4 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



5.1 Title Commitment; Permitted Exceptions. During the Inspection Period, Buyer shall 
obtain at its expense from a title insurance company of Buyer's choice ("Title Company") a current 
ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance ("Title Commitment") issued by the Title Company. With the 
exception of Unpermitted Exceptions, as defined in Section 5.2 below, any title encumbrances, 
exceptions or other matters which are set forth in the Title Commitment shall be deemed to be permitted 
exceptions to the status of Seller's title (such encumbrances, exceptions or other matters, (excluding 
Unpermitted Exceptions) together with only such other matters which are approved by Buyer in writing, 
shall be referred to as the "Permitted Exceptions"). 

5.2 Unpermitted Exceptions. Any matters affecting the title to the Property which arise 
after the Effective Date of the Title Commitment which are not approved in writing by Buyer shall be 
known as "Unpermitted Exceptions". Additionally, each financial encumbrance such as a mortgage, 
deed of trust, or other debt security, attachment, judgment, lien for delinquent taxes, mechanic ' s or 
materialmen's lien, and each other monetary lien or encumbrance which is outstanding against the 
Property, or any part thereof (collectively, "Financial Encumbrances"), shall automatically, and without 
any requirement for Buyer to provide notice thereof to Seller, be deemed an Unpermitted Exception. Any 
Financial Encumbrance which encumbers: (i) any access easement, right of way, or other easement 
appurtenant to the Property; or (ii) any declaration of restrictions or similar document which benefits or 
burdens the Property shall also be deemed an Unpermitted Exception until it is subordinated to the 
declaration, access easement, right of way, or other easement appurtenant to the Property. Seller hereby 
covenants to remove from or satisfy on the public record any and all Unpermitted Exceptions on or before 
the Closing Date. 

5.3 Seller Deliveries. Within five (5) days of the Effective Date, Seller shall deliver to 
Buyer the following items if such items are in Seller's possession or control: 

(a) Survey. A copy of the most recent survey of the Property. 

(b) Title Policy. A copy of Seller's existing title insurance policy insuring title to 
the Property and any title reports related thereto. 

(c) Reports . Copies of any environmental, geotechnical, market or other reports 
relating to the Property. 

(d) Notices . Copies of any condemnation (actual or proposed), tax or other 
governmental notices relating to the Property. 

If prior to Closing, Seller receives any additional such items, or any updates or replacements of 
such items, then Seller shall provide copies of same to Buyer within three (3) business days of Seller's 
receipt thereof, but not later than Closing. 

SECTION 6: CLOSING 

6.1 Closing Date. Unless otherwise agreed to by Buyer and Seller, the consummation of the 
purchase and sale of the Property ("Closing") shall be held at the office of Buyer's counsel, no later than 
at 5:00 p.m. on the date ("Closing Date") which is the later of: (i) fifteen (15) days after the end of the 
Inspection Period; or (ii) the fifteenth (15th) day after satisfaction of each of the conditions set forth in 
Section 7 below; unless extended pursuant to the express terms of this Agreement. 

6.2 Items to be Delivered at Closing. 

5 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



(a) By Seller. At Closing, Seller shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to Buyer, or, 
if applicable to the Title Company, each of the following items: 

(b) 

(i) A General Warranty Deed duly executed and acknowledged by Seller 
sufficient to convey to Buyer good , marketable and insurable fee simple 
title to the Property free and clear of all liens and encumbrances except 
for the Permitted Exceptions. 

(ii) An owner' s affidavit regarding liens, or other affidavit of title reasonably 
requested by Title Company to issue a title insurance policy respecting 
the Property without exception for mechanic's or materialmen's liens, 
other statutory liens, or for rights of parties in possession. 

(iii) Appropriate evidence, reasonably acceptable to Title Company and 
Buyer, to establish that Seller has the authority to consummate the 
transaction contemplated by this Agreement. 

(iv) A form 1099. 

(v) A duly executed Closing statement. 

(vi) Seller's duly executed certificate of reaffirmation, confirming that the 
representations and warranties of Seller contained in this Agreement are 
true and correct as of the Closing Date. 

(vii) Affidavit(s) of consideration necessary to record the Deed and South 
Carolina withholding tax affidavit and, if withholding is required by 
applicable law, sufficient funds shall be withheld and paid to the South 
Carolina Tax Commission to satisfy all withholding requirements. 

(viii) Other items reasonably necessary, appropriate or required by law to 
consummate and evidence the transaction contemplated by this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, resolutions, and/or such other 
customary evidences of authority as may be applicable. 

By Buyer. 
items: 

At Closing Buyer shall deliver to Seller each of the following 

(i) The net cash portion of the Purchase Price due to Seller after accounting 
for all applicable credits and prorations set forth in this Agreement. 

(ii) Such additional funds as may be necessary to cover Buyer' s share of the 
Closing costs and prorations set forth in this Agreement. 

(iii) A duly executed Closing statement. 

(iv) Appropriate evidence, reasonably acceptable to Title Company and 
Seller, to establish that Buyer has the authority to consummate the 
transaction contemplated by this Agreement. 

(v) Other items reasonably necessary, appropriate or required by law to 

6 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



consummate and evidence the transaction contemplated by this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, resolutions, certificates of 
existence, certified copies of bylaws, operating Agreements, and/or such 
other customary evidences of authority as may be applicable. 

SECTION 7: CONDITIONS TO BUYER'S OBLIGATIONS 

Each of the following obligations must be met by Seller or waived by Buyer in writing prior to 
Closing: 

7.1 Incentives Contingency. Buyer' s obligation to close the purchase of the Property under 
this Agreement is contingent upon Buyer being able to secure on terms acceptable to Buyer written 
binding commitments for economic development incentives from both the State of South Carolina, the 
Seller and other incentive granting organizations for the Buyer's planned project at the Property. 

If the foregoing condition is not satisfied on or before the Closing Date, then Buyer shall have the 
right (but not the obligation) to terminate this Agreement at any time thereafter and Escrow Agent shall 
refund the Earnest Money. 

SECTION 8: INSPECTION 

8.1 Right of Entry. Buyer, its employees, agents and contractors shall have the right during 
the term of this Agreement to go upon the Property to conduct soil borings and other geological and 
wetlands studies, to conduct the survey and any environmental, topographical and landscaping tests or 
studies, and to conduct any other tests or examinations deemed necessary by Buyer. Buyer covenants and 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Seller from any and all loss, liability, costs, claims, demands, 
damages, actions, causes of action, or suits caused by Buyer in exercising its rights under this section, 
except to the extent that any such loss, liability, costs, claims, demands, damages, actions, causes of 
action or suits are caused by Seller' s negligence or willful misconduct and except to the extent any such 
loss is limited to the reasonable cutting of and incidental damage to trees and bushes required to perform 
such tests or studies. 

8.2 Inspection Period. If Buyer is unsatisfied with the results of its inspections or for any 
other reason, or for no reason, Buyer may terminate this Agreement at any time on or before the 
expiration of forty-five ( 45) days following the Effective Date (the "Inspection Period") by delivery of 
written notice of termination to Seller prior to the termination of the Inspection Period, in which case 
Escrow Agent shall Refund the Earnest Money. Buyer' s failure to terminate during the Inspection Period 
shall not constitute a waiver of any condition precedent to Closing or any other obligation of Seller 
hereunder. The Buyer may accelerate the expiration of the Inspection Period by providing to the Seller 
notice of same. 

SECTION 9: SELLER'S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

As of the Effective Date and as of the date of Closing, Seller represents and warrants to Buyer 
that: 

9.1 Title. Seller owns fee simple title to the Property; 

9.2 No Violations. Performance of this Agreement is not prohibited by and will not cause 
default under any other Agreement, covenant, document or instrument to which Seller is a party; 

7 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



9.3 Condemnation. There are no pending or threatened condemnation proceedings against 
the Property; 

9.4 No Other Contracts; Liens. Seller has not entered into any other contract or Agreement 
of sale with reference to the Property and neither Seller nor the Property are subject to any claim, demand, 
suit, unfiled lien, proceeding or litigation of any kind, pending or outstanding, or, to the knowledge of 
Seller, threatened which would in any way be binding upon Buyer or its successors or assigns or affect or 
limit the Intended Use or Buyer' s or its successors ' or assigns ' enjoyment of the Property or which would 
limit or restrict in any way Seller's right or ability to enter into this Agreement and consummate the sale 
and purchase contemplated hereby; 

9.5 Right-of-Way. The Property abuts and adjoins public rights-of-way which are publicly 
maintained roads. 

9.6 Survival. All representations and warranties of Seller contained in this Agreement shall 
be true as of the Closing Date as though such representations and warranties were made at such time, 
shall be a condition to Buyer' s obligations hereunder and shall survive Closing. 

9. 7 Parties in Possession. There are no parties in possession of any portion of this Property 
under unrecorded leases or otherwise. 

9.8 Environmental Matters. Seller has not used, and to Seller' s actual knowledge, no 
portion of the Property has ever been used as a landfill or as a dump to receive garbage, refuse, 
waste, or fill material whether or not hazardous, and there are and have been no Hazardous 
Substances (as hereinafter defined) stored, handled, installed, released or disposed in, on or about 
the Property, except in compliance with all applicable environmental laws. As used in this 
agreement, the term "Hazardous Substances" means such materials, waste, contaminates or other 
substances defined as toxic, dangerous to health or otherwise hazardous by reference to the 
following sources as amended from time to time: (i) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
of 1976, 42 USC §6901 et seq. ("RCRA"); (ii) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 
USC § 1801 , et seq. ; (iii) the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability 
Act of 1980, 42 USC §9601 et. seq. ("CERCLA"); (iv) applicable environmental laws of the 
jurisdiction where the Property is located, and (v) any federal, state or local statutes, regulations, 
ordinances, rules or orders issued or promulgated under or pursuant to any of those laws by any 
department, agency or other administrative, regulatory or judicial body. 

SECTION 10: EMINENT DOMAIN 

If, after the Effective Date and prior to Closing, Seller shall receive notice of the commencement 
or threatened commencement of eminent domain or other like proceedings against the Property or any 
portion thereof, Seller shall immediately notify Buyer in writing, and Buyer shall elect within thirty (30) 
days from and after such notice, by written notice to Seller, to either: (a) terminate this Agreement, 
whereupon Escrow Agent shall Refund the Earnest Money, or (b) close the transaction contemplated 
hereby but subject to such proceedings, in which event the Purchase Price shall remain the same and 
Seller shall transfer and assign to Buyer at Closing all condemnation proceeds and rights to additional 
condemnation proceeds, if any. If Buyer elects to purchase after receipt of such a notice, all actions taken 
by Seller with regard to such eminent domain proceedings, including but not limited to, negotiations, 
litigation, settlement, appraisals, and appeals, shall be subject to the prior written approval of Buyer. If 

8 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



Buyer does not make such election within the aforesaid time period, Buyer shall be deemed to have 
elected to close the transaction contemplated hereby in accordance with clause (b) above. 

SECTION 11 : NOTICES 

Any notice or other communications required, permitted, or contemplated by this Agreement 
must be in writing and shall be either (a) sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested and shall be deemed delivered three (3) business days after being 
deposited in the United States mail addressed as hereinafter provided; (b) sent by overnight delivery using 
a nationally recognized overnight courier, in which case it shall be deemed delivered one (1) business day 
after deposit with such courier; (c) sent by telefax, in which case notice shall be deemed delivered upon 
confirmed transmission of such notice, provided that a hard copy of the facsimile transmission is also 
forwarded as set forth in (a) , (b) or (d) of this subsection; or (d) sent by personal delivery. In addition to 
the foregoing, a telefax copy of any notice sent in accordance with (a), (b) or (d) shall also be given on the 
day such notice is given or delivered. Either party may change its address by giving the other party five 
(5) days advance written notice of such change. For the purposes of notice, the addresses of the parties 
shall be as follows : 

If to Seller: 

With copies to: 

If to Buyer: 

Anderson County, South Carolina 
ATTN: Rusty Barns 
County Administrator 
1 01 South Main Street 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29621 
Telephone: + 1 (864) 260-4062 
Facsimile: + 1 (864) 260-4356 
Email: rbums@andersoncountysc.org 

Anderson County, South Carolina 
A TIN: Leon Harmon 
County Attorney 
101 South Main Street 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29621 
Telephone: + 1 (864) 222-2123 
Facsimile: + 1 (864) 833-1665 
Email: lharmon@andersoncountysc.org 

Eu We EUGEN WEXLER US Real Estate Inc. 
ATTN: Kevin Smith, Vice President of 
Finance & Administration 
1 71 Alliance Pkwy 
Williamston, SC 29697 
Telephone: 1 (864) 760-6310 
Email: k.smith@euwe.com 

9 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



With copies to: Parker, Poe, Adams & Bernstein LLP 
ATTN: Sam Moses, Esq. 
1221 Main Street, Suite 1100 
Columbia, SC 29202 
Phone: + 1 (803) 253-6842 
Fax: + 1 (803) 255-8017 

Email: sammoses@parkerpoe.com 

SECTION 12: REMEDIES 

If Seller is not in default of this Agreement and if, following written notice of default (including, 
without limitation, Buyer's failure to timely deposit any Earnest Money) to Buyer and Buyer's failure to 
cure such default within ten (1 0) days following receipt of such written notice, this transaction fails to 
close by reason of Buyer's failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, then the Earnest 
Money shall be paid by Escrow Agent to Seller as full liquidated damages, the parties hereby 
acknowledging and agreeing that the amount of Seller' s actual damages in such circumstance would be 
difficult, if not impossible, to determine. Such payment of Earnest Money shall be the sole and exclusive 
remedy of Seller. If Buyer is not in default of this Agreement and if Seller fails or refuses to convey the 
Property in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or otherwise fails to perform its obligations 
hereunder, following written notice of default to Seller and Seller's failure to cure such default within ten 
(1 0) days following receipt of such written notice, then Buyer shall have the right to either: (i) terminate 
this Agreement and receive a refund of the Earnest Money; or (ii) obtain specific performance of this 
Agreement; or (iii) exercise any other remedy at law or in equity. 

SECTION 13: MISCELLANEOUS 

13.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties and 
may not be amended except by written instrument executed by Buyer and Seller. Escrow Agent shall not 
be a necessary party to amendments to this Agreement, but such amendments shall not adversely affect or 
impair the rights or duties of Escrow Agent hereunder. 

13.2 Headings. The section headings herein are inserted for convenience only and are in no 
way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the scope or content of this Agreement or any 
provision hereof. 

13.3 Possession. Seller shall deliver exclusive possession of the Property at Closing. 

13.4 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of South Carolina. 

13.5 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. Buyer may assign all or any portion of 
its rights under this Agreement. If more than one person shall sign this Agreement as a Seller, then each 
person so signing shall be jointly and severally liable. 

13.6 Brokerage Services. Buyer and Seller each represent and warrant to the other that such 
party has not employed a real estate broker or real estate agent in connection with the transaction 
contemplated hereby. 

10 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



13.7 Exhibits. The exhibits referred to in and attached to this Agreement are incorporated 
herein in full by reference. 

13.8 Surviving Clauses. The provisions of this Agreement relating to Seller's obligation to 
re-prorate taxes after Closing, Seller' s representations and warranties, and Buyer' s indemnification with 
respect to its entering upon the Property prior to Closing, shall survive any Closing pursuant to this 
Agreement or any termination of this Agreement by either party as a matter of right hereunder or in 
breach of this Agreement, notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement to the contrary. 

13.9 Risk of Loss. The risk of any loss or damage occurring on or to the Property prior to 
Closing shall be borne by Seller. 

13.10 Holidays, Weekends. If the time period by which any right, option or election provided 
for in this Agreement must be exercised, or by which any act required hereunder must be performed, or 
by which Closing must be held, expires on a Saturday, Sunday or federal or national bank holiday, then 
such time period shall be automatically extended to and through the next day which is not a Saturday, 
Sunday or federal or national bank holiday. 

13.11 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and it 
shall not be necessary for more than one party to execute any one counterpart, provided that each party 
shall have executed at least one counterpart. Faxed signatures shall constitute originals. 

[SIGNATURES AND NOTARIES ON FOLLOWING PAGES} 

11 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have set their hands and seals hereto as of the day 
and year indicated next to their signatures. 

Date signed by Buyer: 

Date signed by Seller: 

ATTEST: 

Lacey Croegaert 

Anderson County Clerk to Council 

BUYER: 

EUWE EUGEN WEXLER US REAL ESTATE INC. 

By: _______________ _ 

its: ------------------------------------

SELLER: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: ________________ _ 

12 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 

Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, with any improvements thereon, situate, lying and being in 
the State of South Carolina, County of Anderson, Hopewell Township, and being designated as 12.962 
acres on a plat entitled "Plat of 2 Parcels of Land, 12.571 Ac & 12.407 Ac. , Alliance Park surveyed at the 
request of Eugen Wexler" by F & S Surveyors Engineers & Planners, Inc., dated April 29, 2015, recorded 
May 6, 2015 in Plat Book S2174, Page 0007, in the office of the ROD for Anderson County. Reference to 
said plat is craved for a more complete description, with all measurements being a little more or less. 

This being a portion fo the same property conveyed to Anderson County m South Carolina by deed of 
Brookfield Associates Limited Parnership, dated Febraury 2, 2015, and recorded Fbruary 3, 2015 in Book 
11694, page 24, in the office of the ROD for Anderson County. 

TMS No. 169-00-11-005 

13 Ordinance 2020-030 
PP AB 5936792v3 



Ordinance #2020-015 

Ordinance #2020-0 15 
Page 1 of 3 

Liberty Highway 

An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone+/- 141.81 acres from 1-2 (Industrial Park District) 
to R-8 (Single Family Residential) on a parcel of land, identified as Liberty 
Highway in the Five Forks Precinct shown in Deed Book 5026 page 00281. The 
parcel is further identified as TMS #119-00-17 -026. 

Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its County 
Council (the "County Council") has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the "Ordinance") , 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the "Map"); 
and, 

Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 

Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from 1-2 to R-8 for +/- 141.81 acres of TMS # 119-00-17-026 described 
above; and, 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on June 9, 2020, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning from 
to 1-2 to R-8 +/- 141.81 acres ofTMS # 119-00-17-026 described above; and, 

Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on November 12, 2020, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map: 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Ordinance #2020-015 
Page 2 of 3 

Liberty Highway 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from 1-2 to R-8 + 1- 141 .81 acres of 
TMS # 119-00-17-026 described above. 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which are hereby deemed separable. 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 
after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council . 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



ATTEST: Ordinance 2020-015 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

P1 Reading: November 12, 2020 

2 nd Reading: 

3 rd Reading: 

Public Hearing: November 12, 2020 

Ordinance #2020-015 
Page 3 of 3 

Liberty Highway 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



Rezoning Request 
Liberty Highway 
1-2 to R-8 0 '500 1 ,000 2 ,000 Feet 



Rezoning Request 
liberty Highway 
1-2 to R-8 1,000 2,000 4,000 F,eet 



Rezoning Request 
liberty Highway 
1-2 to R...S 

1-1 

I 
0 

I I . . f - . I I 
1,000 2,000 4,000 F.eet 



Liberty Highway 
-2 to R-8 

2,0.00 4,000 Feet 



















ORDINANCE NO. 2020-034 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 38-118 (f) OF THE ANDERSON COUNTY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, SO AS TO CLARIFY TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY 
REQUIREMENTS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the requirements and minimum development threshholds pertaining to traffic 
impact studies are established in Chapter 38, Section 118(f) of the Anderson County Code of 
Ordinances; 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council passed Ordinance No. 2017-036 which 
amended Section 38-118 (f) of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires to further amend Section 38-118 (f) of 
the Anderson County Code of Ordinances. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. Section 38-118(f) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 118(f). Traffic Impact Studies. 

Section 118 - Traffic impact studies. 

A traffic impact study shall be required for access approval through the state and 
county encroachment permit process when a development will generate 100 or 
more trips during the peak hour of the traffic generator or the peak hour of the 
adjacent street. The traffic impact study and subsequent access locations, turning 
lane and signalization requirements shall follow the South Carolina Department of 
Transportation Access and Roadside Management Standards, latest edition. For 
studies of county roads, the county engineer will hire and work with a traffic 
engineer to coordinate the study area needed in order to perform the traffic impact 
study. Coordination between the county and SCDOT will also be handled by the 
county engineer to ensure that all required county roads, state roads and pertinent 
intersections are accounted for in the traffic impact study area. Upon completion 
of the traffic impact study, it will be delivered to the developer. The developer shall 
be responsible for all costs of the required study, roadway improvements identified 
in the study, and right-of-way acquisition. The traffic impact study shall be included 
with the preliminary plat. Any changes to the traffic study or preliminary plat must 
be resubmitted to the Planning Commission. 

Table: Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual Examples 
Land Use 1 00 Peak Hour Trips I 
Single Family Home 90 units I 



Apartments 150 units 
Condos/ Townhomes 190 units 
Mobile Home Park 170 units 
Shopping Center -Gross Leasable Area (GLA) 16,000 s.f. 
Fast Food Restaurant w/Drive In- Gross Floor Area. 2,000 s.f 
Ga s Station w/Convenience Store 7 fueling positions 
Banks w/Drive-In (GFA) 4,000 s .f. 
General Office 67,000 s.f. 
Medical/Dental Office 29,000 s .f. 
Research & Development 71 ,000 s.f. 
Light Industrial/Warehousing 185,000 s.f. 
Manufacturing Plant (GFA) 144,000 s.f. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 
not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

2 Ordinance 2020-034 



ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ____ , 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: 

2nd Reading: 

3rd Reading: 

Public Hearing: 

November 12, 2020 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

3 Ordinance 2020-034 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-037 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A SUBLEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND LAKE HARTWELL DEVELOPMENT GROUP, 
LLC FOR THE ASPURY PARK SITE ON LAKE HARTWELL LOCATED AT THE END 
OF ASBURY PARK ROAD; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County has entered into a lease agreement (Lease No. DACW 
21-1-20-0063) with the Secretary of the Army for the Asbury Recreation Area ('Asbury Park") or 
(the "Property") on Lake Hartwell in Anderson County, South Carolina. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County entered into the lease with the Secretary of the Army in 
anticipation of entering into a Sublease with Lake Hartwell Development Group, LLC ("LHDG") 
for redevelopment of Asbury Park; 

WHEREAS, the Sublease with LHDG must be approved by Ordinance by the County 
Council and must be approved by the Department of the Army; and 

WHEREAS, the sublease will be substantially the form as Exhibit A attached hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. The Chairman of the Anderson County Council and the County Administrator are 
hereby authorized to execute any and all documents to obtain a Sublease with LHDG for the 
Asbury Park Site on Lake Hartwell in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 
not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ___ _ day of _____ , 2020. 



ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: 

2nd Reading: 

3rd Reading: 

Public Hearing: 

November 12, 2020 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

2 Ordinance 2020-037 



SUBLEASE AGREEMENT 
between 

XXXXX County and XXXXXX 
LEASE NO. DACW21-1-XXXXX 
HARTWELL LAKE PROJECT 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

This SUBLEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between 
Anderson County, (hereinafter referred to as "SUB-LESSOR") and XXXX Inc., 
(hereinafter referred to as "SUB-LESSEE"). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth in this 
SUBLEASE and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, SUB-LESSOR does hereby sublease to SUB-LESSEE and SUB
LESSEE does hereby sublease from SUB-LESSOR the premises generally described as 
follows: 

Approximately acres of land and water area under the primary jurisdiction 
of the Department of the Army in the Hartwell Project Area, hereinafter referred to as the 
premises as shown on attached Exhibit "A", for public park and recreational purposes 
from the Department of the Army of the United States; on Hartwell Lake, Anderson 
County, South Carolina (hereafter referred to as the "PREMISES"). 

1. TERM 

The term of this SUBLEASE is twenty-five years (25) years, beginning on 
_____ , and ending on , __ , unless sooner terminated as provided 
for in this SUBLEASE and in no case shall the SUBLEASE exceed the term of the Prime 
Lease DACW21-1-::XXXXX(hereinafter referred to as "LEASE"). 

2. RENT 

SUB-LESSEE agrees to pay to the SUB-LESSOR rental payments in the amount 
of one dollar per year. SUB-LESSEE agrees to assume and pay to SUB-LESSOR any 
other fees or costs assessed by the Government. 

3. FEES 

Fees may be charged by the SUB-LESSEE for use of the premises or any 
facilities, however, no user fees may be charged by the SUB-LESSEE or its sub-lessees 
for use of facilities developed in whole or part with federal funds if a user charge by the 
Corps of Engineers for the facility would be prohibited under law. 

4. SUBLEASE 

SUB-LESSEE accepts this SUBLEASE subject to all of the terms and conditions 
of a certain Lease Agreement, Supplemental Agreement, Extension or Modification of 
the Lease for the property described in the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Lease No. 
DACW21-1-::XXXXX, under which the SUB-LESSOR holds the premises as Lessee. 
SUB-LESSEE is hereby charged at all times with full knowledge of all the limitations 



and requirements of above said lease, and the necessity for correction of deficiencies, and 
with compliance with requests by the Government. Sublease is subject to the prime 
Lease, and all activities must be approved by the District Engineer. In the event of a 
conflict between the prime lease and the sublease, the prime lease shall be the controlling 
document. SUB-LESSEE covenants that it will do no act or thing which would 
constitute a violation of said Lease or any renewal, modification, or subsequent Lease the 
SUB-LESSOR may have with the Government. 

5. USE OF PREMISES 

SUB-LESSEE shall use the Leased Premises for recreational purposes. SUB
LESSEE shall not commit any waste nor create any nuisance on the Leased Premises and 
shall comply with all rules and regulations as established by the SUB-LESSOR. SUB
LESSEE shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations of governmental agencies 
and health department concerning the SUB-LESSEES use of the PREMISES. Hours of 
operation will be 8:00a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on Monday-Sunday -(i.e. Saturdays, Sundays, 
and Holidays plus any special events and other times) as agreed upon in writing by the 
General Manager or the authorized representative ofXXXXXX. 

6. MAINTENANCE 

SUB-LESSEE shall at its sole expense maintain and keep the premises, structures 
and surrounding area in good condition and state of repair and shall leave the Leased 
Premises in essentially the same condition as it was when delivered to the SUB-LESSEE 
by the SUB-LESSOR. SUB-LESSEE shall pay all utility charges for electric, water, 
heat, gas, and telephone service used on the Leased Premises directly to the appropriate 
utility company/corporation. SUB-LESSEE shall pay the pro-rate share of the cost of 
trash removal services from the Leased Premises relating to its operation. 

7. INSURANCE 

SUB-LESSEE shall maintain and pay all property and liability insurance and any 
other insurance necessary and prudent for normal operation of the facilities on the 
premises, including but not limited to workers' compensation insurance. SUB-LESSEE 
shall furnish the SUB-LESSOR with a copy of a Certificate of Insurance with SUB
LESSOR furnishing a copy to U.S . Army Corps of Engineers, Real Estate Division 
(ATTN: RE-RM), 100 West Oglethorpe Ave, Savannah, Georgia 31401 , naming the 
SUB-LESSOR and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers as additional named insureds and 
having a policy limit of $1,000,000.00 per claim and aggregate of $1 ,000,000.00. 

8. INDEMNITY OF SUB-LESSOR AND GOVERNMENT 

SUB-LESSOR AND GOVERNMENT shall not be liable to SUB-LESSEE or to 
SUB-LESSEE'S employees, agents, officers, directors, invitees, customers and/or 
visitors for any injury to persons or damage to property on or about the Premises caused 
by the negligence or misconduct of the SUB-LESSEE or its employees, customers, 
invitees, or any other person arising out of the use of the Premises by the SUB-LESSEE 
and SUB-LESSEE agrees to indemnify and hold the SUB-LESSOR AND 
GOVERNMENT harmless from any claims or damages arising from such injury or 
damage. 



9. DEFAULT 

If SUB-LESSEE shall allow any payment obligation under this SUBLEASE to be 
in arrears or be in default under any of the other terms or conditions set forth in this 
SUBLEASE for a period of more than fifteen (15) days after written notice of such 
delinquency, SUB-LESSOR may without further notice to the SUB-LESSEE terminate 
this SUBLEASE and re-enter and take possession of the Premises without being deemed 
guilty of trespass. 

10. TRANSFERS, ASSIGNMENTS, AND SUBLEASES 

SUB-LESSEE may not assign, sublet, transfer, or in any manner encumber this 
SUBLEASE without the prior written approval of the SUB-LESSOR and written consent 
by the Government. 

11. NOTICES 

All notices required hereunder must be given by certified or registered mail 
addressed to the proper party at the following address : 

SUB-LESSOR: 
ATTN: _______ _ 

SUB-LESSEE: 
ATTN: ---------------

12. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

a. The SUB-LESSEE shall not discriminate against any person or persons or 
exclude them from participation in the SUB-LESSEE's operations, programs or activities 
conducted on the premises, because of race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap, or 
national origin. The SUB-LESSEE will comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and attendant Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG) 
published by the Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board. 

b. The SUB-LESSEE, by acceptance of this lease, is receiving a type of Federal 
assistance and, therefore, hereby gives assurance that it will comply with the provisions 
of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S .C. § 2000d); the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6102); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended (29 U.S .C. § 794); and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Directive 
of the Department ofDefense (32 CFR Part 300) issued as Department of Defense 
Directive 5500.11 and 1020.1 and Army Regulation 600-7. This assurance shall be 
binding on the SUB-LESSEE, its agents, successors, transferees, sub-lessees and 
assignees. 



13. PROHIBITED USES 

The SUB-LESSEE will not sponsor or participate in timeshare ownership of any 
structures, facilities, accommodations, or personal property on the premises. The SUB
LESSEE will not subdivide nor develop the premises into private residential development 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This SUBLEASE and Lease No. DACW21-1-14-2011 , and any amendments 
thereto now or in the future, represents the entire agreement of the parties and no 
modification, amendment, or alteration of the terms of this agreement shall be binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by all the parties. 

This SUBLEASE AGREEMENT is hereby executed this ___ __ day of 
_______________ , 20 ___ _ 

SUB-LESSEE: 

By: 

Title: __________ _ 

SUB-LESSOR: 

By: ___________ _ 
Title: __________ _ 

Consent to this SUBLEASE AGREEMENT: 
(Reviewed as to content, but not a party hereto) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

By: _________ __ _ 
Title: ______ _ _ __ _ 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-038 

AN ORDINANCE (1) AUTHORIZING PURSUANT TO TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44 
OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
AND A COMPANY IDENTIFIED BY THE COUNTY AS PROJECT 
UNDERWOOD, AS SPONSOR, AND ONE OR MORE EXISTING OR TO-BE
FORMED OR ACQUIRED SUBSIDIARIES, OR AFFILIATED OR RELATED 
ENTITIES AND CERTAIN SPONSOR AFFILIATES, TO PROVIDE FOR A FEE
IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES INCENTIVE; (2) AUTHORIZING 
PURSUANT TO TITLE 4, CHAPTERS 1 AND 29 OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF 
SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, THE GRANT OF CERTAIN SPECIAL 
SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS TO PROJECT UNDERWOOD; AND (3) OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), acting by and through its County 
Council ("County Council"), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 
12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Act") and Article VIII, 
Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (i) to enter into agreements with qualifying companies to 
encourage investment in projects constituting economic development property through which the economic 
development of the State of South Carolina (the "State") will be promoted by inducing new and existing 
manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize and employ 
manpower and other resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such industry to accept certain fee 
payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes ("PILOT") with respect to such investment ("PILOT Payments"); (iii) 
under Section 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended ("MCIP Act") to create 
multi-county industrial parks with one or more contiguous counties and include certain properties therein, 
and, in its discretion, include within the boundaries of these parks the property of qualifying industries, and 
under the authority provided in the MCIP Act, the County has created previously a multi-county park with 
Greenville County, South Carolina [INSERT DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE PARK AGREEMENT] 
("Park"); (iv) under Sections 4-1-175, 4-29-68, and 12-44-70 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, 
as amended ("Infrastructure Credit Act"), to grant special source revenue credits to reimburse eligible 
infrastructure expenses; and (v) to make and execute contracts of the type herei nafter described pursuant to 
Section 4-9-30 of the Code of Laws of South Caro lina, 1976, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, [Project Underwood] , a [STATE ENTITY], previously identified by the County as 
Project Underwood along with one or more existing or to be formed or acquired subsidiaries, or affiliated 
or related entities, as Sponsor, ("Company") and any Sponsor Affiliates (as defined under the Act and the 
Fee Agreement) that the Company may designate and have the Count approve in accordance with the Act, 
contingent upon satisfaction of certain commitments made by and on behalf of the County, as set forth 
herein, anticipates establishing facilities in the County through the acquisition, construction, and purchase 
of certain land, buildings, furnishings , fixtures , apparatuses, and equipment (the "Project"), which will 
result in approximately $3 ,000,000 in new investment in real and personal property in the County 
("Investment"); and 

WHEREAS, by its Resolution adopted on November 12, 2020, the County identified the Project, 
as required by the Act; and 



WHEREAS, the Project will be located on one or more parcels of real property or a portion thereof 
within the County, with improvements thereon, bearing Anderson County tax map [number(s) ###], as 
further described in Exhibit A ("Project Site"); and 

[WHEREAS, pursuant to [enter] dated [enter], the Project along with the Project Site has been 
located in the Park and the Company has requested the County maintain the Project and Project Site in the 
Park for no less than the duration of the Fee Agreement; and] 

[WHEREAS, the County desires to enlarge the boundaries of the Park to include the Project and 
Project Site and to ensure that the Project and Project Site remains in the Park or any other multi-county 
park created under the MCIP Act for no less than the duration of the Fee Agreement; and] 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project, the Company has requested and the County desires to 
offer, as an inducement for the Project: (i) the incentive of a PILOT arrangement for a term of 30 years and 
having a fixed assessment ratio of 6% with a fixed millage rate equal to the lowest millage rate permitted 
pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(D) of the Act, the terms of which shall be further set forth in a fee-in
lieu of ad valorem taxes agreement between the County and the Company ("Fee Agreement"), the form of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit B; (ii) the placement and maintenance of the Project in a multi-county 
industrial park of which the County is a member county; (iii) certain special source revenue credits and (iv) 
other incentives that may be further described in the Fee Agreement (collectively, the "Incentives"); and 

WHEREAS, [AFFILIATE] intends to participate in the Investment in the Project at the Project Site 
and desires to be approved as a Sponsor Affiliate to the Fee Agreement pursuant to Section 12-44-10 of the 
Act and as further defined in the Fee Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the parties recognize and acknowledge that the Company would not otherwise 
undertake the Project in the County but for the delivery of the Incentives as set forth herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council : 

Section 1. Project Finding. The County hereby finds and affirms, based on information provided 
by the Company: (i) the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, 
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; (ii) the Project gives rise to 
no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality and to no charge against its general 
credit or taxing power; (iii) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and 
public purposes; and (iv) the benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public. 

Section 2. Authorization to Execute and Deliver Fee Agreement. The form, terms, and 
provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting, attached hereto as Exhibit B, and filed with the 
Clerk to County Council are hereby approved, and all of the terms, provisions, and conditions thereof are 
hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. 
The Chair of County Council is authorized and directed to execute the Fee Agreement with any minor 
modifications and revisions as may be approved by the Chair of County Council, the County Administrator, 
and the County Attorney, in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is 
authorized and directed to attest the same; and the Chair of County Council, the County Administrator, and 
the County Attorney are further authorized and directed to deliver the executed Fee Agreement to the 
Company. 

Section 3. Inclusion and Maintenance of the Project in the Park. [The expansion of the Park 
boundaries to include the Project and the Project Site is hereby approved.] The County will use its best 

2 Ordinance 2020-03 8 



efforts to ensure that the Project is incorporated into and will remain in the Park (or a successor multi
county industrial park) for no less than the term of the Fee Agreement. 

Section 4. Approval of Sponsor Affiliate. The County approves [AFFILIATE]'s participation in 
the Fee Agreement as a Sponsor Affiliate as contemplated under the Act and the Fee Agreement. 

Section 5. Grant of Special Source Revenue Credits. The County approves the grant of certain 
special source revenue credits to [Project Underwood] to reimburse [Project Underwood] for certain eligible 
infrastructure expenditures pursuant to the MCIP Act and the Infrastructure Credit Act, as more particularly 
described in the Fee Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

Section 6. No Recapitulation Required. Pursuant to Section 12-44-SS(B) of the PILOT Act, the 
County hereby agrees that no recapitulation information, as set forth in Section 12-44-55(A) of the PILOT 
Act is required to be provided by the Company in the Fee Agreement, or in any other documents or 
agreements in connection with the fee-in-lieu of tax arrangement between the Company and the County, so 
long as the Company shall file a copy of the South Carolina Department of Revenue form PT-443 , and any 
subsequent amendments thereto, and all filings required by the PILOT Act with the County after the 
execution of the Fee Agreement by the County and the Company. 

Section 7. Further Acts. The County Council authorizes , the Chair of County Council, the County 
Administrator, other County staff, and the County Attorney, along with any designees and agents who any of 
these officials deems necessary and proper, in the name of and on behalf of the County (each an "Authorized 
Individual"), to take whatever further actions, and enter into whatever further agreements, as any Authorized 
Individual deems to be reasonably necessary and prudent to effect the intent of this Ordinance and induce the 
Company to locate the Project in the County. 

Section 8. General Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions, and their parts in conflict with this 
Ordinance are, to the extent of that conflict repealed. 

Section 9. Severability. Should any part, provision, or term of this Ordinance be deemed 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding or 
determination shall not affect the rest and remainder of the Ordinance or any part, provision or term thereof, 
all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

3 Ordinance 2020-038 



This Ordinance takes effect and is in full force only after the County Council has approved this 
Ordinance following three readings and a public hearing. 

Done in meeting duly assembled this first day of _____ , 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert, 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

READINGS: 

First reading: November 12, 2020 
Second reading: 
Public hearing: 
Third reading: 

4 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Ordinance 2020-038 



EXHffiiTA 

Property Description 

[INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION] 

5 Ordinance 2020-038 



EXHIDITB 

Fee Agreement 

[ATTACHED] 

6 Ordinance 2020-038 



FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

BY AND AMONG 

[PROJECT UNDERWOOD] 

AND 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

December 1, 2020 

PPAB 5928396vl.docx 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Page 

Section 1.1 Terms ......... ................. ............ ........ ....... ..... ....... ..... ............. ....... ..... ............ .. .... .. ....... .. .... 2 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1 Representations of the County .... ... .. ... ..... ....... ...... .. ... ... .... ... ... ..... ...... ........... ....... .. ... .. ... .. 5 

Section 2.2 Representations of the Company ...... ...... .... ....... ........... ............. ...... .. ..... ......................... 5 

Section 3.1 

Section 3.2 

Section 3.3 

Section 3.4 

Section 3.5 

Section 3.6 

Section 3.7 

Section 3.8 

Section 3.9 

Section 3.10 

Section 3.11 

Section 3.12 

ARTICLE III 
PILOT PAYMENTS 

Negotiated Payments ............. .... ........... ..... ...... .............. .... ............... ....... ......... ............ .... 5 

Special Source Revenue Credits ....... ...... ........ ......... ...... ...... .... ..... ............ ... .................... 6 

Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirements .................. ..... ... ..... ...... ... ...... .. 7 

PILOT Payments on Replacement Property .... .... ............................. .. ........ ................. ... 7 

Reductions in Payments of Taxes Upon Removal, Condemnation or Casualty ..... .... ... 8 

Place and Allocation of PILOT Payments ... .... ..... ............ ...... ... .................. ........ ......... .. 8 

Removal of Equipment .................. ....... ..... ... ... ...... ... .................... .. .............................. .... 8 

Damage or Destruction of Project . .................. ........................................ ... .. .............. ..... 8 

Condemnation . .. ..... ...... ...................... ... ....... ... ......... .. ..... ...... ..... ......... ... .............. ... .. ... ... . 9 

Maintenance of Existence .... ................ ....................................... ..................................... 9 

Confidentiality/Limitation on Access to Project ....... .......... .. ...... .................................... . 9 

Addition of Sponsor Affiliates ........... .............. ....... .............. .. .. ... ... ......... ......... .... ......... . 10 

Section 3.13 Assignment and Subletting ................................................ ... ...... ........ ........................... 10 

Section 3.14 Events of Default ............ ......... ....... ......... .............................. .................. ... ..... ...... .... ... .. 10 

Section 3.15 Remedies on Default .............. ......... .......... ... ................ ..... ........ .......... ........................... 11 

Section 3.16 Collection of PILOT Payments .. .... ............. ................................................... .... ............ 11 

Section 3.17 Remedies Not Exclusive ............................ .. ................................................................... 11 

Section 3.18 Leased Equipment ............ ...... ............................... ............... .. .... ..... ... ............. .............. . 11 

Section 3.19 Waiver of Recapitulation Requirements ..................................... ................ .. ................. 12 

Section 3.20 Fiscal Year; Property Tax Year ......... ........................................................................... . 12 

Section 3.21 Reports; Filings . .. ........... ...... .... ........ .......................... ... ... ................ .............................. 12 

Section 3.22 Termination .......... ... .. ......................... .. ... .............................. .............................. ....... .... 12 

Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



Section 4.1 

Section 4.2 

Section 4.3 

Section 4.4 

Section 4.5 

Section 4.6 

Section 4.7 

Section 4.8 

Section 4.9 

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Notices .. ... .. ... ... ..... ... .... ... ..... .. ....... ........ ..... ... ...... .... ........ ..... ..... ......... .. .. ...... .. .... .... ....... ... 12 

Binding Effect ... ...... .... ... .... .... .. ..... .. ... ....... .. .... .... ......... .... .. ..... .............. ...... .... .......... .. ... 13 

Counterparts; Electronic Signatures .... ..... ... .. ... ...... ....... ...... ..... .. ...... ..... ... ............ .... .... 13 

Governing Law .... ...... ..... ..... ........ ...... .... .... .... ..... ......... ........ ....... ..... ...... ..... ..... ..... .......... 13 

Headings .......... ......... ... ............ ... ..... .... .. .. ..... .. .. .... ...... ........ .... .......... ... ..... .. ...... .............. 13 

Amendments .... ..................... ....... ... .. ..... .... ......... .... ....... .... ... .. ..... ...... ...... ..... .. ............. .. . 13 

Further Assurance ..... .... ..... .... .......... ... .. ..... ...... ........ ....... ... ...... ... ............ .. ....... ...... .... ... 13 

Severability ... .... ................. ..... ... .. ..... .... .......... .... ... ....... ..... ............. ......... ....... .......... ...... 13 

Limited Obligation .. ..... ...... .... ... .... ... .... ... .... .... .... ..... ......... .. ..... .... ....... ........... ....... .... ...... 14 

Section 4.10 Force Majeure .. .. ..... ..... ... ... .... ... .. .. ...... .. ....... ......... .. ....... .. ... .. .. ... ........ ..... ... ... ... ........ ... ... 14 

Section 4.11 Administrative Fees .......... .. ... ...... ... .. ....... ... ... ....... ......... .... ..... .... ....... .... .... ... .. .... ............ 14 

EXHIBIT A: Legal Description of Property 

EXHIBIT B: Form of Joinder Agreement 

11 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT 

THIS FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT ("Fee Agreement") is made and 
entered into as of December 1, 2020, by and between Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), a body 
politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina ("State"), acting by and 
through the Anderson County Council ("County Council") as the governing body of the County, and a 
company known to and identified by the County as Project UNDERWOOD, a [STATE ENTITY], along 
with affiliated or related entities, and assigns, as sponsor ("Sponsor"), [AFFILIATE], a [STATE ENTITY], 
as a Sponsor Affiliate (as defined under the Act and in this Fee Agreement) ("Affiliate" and, together with 
Sponsor, th~ "Company") and any other entity that may also join as a Sponsor Affiliate (hereinafter, the 
County, the Company, and the Affiliate are referred to individually as a "Party" and, collectively, as the 
"Parties"). 

WITNESSETH: 

(a) The County, acting by and through its County Council, is authorized and empowered under and 
pursuant to the provisions ofTitle 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended 
(the "Act") and Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (i) to enter into agreements with 
qualifying companies to encourage investment in projects constituting economic development property 
through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina will be promoted by inducing new 
and existing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize 
and employ manpower and other resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such industry to accept certain 
fee payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes ("FILOT") with respect to such investment ("FILOT Payments"); 
(iii) under Section 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended ("MCIP Act"), to 
create multi-county industrial or business parks with one or more contiguous counties and include certain 
properties therein, and, in its discretion, include within the boundaries of these parks the property of 
qualifying industries, and under the authority provided in the MCIP Act, the County has created previously 
a multi-county industrial or business park with Greenville County, South Carolina ("Park"); (iv) under 
Sections 4-1-175, 4-29-68, and 12-44-70 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended 
("Infrastructure Credit Act"), to grant special source revenue credits to reimburse eligible infrastructure 
expenses; and (v) to make and execute contracts of the type hereinafter described pursuant to Section 4-9-
30 ofthe Code ofLaws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended; and 

(b) Pursuant to the Act, the County has determined that (i) the Project (as defined herein) will 
benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other 
public benefits not otherwise provided locally; (ii) the Project will not give rise to any pecuniary liability 
of the County or any incorporated municipality or to any charge against any of their general credit or taxing 
power; (iii) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; 
and (iv) the benefits of the Project to the public will be greater than the costs to the public; and 

(c) The Sponsor, along with the Affiliate and one or more existing, or to-be-formed or acquired 
subsidiaries, or affiliated or related entities and any Sponsor Affiliates that the Sponsor may designate and 
have the County approve in accordance with the Act, contingent upon satisfaction of certain commitments 
made by and on behalf of the County, as set forth herein and to be further set forth in future agreements, 
and, to the extent allowed by law, anticipates establishing facilities in the County through the acquisition, 
construction, and purchase of certain land, buildings, furnishings , fixtures , apparatuses, and equipment (the 
"Project"), which will result in approximately $3 ,000,000 in new investment in real and personal property 
in the County ("Investment"); and 

(d) Pursuant to a Resolution adopted November 12, 2020, the County Council identified the 
Project, as required under the Act, and pursuant to County Council Ordinance No. adopted on 

Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



December 1, 2020, authorized (i) the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement with the Company, (ii) 
the participation in this Fee Agreement by Affiliate as a Sponsor Affiliate, and (iii) the inclusion of the 
Project in the Park. 

NOW, THEREFORE, AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows, with the understanding that no 
obligation of the County described herein shall create a pecuniary liability or charge upon its general credit 
or taxing powers, but shall be payable solely out of the sources of payment described herein and shall not 
under any circumstances be deemed to constitute a general obligation to the County: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Terms . The terms defined in this Article shall for all purposes of this Fee 
Agreement have the meaning herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise."Chair" means 
the Chairman of the County Council. 

"Code" means the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended. 

"Commencement Date" means the last day of the first property tax year during which Economic 
Development Property (defined below) is placed in service except that this date may not be later than the 
last day of the property tax year which is three years from the year in which the County, the Sponsor and 
the Sponsor Affiliates entered into this Fee Agreement. 

"County" means Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and political 
subdivision of the State of South Carolina, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the Anderson 
County Council as the governing body of the County. 

"County Council" means the Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

"Department" and "SCDOR" mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

"Diminution of Value" with respect to any Phase of the Project means any reduction in the value 
based on original fair market value as determined in Step 1 of Section 3.1 of this Fee Agreement, of the 
items which constitute a part of the Phase which may be caused by (i) the Company' s removal of equipment 
pursuant to Section 3.7 of this Fee Agreement, (ii) a casualty to the Phase of the Project, or any part thereof, 
described in Section 3.8 of this Fee Agreement, or (iii) a condemnation to the Phase of the Project, or any 
part thereof, described in Section 3.9 of this Fee Agreement. 

"Economic Development Property" means all items of real and tangible personal property 
comprising the Project which qualify as economic development property under the Act, become subject to 
this Fee Agreement, and which are identified by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate in 
connection with its annual filing of a SCDOR PT -300 or comparable forms with the Department (as such 
filing may be amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period, as that period may 
be extended by subsequent, formal action of County Council, or automatically as permitted under the Act 
or under this Fee Agreement. Title to all Economic Development Property shall at all times remain vested 
in the Company and, as applicable, in any Sponsor Affiliate, except as may be necessary to take advantage 
of the effect of Section 12-44-160 of the Act. 

2 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



"Equipment" means all machinery, apparatus, equipment, fixtures, office facilities, furnishings , and 
other personal property together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutes 
thereto or therefor acquired by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, during the 
Investment Period as a part of the Project under this Fee Agreement. The Equipment and its constituent 
parts together with any and all improvements or other features constructed on, or personal property installed 
or placed on the Project Site (defined below) by or for the Company, or, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, 
including without limitation, machinery, fixtures, trade fixtures, and other personal property are personal 
property for purposes of applicable South Carolina law. 

"Event of Default" means any Event of Default specified in Section 3.14 of this Fee Agreement. 

"Fee Term" or "Term" means the period from the date of delivery of this Fee Agreement until the 
last Phase Termination Date (defined below) unless sooner terminated or extended pursuant to the terms of 
this Fee Agreement. 

"FILOT" means fee in lieu of ad valorem tax(es). 

"FILOT Payment(s)" means the payment(s) in lieu of ad valorem tax( es) which the Company and, 
as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, are obligated to pay to the County. 

"Improvements" mean improvements to the Project Site, including buildings, additions, roads, 
sewer and other infrastructure, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and 
substitutions thereto or therefor acquired by the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, during 
the Investment Period as part of the Project. 

"Investment" shall mean that amount set forth in the recitals of this Fee Agreement and shall 
include but not be limited to (i) taxable and non-taxable capital expenditures, without regard to depreciation, 
which are made by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate towards or for the benefit of the 
Project; (ii) capital expenditures, whether considered Economic Development Property or non-Economic 
Development Property, without regard to depreciation, which are made by the Company and, as applicable, 
any Sponsor Affiliate towards or for the benefit of the Project, regardless of the source of payment of such 
expenditures; (iii) the value of any assets leased by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, 
without regard to depreciation, regardless of the source of payment of such expenditures so long as the 
value of such leased assets are reported by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate on their 
respective SCDOR PT-100 or PT-300 or comparable forms ; and (iv) any other expenditures made by the 
Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate that the County and the Company and, as applicable, 
any Sponsor Affiliate, may mutually agree upon in a writing that is executed by an authorized representative 
of the Company, the applicable Sponsor Affiliate and the County Administrator. The Investment for 
purposes of the Investment stated herein shall include those expenditures made by both the Company and, 
as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate by the end of the Investment Period . 

"Investment Period" means the period beginning with the first day that Economic Development 
Property is purchased or acquired and ending five years after the Commencement Date. The minimum 
investment must be completed within five years of the Commencement Date. Pursuant to Section 12-44-
30(13) of the Act, the County may, at its discretion, extend this period for up to an additional five years 
upon passage of a resolution. 

"Minimum Investment" or "Minimum Investment Requirement" means an investment in the 
project of at least two and one-half million dollars ($2,500,000) within the Investment Period, in accordance 
with Section 12-44-30(14) of the Act. 

3 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



"Phase" or "Phases" in respect to the Project means the Economic Development Property placed 
in service during each year of the Investment Period, as extended. 

"Phase Termination Date" means, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the day twenty-nine 
years after each such Phase of the Project becomes subject to the terms of this Fee Agreement. Anything 
contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the last Phase Termination Date shall be no later than 
December 31 of the year of the expiration of the 29111 full calendar year, after the end of the Investment 
Period. 

"Project" is further defined herein to mean the Equipment, Improvements, and the Project Site, 
together with the acquisition, construction, installation, design and engineering thereof, in phases. 

"Project Site" means the real property upon which any part of the Project is to be constructed and 
expanded, as described in Exhibit A attached hereto, as may be amended from time to time by approval of 
the County Administrator or by adoption of a Resolution by County Council, together with all and singular, 
the rights, members, hereditaments, and appurtenances belonging or in any way incident or appertaining 
thereto acquired or constructed by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate; all Improvements 
now or hereafter situated thereon; and all fixtures now or hereafter attached thereto, but only to the extent 
such Improvements and fixtures are deemed to become part of the Project under the terms of this Fee 
Agreement. 

"Removed Components" means the following types of components or Phases of the Project or 
portions thereof, all of which the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, 
shall be entitled to remove from the Project with the result that the same shall no longer be subject to the 
terms of the Fee Agreement: (a) components or Phases of the Project or portions thereof which the Company 
and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, in their sole discretion, determine to be inadequate, obsolete, 
worn-out, uneconomic, damaged, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary; or (b) components or Phases of 
the Project or portions thereof which the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, in their sole 
discretion, elect to remove pursuant to Section 3.8(c) or Section 3.9(b)(iii) of this Fee Agreement. 

"Replacement Property" means any property which is placed in service as a replacement for any 
item of Equipment or any Improvement which is scrapped or sold by the Company and, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliate and treated as a Removed Component under Section 3.7 hereof regardless of whether 
such property serves the same function as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether more than 
one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement. 

"Sponsor Affiliate" means an affiliate that joins with or is an affiliate of the Company, or that 
otherwise has a contractual relationship with the Company with respect to the Project, whose investment 
with respect to the Project shall be considered part of the Investment and qualify for PILOT Payments 
pursuant to Section 3.1 hereof and Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the Act and who joins and 
delivers a Joinder Agreement in a form substantially similar to that attached hereto as Exhibit B or who 
has otherwise joined as a party to this Fee Agreement. 

Section 1.2 Amendments. Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or 
otherwise in this Fee Agreement is deemed to include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and 
modifications to such agreement or document. 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

4 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



Section 2.1 Representations of the County. The County hereby represents and warrants to the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliate as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State which 
acts through the County Council as its governing body and by the provisions of the Act is authorized and 
empowered to enter into the transactions contemplated by this Fee Agreement and to carry out its 
obligations hereunder. The County has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement 
and any and all other agreements described herein or therein. 

(b) The Project constitutes a "project" within the meaning of the Act. 

(c) By due corporate action, the County has agreed that, subject to compliance with applicable 
laws, each item of real and tangible personal property comprising the Project shall be considered Economic 
Development Property under the Act. 

Section 2.2 Representations of the Company. The Company hereby represents and warrants 
to the County as follows : 

(a) Each legal entity comprising the Company is a corporate entity, authorized or to be 
authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of South Carolina, and has the power to enter 
into this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company's execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement and its compliance with the 
provisions hereof do not result in a default, not waived or cured, under any Company restriction or any 
agreement or instrument to which the Company is now a party or by which it is bound. 

(c) The Company intends to operate the Project as a "project" within the meaning of the Act 
as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for such purposes as permitted 
under the Act, as the Company may deem appropriate. 

(d) The availability of the PILOT with regard to the Economic Development Property 
authorized by the Act, along with other incentives provided by the County, have induced the Company to 
undertake the Project in the County. 

Section 3.1 

ARTICLE III 
FILOT PAYMENTS 

Negotiated Payments. 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the Act, the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor 
Affiliate, are required to make PILOT Payments on all Economic Development Property that it placed in 
service on or before each December 31 within the Investment Period. 

(b) The amount of such annual PILOT Payments shall be determined by the following 
procedure: 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Phase of the Project placed in service in any given 
year for such year and for the following 29 years, unless extended by the Parties in 
accordance with the Act, using original income tax basis for State income tax purposes 
for any real property (provided, if real property is constructed for the fee or is purchased 
in an arms-length transaction, fair market value is deemed to equal the original income 

5 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



tax basis, otherwise, the Department will determine fair market value by appraisal) and 
original income tax basis for State income tax purposes less depreciation for each year 
allowable to the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, for any personal 
property as determined in accordance with Title 12 of the Code, as amended and in effect 
on December 31 of the year in which each Phase becomes subject to the Fee Agreement, 
except that no extraordinary obsolescence shall be allowable but taking into account all 
applicable property tax exemptions which would be allowed to the Company, and, as 
applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, under State law, if the property were taxable, except 
those exemptions specifically disallowed under Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the Act, as 
amended and in effect on December 31 of the year in which each Phase becomes subject 
to the Fee Agreement. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of 6.0% to the fair market value as determined for each year 
in Step 1 to establish the taxable value of each Phase of the Project in the year it is placed 
in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such longer period of years that the 
annual FILOT Payment is permitted to be made by the Company and, as applicable, by 
any Sponsor Affiliate, under the Act. 

Step 3: Multiply the taxable value determined in the preceding step by a millage rate equal to 
460.8 mills, which the parties believe to be that rate in effect on June 30, 2019, for all 
taxing entities for the Project Site (which millage rate shall be a fixed rate for the term 
of this Fee Agreement), to determine the amount of the FILOT Payments which would 
be due in each year of the Fee Term on the payment dates prescribed by the County for 
such payments for a total of 30 years for each item of eligible Project property, or such 
longer period of years that the annual fee payment is permitted to be made by the 
Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, under the Act. 

(c) The County agrees that the Project and Project Site shall be incorporated and remain in 
the Park during the Fee Term. If, for any reason, the Project Site and Project is ever excluded from the Park 
then the County shall ensure that the Project shall be immediately placed into another multi-county 
industrial or business park arrangement established pursuant to the MCIP Act, to which the County is a 
party and that would enable the Company to receive the benefits afforded by having the Project incorporated 
into a Park. 

(d) In the event that the Act, the above-described FILOT Payments are declared invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions that such payments 
and this Fee Agreement be reformed so as to most closely effectuate the legal, valid, and enforceable intent 
thereof and so as to afford the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, with the benefits to be 
derived hereunder. If the Project is deemed to be subject to ad valorem taxation, the payment in lieu of ad 
valorem taxes to be paid to the County by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, shall 
become equal to the amount which would result from taxes levied on the Project by the County, 
municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other political units as if the Project 
was and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act. In such event, any amount 
determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, 
as the case may be, with respect to a year or years for which payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes have 
been previously remitted by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, to the County 
hereunder, shall be reduced by the total amount of payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes made by the 
Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof, 
and further reduced by any abatements provided by law. 

Section 3.2 Special Source Revenue Credits 

6 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



(a) As an inducement for the Investment and in accordance with the MCIP Act the 
Infrastructure Credit Act, the County grants to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate a Special Source 
Revenue Credit ("SSRC") equal to the Applicable SSRC Percentage shown in the table below multiplied 
by the amount of each FILOT Payment that becomes due with respect to Economic Development Property 
comprising the Project in the Park commencing with the first year in which a FILOT Payment becomes due 
under this Fee Agreement and each consecutive year thereafter for a total of twenty (20) years ("SSRC 
Term"). The County shall automatically reflect the SSRC against the FILOT Payment on those FILOT 
invoices provided by the County to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate. The Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliate shall be permitted to utilize SSRC to offset any qualifying expenditures as provided under the 
Code, including under the Act, the MCIP Act, and the Infrastructure Credit Act. 

Years Applicable SSRC Percenta2:e 
1-10 95% 

11-20 50% 

(b) All SSRC 's granted to the Company shall be deemed to reimburse the Company first for 
any infrastructure expenditures related to real property necessary to serve the Project, thereby, to the extent 
of such reimbursements, avoiding the application of the recapture provisions in Section 4-29-68(A)(2)(ii)(a) 
of the Code. 

(c) The cumulative dollar amount expended by the Company on infrastructure shall equal or 
exceed the cumulative dollar amount of all the SSRC's received by the Company at any point in time, and 
the Company shall provide to the County, upon request by the County, documentation sufficiently adequate 
to prove such infrastructure costs to the reasonable satisfaction of the County. 

Section 3.3 Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirements 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to achieve the 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall terminate 
and the Company, with respect to its Economic Development Property only, and, as applicable, any Sponsor 
Affiliate, with respect to its Economic Development Property only, shall pay the County a "Deficiency 
Amount". The Deficiency Amount shall be equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem 
taxes as would result from taxes levied on the Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school 
district or school districts , and other political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic 
Development Property were not Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions 
equivalent to all tax exemptions and abatements to which the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor 
Affiliate, would be entitled in such a case, through and including the end of the Investment Period, over (ii) 
the total amount of FILOT payments the Company, and, as applicable, each Sponsor Affiliate, has made 
with respect to its Economic Development Property through and including the end of the Investment Period. 

(b) In the event a Deficiency Amount is determined to be owing pursuant to this Section 3.3, 
it shall be payable to the County on or before the second (2nd) January 15 following the last day of the 
Investment Period. Any Deficiency Amount determined to be owing shall be subject to the minimum 
amount of interest that the Act may require. 

(c) The remedies stated herein shall be the County' s sole remedies for the Company's, and as 
applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate ' s, failure to meet the Minimum Investment Requirement. 

Section 3.4 FILOT Payments on Replacement Property. If the Company and, as applicable, 
any Sponsor Affiliate, elect to replace any Removed Components and to substitute such Removed 
Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Project, then, pursuant and subject to Section 12-

7 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



44-60 of the Act, the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate shall make statutory payments in 
lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard to such Replacement Property as follows: 

(a) to the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property ("Replacement Value") 
is less than or equal to the original income tax basis of the Removed Components ("Original Value") the 
amount of the FILOT Payments to be made by the Company and, as applicable, the Sponsor Affiliate, with 
respect to such Replacement Property, shall be calculated in accordance with Section 3.1 hereof; provided, 
however, in making such calculations, the original cost to be used in Step 1 of Section 3.1 shall be equal to 
the lesser of (x) the Replacement Value or (y) the Original Value, and the number of annual payments to 
be made with respect to the Replacement Property shall be equal to thirty (30) (or, if greater, the maximum 
number of years for which the annual FILOT Payments are available to the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliate for each portion of the Project under the Act, as amended) minus the number of annual payments 
which have been made with respect to the oldest Removed Components disposed of in the same property 
tax year as the Replacement Property is placed in service; and 

(b) to the extent that the Replacement Value exceeds the Original Value of the Removed 
Components ("Excess Value"), the FILOT Payments to be made by the Company and, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliate, with respect to the Excess Value, shall be equal to the payment that would be due if the 
property were not Economic Development Property. 

Section 3.5 Reductions in Payments of Taxes Upon Removal, Condemnation or Casualty. 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of any Phase of the Project after the Investment Period and during 
the remainder of the Fee Term, the FILOT Payments with regard to that Phase of the Project shall be reduced 
in the same proportion as the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of 
that Phase of the Project as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 3.1 hereof. 

Section 3.6 Place and Allocation of FILOT Payments. The Company and, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliate, shall make the above-described FILOT Payments directly to the County in accordance 
with applicable law as to payment, collection and enforcement of FILOT Payments. FILOT Payments are 
to be allocated in accordance with the Act. 

Section 3.7 Removal of Equipment. The Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, 
shall be entitled to remove the following types of components or Phases of the Project from the Project with 
the result that said components or Phases (Removed Components) shall no longer be subject to the terms 
of this Fee Agreement: (a) components or Phases which become subject to statutory payments in lieu of ad 
valorem taxes; (b) components or Phases of the Project or portions thereof which the Company, and, as 
applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, in their sole discretion, determine to be inadequate, obsolete, 
uneconomic, worn-out, damaged, unsuitable, undesirable, or unnecessary; or (c) components or Phases of 
the Project or portions thereof which the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, in their sole 
discretion, elect to remove pursuant to Section 3.8(c) or Section 3.9(b)(iii) hereof. 

Section 3.8 Damage or Destruction of Project. 

(a) Election to Terminate. In the event the Project is damaged by fire, explosion, or any other 
casualty, the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, shall be entitled to terminate this Fee 
Agreement in accordance with Section 3 .22. 

(b) Election to Rebuild. In the event the Project is damaged by fire, explosion, or any other 
casualty, and if the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, do not elect to terminate this Fee 
Agreement, the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate may, in their sole discretion, commence 
to restore the Project with such reductions or enlargements in the scope of the Project, changes, alterations, 

8 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



and modifications (including the substitution and addition of other property) as may be desired by the 
Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate. All such restorations and replacements shall be 
considered substitutions of the destroyed portions of the Project and shall be considered part of the Project 
for all purposes hereof, including, but not limited to, any amounts due by the Company and, as applicable, 
any Sponsor Affiliate, to the County under Section 3.1 hereof, to the extent allowed by the Act. 

(c) Election to Remove. In the event the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, 
elect not to terminate this Fee Agreement pursuant to subsection (a) and elects not to rebuild pursuant to 
subsection (b), the damaged portions of the Project shall be treated as Removed Components. 

Section 3.9 Condemnation. 

(a) Complete Taking. If, at any time during the Fee Term, title to or temporary use of the entire 
Project should become vested in a public or quasi-public authority by virtue of the exercise of a taking by 
condemnation, inverse condemnation or the right of eminent domain, or by voluntary transfer under threat 
of such taking, or in the event that title to a portion of the Project shall be taken rendering continued 
operation of the Project commercially infeasible in the judgment of the Company and, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliate, then the Company or, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate (with respect to its Project 
property only) shall have the option to terminate this Fee Agreement in accordance with Section 3.22. 

(b) Partial Taking. In the event of a partial taking of the Project or transfer in lieu thereof, the 
Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, may elect: (i) to terminate this Fee Agreement in 
accordance with Section 3.22 (with respect to its Project property only); (ii) to repair and restore the Project, 
with such reductions or enlargements in the scope of the Project, changes, alterations and modifications 
(including the substitution and addition of other property) as may be desired by the Company and, as 
applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate; or (iii) to treat the portions of the Project so taken as Removed 
Components. 

Section 3.10 Maintenance of Existence. The Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor 
Affiliate agree (i) that they shall not take any action which will materially impair the maintenance of their 
corporate existence and (ii) that they will maintain their good standing under all applicable provisions of 
State law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any changes in the corporate existence of the Company or, as 
applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, that result from internal restructuring or reorganization of the Company 
or, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, or their parents are specifically authorized hereunder; and further, 
subject to the requirements to satisfy the Minimum Investment requirement under the Act, the Company 
and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate are entitled to cease operations of the Project at any time without 
that cessation constituting an Event of Default under this Fee Agreement. Likewise, benefits granted to the 
Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, under this Fee Agreement shall, in the event of any 
such restructuring or reorganization, be transferred to the successor entity under the provisions of Section 
3.13 hereof. Such transfers to a successor entity substantially similar in nature and function to the Company 
and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, are specifically approved and authorized by the County without 
any further action by the County Council. 

Section 3.11 Confidentiality/Limitation on Access to Project. The County acknowledges and 
understands that the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, utilize confidential and proprietary 
"state-of-the-art" information and data in their operations, and that a disclosure of any information, 
including, but not limited to, disclosures of financial or other information concerning the Company's 
operations and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate's operations, could result in substantial and irreparable 
harm to them and could thereby have a significant detrimental impact on their employees and also upon the 
County. Therefore, the County agrees that, except as required by law and pursuant to the County's police 
powers, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor of the County: (i) will request or be 

9 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



entitled to receive any such confidential or proprietary information; (ii) will request or be entitled to inspect 
the Project or any property associated therewith; provided, however, that if an Event of Default shall have 
occurred and be continuing hereunder, the County shall be entitled to inspect the Project provided they shall 
comply with the remaining provisions of this Section; or (iii) will knowingly and intentionally disclose or 
otherwise divulge any such confidential or proprietary information to any other person, firm, governmental 
body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so by State law. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, whenever the County shall be required by any governmental or financial entity to file or produce 
any reports, notices, returns or other documents while the Fee Agreement is in effect, the Company, and, 
as applicable, any Sponsor Mfiliate, or owner of the Project at the time shall promptly furnish to the County 
through the County Attorney the completed form of such required documents together with a certification 
by the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, or owner that such documents are accurate and 
not in violation of any provisions of law or of the other documents of this transaction, and that the 
documents meet the legal requirements of such filing or delivery. In the event of the failure or refusal of 
the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate or owner to comply with this provision, the 
Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, or owner agrees to pay the statement for attorneys ' 
fees and administrative time presented by the County for producing and filing such documents, such 
statement to be paid within thirty (30) days after presentation by the County, and to promptly pay any fees, 
penalties, assessments or damages imposed upon the County by reason of its failure to duly file or produce 
such documents. With respect to such fees , penalties, assessment or damages imposed by the County, only 
the individual party failing or refusing to furnish such information shall be liable therefor. Prior to disclosing 
any confidential or proprietary information or allowing inspections of the Project or any property associated 
therewith, the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, or owner may require the execution of 
reasonable, individual confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements by any officers, employees or agents 
of the County or any supporting or cooperating governmental agencies who would gather, receive or review 
such information or conduct or review the results of any inspections. 

Section 3.12 Addition of Sponsor Affiliates. Upon request of and at the expense of the 
Company, the County may approve, by adoption of a resolution by County Council, any future Sponsor 
Affiliate that qualifies under the Act for the benefits offered under this Fee Agreement and which agrees to 
be bound by the provisions hereof to be further evidenced by such future Sponsor Affiliate entering into a 
Joinder Agreement in the form attached to this Fee Agreement as Exhibit B, subject to any changes 
approved by the County Council Chairman that are not materially adverse to the County. 

Section 3.13 Assignment and Subletting. This Fee Agreement may be assigned in whole or in 
part and the Project may be subleased as a whole or in part by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor 
Affiliate, so long as such assignment or sublease is made in compliance with Section 12-44-120 of the Act. 
To the extent any consent of the County for such assignment or sublease is required by the Act and 
requested, the County may grant such consent by adoption of a Resolution, not to be unreasonably withheld. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon notice in writing to the County Administrator, any assignment to an 
entity owned by, which owns, or that shares a common owner with the Company, and, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliate, is approved and authorized by the County without further action of County Council. 

Section 3.14 Events of Default. The following are "Events of Default" under this Fee 
Agreement, and the term "Events of Default" means, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, 
any one or more of the following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, to make, upon levy, the 
FILOT Payments described in Section 3.1 hereof; provided, however, that the Company or, as applicable, 
the Sponsor Mfiliate, shall be entitled to all redemption rights for non-payment of taxes granted by 
applicable statutes; or 

10 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



(b) Failure of the Company or, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, to make payment of any 
other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement, of which default has not been cured within 
ninety (90) days of written notice of nonpayment from the County. 

(c) Failure by the Company or, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, to perform any of the 
other material terms, conditions, obligations or covenants of the Company or, as applicable, any Sponsor 
Affiliate hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of ninety (90) days after written notice from 
the County to the Company or, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, specifying such failure and requesting 
that it be remedied, unless the County shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its 
expiration. 

Section 3.15 Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred and 
shall be continuing, the County, after having given written notice to the Company or, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliate, of such default and after the expiration of a ninety (90) day cure period shall have the 
option to take any one or more of the following remedial actions: 

(a) Terminate the Fee Agreement; or 

(b) Take whatever action at law or in equity that may appear necessary or desirable to collect 
the other amounts due and thereafter to become due or to enforce performance and observance of any 
obligation, agreement or covenant of the Company or, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, under this Fee 
Agreement. 

(c) Any remedies that the County may take pursuant to this section shall only be taken against 
that party who is in default. 

(d) The County' s sole remedy for failure of the Sponsor, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, 
as applicable, to achieve the Minimum Investment Requirement shall be the Deficiency Amount pursuant 
to Section 3.3. 

Section 3.16 Collection of FILOT Payments. In addition to all other remedies herein provided, 
the nonpayment of FILOT Payments shall constitute a lien on the Project for tax purposes as provided in 
Section 12-44-90 of the Act. In this regard, and notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, 
the County may exercise the remedies provided by general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49, of the Code) 
relating to the enforced collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT Payments due hereunder. 

Section 3.17 Remedies Not Exclusive . No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the County 
under this Fee Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedies, but each and every 
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other lawful remedy now or hereafter existing. 
No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any continuing default hereunder shall 
impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power 
may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the County 
to exercise any remedy reserved to it, it shall not be necessary to give notice, other than such notice as may 
be herein expressly required and such notice required at law or equity which the Company is not competent 
to waive. 

Section 3.18 Leased Equipment. To the extent that applicable law allows or is revised or 
construed to allow the benefits of the Act, in the form of FILOT Payments as described in Section 3.1 
hereof, to be applicable to personal property to be installed at the Project and leased to but not purchased 
by the Company and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, from at least one third party, under any form of 
lease, then that personal property, at the Company's or Sponsor Affiliates ' sole election, will become 

11 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



subject to FIT..,OT Payments to the same extent as the Equipment under this Fee Agreement, upon proper 
application of the law and applicable procedures by the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate 
and so long as the value of such leased assets are reported by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as 
applicable, on their respective SCDOR PT-300. 

Section 3.19 Waiver of Recapitulation Requirements. As permitted under Section 12-44-55 of 
the Act, the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, and the County hereby waive application 
of any of the recapitulation requirements as set forth in Section 12-44-55, to the extent that, and so long as, 
the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, provides the County with copies of all filings which 
the Company is required to make pursuant to the Act. 

Section 3.20 Fiscal Year; Property Tax Year. If the Company' s and, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliates, fiscal year changes so as to cause a change in the Company' s or Sponsor Affiliates' 
property tax year, then the timing of the requirements of this Fee Agreement are automatically revised 
accordingly but only with respect to the party whose fiscal year changes. 

Section 3.21 Reports; Filings. 

(a) Each year during the term of this Fee Agreement, the Company, and, as applicable, any 
Sponsor Affiliate, shall deliver to the Anderson County Auditor a copy of their most recent annual property 
tax returns filed with the Department with respect to the applicable portions of the Project. 

(b) The Company shall file a copy of this Agreement, as well as a copy of the completed forms 
PT-443 of the Department, with the Anderson County Auditor, the Anderson County Assessor, and the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 3.22 Termination. Prior to the stated expiration of the Term of this Agreement, the 
Company may, at any time by written notice to the County, provide for the termination of this Agreement, 
effectively immediately upon giving such notice or upon such date as may be specified in the notice; 
provided that the Company shall have made payment to the County of all applicable payments payable 
under this Agreement as of such time. Upon any such termination, and subject to any provisions herein 
which shall by their express terms be deemed to survive any termination of this Agreement, the sole 
consequence to the Company shall be that it shall no longer be entitled to the benefit of the FIT..,OT Payments 
provided herein and the property constituting the Project shall thereafter be subject to ad valorem tax 
treatment required by law and, except as may be expressly provided herein, in no event shall the Company 
be required to repay to the County the amount of any tax benefit previously received hereunder. 

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 4.1 Notices . Any notice, election, demand, request or other communication to be 
provided under this Fee Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or three 
business days after deposited with the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, 
postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or addressed to such other address as any party may hereafter furnish 
in writing to the other party), except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any 
notice, in which case such provision shall control: 

AS TO THE COUNTY: Anderson County, South Carolina 
ATTN: County Administrator 
Post Office Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 

12 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



WITH A COPY TO: 
(shall not constitute notice) 

AS TO THE COMPANY: 

WITH A COPY TO: 
(shall not constitute notice) 

Anderson County, South Carolina 
A TIN: County Attorney 
Post Office Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 

[NAME] 
[ADDRESS] 

Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP 
ATTN: Richard Few 
110 East Court Street, Suite 200 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601 

Section 4.2 Binding Effect. This Fee Agreement is binding, in accordance with its terms, upon 
and inure to the benefit of the Company, any Sponsor Affiliate and the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns, to the extent allowed by law. In the event of the dissolution of the County or the 
consolidation of any part of the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of 
the County to any other such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises and 
agreements of this Fee Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from 
time to time and any entity, officer, board, commission, agency or instrumentality to whom or to which any 
power or duty of the County has been transferred. 

Section 4.3 Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. This Fee Agreement may be executed in 
any number of counterparts and each such executed counterpart shall be, and shall be deemed to be, an 
original, but all of which shall constitute, and shall be deemed to constitute, in the aggregate but one and 
the same instrument. This Fee Agreement may be circulated for signature through electronic transmission, 
including, without limitation, facsimile and email, and all signatures so obtained and transmitted shall be 
deemed for all purposes under this Fee Agreement to be original signatures and may conclusively be relied 
upon by any Party to this Fee Agreement. 

Section 4.4 Governing Law. This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection 
herewith shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 4.5 Headings . The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are 
inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 4.6 Amendments. The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or 
amended in writing by an agreement or agreements lawfully entered into between the parties. 

Section 4.7 Further Assurance. From time to time, and at the Company's and Sponsor 
Affiliates ' expense, the County agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and Sponsor Affiliates such 
additional instruments as either may reasonably request to effectuate the purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 4.8 Severability. If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and such illegal, invalid 
or unenforceable provision shall be reformed so as to most closely effectuate the legal, valid and enforceable 
intent thereof and so as to afford the Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, with the maximum 
benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company and, as applicable, 
any Sponsor Affiliate, the strong inducement to locate the Project in the County. 

13 Ordinance 2020-03 8 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



Section 4.9 Limited Obligation . NEITHER THE PROJECT NOR THE NEGOTIATION, 
EXECUTION, DELIVERY, OR IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS FEE AGREEMENT SHALL GIVE 
RISE TO ANY PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COUNTY OR ANY INCORPORATED 
MUNICIPALITY NOR TO ANY CHARGE AGAINST THEIR GENERAL CREDIT OR TAXING 
POWER. 

Section 4.10 Force Majeure. The Company, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliate, shall 
not be responsible for any delays or non-performance caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by 
strikes, accidents, freight embargoes, fire, floods, inability to obtain materials, conditions arising from 
government orders or regulations, war or national emergency, acts of God, and any other cause, similar or 
dissimilar, beyond the Company' s, and, as applicable, any Sponsor Affiliates ' reasonable control. 

Section 4.11 Administrative Fees. The Company shall reimburse the County for all reasonable 
costs and fees , including but not limited to the County' s legal fees and costs for retention of its Special 
Counsel, actually incurred by the County but exclusive of normal County overhead including costs and 
salaries related to administrative staff, employees, and similar costs and fees , relating to the negotiation and 
approval of the inducement of the Project, as they shall become due, but in no event later than the date 
which is the earlier of any payment date expressly provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is 
forty-five ( 45) days after receiving written notice from the County, accompanied by such supporting 
documentation as may be necessary to evidence the County' s right to receive such payment, specifying the 
nature of such expense and requesting payment of same. The fees reimbursable under this Section shall in 
no event exceed $5 ,000 in the aggregate. 

[signatures on follo wing pages] 

14 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused this 
Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council and to be 
attested by the County Administrator and the Clerk to County Council; and the Company and Sponsor 
Affiliate have each caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the 
day and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated 

15 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused this 
Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council and to be 
attested by the County Administrator and the Clerk to County Council; and the Company and Sponsor 
Affiliate have each caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the 
day and year first above written. 

16 

[PROJECT UNDERWOOD] 

Name: 
Title: 

DATE __________________________ __ 

Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused this 
Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council and to be 
attested by the County Administrator and the Clerk to County Council; and the Company and Sponsor 
Affiliate have each caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the 
day and year first above written. 

17 

[AFFILIATE] 

Name 
Title 

DATE __________________________ __ 

Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



EXHffiiT A 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

18 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396vl.docx 



EXHffiiTB 

JOINDER AGREEMENT 

Reference is hereby made to (i) that certain Fee Agreement effective December 1, 2020 ( ' 'Fee 
Agreement "), between Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), a company known to and identified 
by the County as Project UNDERWOOD, as sponsor (" Sponsor"), and [AFFILIATE] , a [STATE 
ENTITY] , as a sponsor affiliate ("Affiliate" and, together with Sponsor, the "Company"). 

1. Joinder to Fee Agreement. 

The undersigned hereby (a) joins as a party to, and agrees to be bound by and subject to all of the terms 
and conditions of, the Fee Agreement; (b) acknowledges and agrees that (i) in accordance the Fee 
Agreement, the undersigned has been designated as a Sponsor Affiliate by the Company for purposes of 
the Project and such designation has been consented to by the County in accordance with the Act (as defined 
in the Fee Agreement); (ii) the undersigned qualifies or will qualify as a Sponsor Affiliate under the Fee 
Agreement and Section 12-44-30(20) and Section 12-44-130 of the Act; and (iii) the undersigned shall have 
all of the rights and obligations of a Sponsor Affiliate as set forth in the Fee Agreement. 

2. Capitalized Terms. 

All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Joinder Agreement shall have the meanings set forth 
in the Fee Agreement. 

3. Governing Law. 

This Joinder Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of South Carolina, without regard to principles of choice of law. 

4. Notice. 

Notices under Section 4.1 of the Fee Agreement shall be sent to [Name of Entity] at: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Joinder Agreement to be effective as of 
the date set forth below. 

Date 

By: 
Name: 
Its: 
Address: 

Name of Entity 

19 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company consents to the addition of the above-named entity becoming 
a Sponsor Affiliate under the Fee Agreement effective as of the date set forth above. 

By: 
Name: 
Its: 
Date: 
Address: 

20 Ordinance 2020-038 
PP AB 5928396v l.docx 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-042 

AN ORDINANCE TO DEVELOP A JOINTLY OWNED AND OPERA TED INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS 
PARK IN CONJUNCTION WITH GREENVILLE COUNTY, SUCH INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK 
TO BE GEOGRAPIDCALLY LOCATED IN GREENVILLE COUNTY AND ESTABLISHED 
PURSUANT TO SEC. 4-1-170 OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, AS 
AMENDED; TO PROVIDE FOR A WRITTEN AGREEMENT WITH GREENVILLE COUNTY TO 
PROVIDE FOR THE EXPENSES OF THE PARK, THE PERCENTAGE OF REVENUE 
APPLICATION, AND THE DISTRIBUTION OF FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXATION; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA: 

SECTION 1: Anderson County is hereby authorized to jointly develop an industrial and business 
park with Greenville County (the "Park'} The Park shall be located initially on lands located in Greenville 
County only as authorized by Sec. 4-1-170 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 1976, as amended. 

SECTION 2: Anderson County will enter into a written agreement to develop the Park jointly 
with Greenville County in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 
reference (the "Park Agreement'} The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute the Park 
Agreement on behalf of Anderson County, with such changes thereto as the County Administrator shall deem, 
upon advice of counsel, necessary and do not materially change the import of the matters contained in the form 
of agreement set forth in Exhibit A . 

SECTION 3: The businesses or industries located in the Park will pay a fee in lieu of ad valorem 
taxes as provided for by law or as set forth in the Park Agreement. With respect to properties located in the 
Anderson County portion of the Park, the fee paid in lieu of ad valorem taxes shall be paid to the Treasurer of 
Anderson County. That portion of such fee allocated pursuant to the Park Agreement to Greenville County 
shall be thereafter paid by the Treasurer of Anderson County to the Treasurer of Greenville County within ten 
( 1 0) business days following the end of the calendar quarter of receipt for distribution in accordance with the 
terms of the agreement. With respect to properties located in the Greenville County portion of the Park, the fee 
paid in lieu of ad valorem taxes shall be paid to the Treasurer of Greenville County. That portion of such fee 
allocated pursuant to the Park Agreement to Anderson County shall thereafter be paid by the Treasurer of 
Greenville County to the Treasurer of Anderson County within ten (1 0) business days following the end of the 
calendar quarter of receipt for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Park Agreement. 

SECTION 4: Revenues generated from industries or businesses located in the Anderson County 
portion of the Park and to be retained by Anderson County pursuant to the Park Agreement shall be distributed 
within Anderson County in the following manner: 

First, unless Anderson County elects to pay or credit the same from only those revenues which 
Anderson County would otherwise be entitled to receive as provided under "Third" below, to 
pay annual debt service or other annual payments on any bonds or obligations issued by or on 
behalf of Anderson County pursuant to, or to be utilized as a credit in the manner provided in 
the second paragraph of, Section 4-1-175 , Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, 
or any successor statutes or provisions, or pursuant to any other authorization for the issuance 
of bonds or incurrence of obligations, payable in whole or in part by or from revenues 
generated from any properties in the Park; and 



Second, at the option of Anderson County, to reimburse Anderson County for any expenses 
incurred by it in the development, operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park or the 
businesses located therein or for the economic development of Anderson County; 

Third, to those taxing districts which overlap the applicable properties within Anderson 
County' s portion of the Park, in a pro-rata fashion based on comparative millage rates for the 
year in question of such taxing districts; 

provided, that (i) all taxing districts which overlap the applicable properties within the Park shall receive some 
portion of the revenues generated from such properties; and (ii) all revenues receivable by a taxing entity in a 
fiscal year shall be allocated to operations and maintenance and to debt service as determined by the governing 
body of such taxing entity; and (iii) Anderson County may, by ordinance, from time to time, amend the 
distribution of the fee in lieu of tax payments to all taxing entities. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall supersede and amend in its entirety any other ordinances or 
resolutions of Anderson County Council pertaining to the Park. 

SECTION 6: Should any section of this Ordinance be, for any reason, held void or invalid, it 
shall not affect the validity of any other section hereof which is not itself void or invalid. 

SECTION 7: The Land, as hereinafter described on Exhibit B , is presently located in the West 
End Tax Increment Financing District (" West End TIF') within the City of Greenville. The Anderson County 
Council agrees that upon the earlier of (i) the Land's release from the West End TIF or (ii) the expiration of 
the West End TIF on September 8, 2021, the Land shall be placed into the Park. 

SECTION 8: This Ordinance shall be effective after third and final reading thereof. 

Enacted in meeting duly assembled this _____ day of _____ , 2020. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: November 12, 2020 
Second Reading: _ 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

2 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Ordinance 2020-042 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and received 
majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of November 12, 2020, , 20_ and ___ _ 
20 _ , at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an original of 
which ordinance is flied in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated: 20 
------" 

3 Ordinance 2020-042 



EXHffiiT A 

AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 
JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK 

(GREENVILLE LIGHTHOUSE LLC) 

[see attached] 



EXHffiiTB 

LAND 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

!e yl h n that certain p9tce ifY.1rrcel or tra~t cfla01d lying and b~ing in the City oHiroo1n me. 
GJ~eenvme Co1~m1 , So:1.1th CartlH:na. and being mo[-e p :rtic\..Oiad des~rlbed as foUows: IBeghming 
at a na!l <POlS l ) formin2 t~e comef!' of the int·ijfS'l} .ti n of th of11lwr~ m.~rgin of the righl"of< 
' ay of Rheu treet (50 :loot pubH~ right ·of~w~y) and the ~ terly mf.trgin ·of tht jght-of· " a · · f 
· a·rdlaw treet (SO fuot public tight·- f.-way J and ha ing .. Grid c·oonfti~na~es ·o 

1 ,09S.595.144 E l Sn, 168.1 9; lhence a~ong th@ EPtst .. rlly marr~i:n of thg~ rlght .. of.. ay ·Of 
a!l'dlaw Street 17"')g .• ~6 W a distance of213.9l fuert to ~:n k\l~ p~~. hen~e along 1th~ ommon 

ijn~ of ll' C of re :n viJie. L N 11 .. 54,29 E a di 1{\nce n $0,54 feeuo a.rdron pin, ahe~ce 
fll ng the ~:ommon hm~s of E . Uen n1erprlses. LLC ~nd ;pn;o JL~~ij1111g. em~mj IPaflnl}r·ship 
1 ·16·371E ~L dis~rmoo of27$,94 fee~ loa nail in (lift ilrrorn pipe, fh nee al·ong ~h~ of1lh:r~y rmlr~'n 
of the rnjh~._of-way of1Rhet1 tll'OOl 7~,,4,54 W a distan~ of nS3.84 f\l!et Hl t~e point of 
OO~i :m~fi~g a~nd con~airni:ng 41.994 Sf Of 0,%4 ac:r'e ., more or less. 

IPilflc; '~ll~ AU cert~dn pi~ ·e paJIIiel or 1ra~~ o· hmd lylrng and being in 1~1~ C~~Y ofGreenvUle. 
Gre nvme ount • <"rl.lth CaJr\ilin~t ancl bei~ni more paliicularly d~s :rioo-dl a follow : .B .ghmb1g 
"~~iron ~in {P B 2) on the as~crly m~fgin oftlh . 1·i~ht of-wa ·ofWarcll~w Stre~l (50 t'Q t 
p Jblic right-of-.way) and ~a ing C Grid ·coordin~tes of 1 09~t85RJ72 E )51 ,6 SAOO~ 
them~~ along saicl right .. of~way N ~ 7")Sw26 W a distan e of 4 . 1 fee~ ao a !f~U:!\'l~ilc'l :pijlke. ~hemGe 
a~ nj th~ wmmon Un€1 of A~ua OJ'ti!Ule Trus.l n wo --~2 E ~ (!lQ an e of 1 ~ 1 .44 feel to ~ iron 
pin tDle:rn e along 1he c mmon Hn~ of IE IJen n~erpds~ . , LlLC "' l6~ . ~ ·00 E a dis1ance of 
4 .21 tf~et to ~n iron pi~ ~h nee S 71 .. ; .. 2~ W a dUstan~e of 1 ,O,S lfee'11o 1he ;polnt of~~mninl: 
and c.onta~rn\ng 1,332 ~F Olf OJ 6 ~ere , molf"C o:r tess. 

Thi being the ~me Jllftlpefly convey~d to rantor by de-ecl cfBC C ofG:r-oon me. LLC da~ed 
:Febru~ ey 8, ,.018 {tnd reool'ded F brua:ry 1 • :JH am the 00 Office for Green ille Cm; n Y~ 

outh CamHna kt ~~ Soo ~ ~ 1 at ~e 46 3, 

5 Ordinance 2020-042 



All that pi~e~ piU'cel or lot of ~~nd in Gr ~nviUe To·wn .h p, GreooviU~ County~ St te of 
-O\llth ~Cm-oUna ifldng W{:trdh~w Stiroo·t h$\vi:ng., fi·ont~ge o~f J,~oa ~t ~md depth of 150 ~eet. 
-0~nnin1 st the NorthW{}!ll curner ·of the af.ON!Siiid lot and :running ha ~k with h Nortb 7r;, 

dl@.gr - ~~ F~ t 150 t:aa · t@ the Old F~J1ll~tm . rnd I'"ttrk Irnv.Js!{m Una~ tl1~anoa with tl~at lil'fl _ 
No ·dl 18 d greoo Woot lQ $a t 't·o ft stak~; thene;e South 72 de~e't'ls Wf! t pnrtfllnal Wlith the 
fl~ t e.e~n th1ijrtmf 150 :~9.~t w Vvm'dlttw St-nat, them~e th ~rod Sttat~t So.uth i tl~ ~s Etam 
too (l~ 't 1lt'l the b ghudq. 

Th1 . ~ ·ell~ :sa:m~ pro . atty ~oon¥e}"'ad to The Akua Cluuitiib1e R.(rrr.t.nmder fi\ll~ M~r'C 
Ro~-son. Tnl~l - ~ by Q\lit .. Qalm Deed of Aktnt B·oyann~ da · d Au,~:st 2tn8, 
tt1001f'd,ed Au,gulit -~ ~ ~Ol8 in Deed Book ;\4'4M ~ ~rt P~~e !J.1if1 in the iROO 
Ofiie fo;r (~reenvm~ County~ &uth ChroUna. 

Tru< Map: OO']l,OO-OJL~oc8.oo 108 \'Vriaw w~et~ G:ro· uv!Ue SC 

AU ~~t P~'l:i~~. ~..,1 Md aut of l~~d nooatcd on WendBflW Str~~. in tth·~ County of: Ol'tl.filWifi~~ 
. 't~ ·Qf So·u1ih c rol ~a fbmng hown . 1 s.28l SCjUVI.T~ fe t. 0.3,'ihcf@$ mon~ Ql' 1 ~~\ Oil rpla1 of 

SUifVey pl"tl.J3~d for Alrutt l!oycnn~ !ru~. lao w~udlaw tr1i~t C&lty offucenviU~.~ O.ree:mvm~ 
Co mty~ • out_h_Caroai:mtl by ~rvoy Mat.ter$, L.LCl fiLS 21454, d ted May 2~ ~01 S,. r~\led in 
PJ~t Sa~ t '$ J") -· e~t JPe~ge ~ 1 m the f(00 Offi.~f2 fuj' ~m m~ Co~'llityl , QUtb Carolina, 
S~d p.l:t~t ii in~orpOIMted heJNin for a rm-o:re full Mel Qm}l!{lte $"rniptio1A , s to tnlc mo~ ;md 
huund$ of ~:aitll PJ'trpcrty, 

Thi8 ~CJ P<'fiim J}R"Jpmty ·oon ·tJ~d to Ab:t lila)'tJM b · it-Cll!m Tkod of Altus & ffl 1ft . t. 
All~C®rd~ ":ilwi•det$o~A~ 3 ~~0181a~cdAugf ~ 1 ~ ~Ol.Sm~:Book 
l-~AA __ it lP~ M:t~l. )ft tllire ROD om · :llrla Cawty~-~ufb ~fiin , 

T~ Mt~JP: 007LOO-Ol ·i008.04 - HOW td~ft Strof!t. f{}0Jwit!l~. S _, 

6 Ordinance 2020-042 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 
) 

AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 
JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK 

(LIGHTHOUSE GREENVILLE LLC) 

This AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF JOINT COUNTY 
INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK (LIGHTHOUSE GREENVILLE LLC) (this "Agreement'~ to be 
located within Greenville County and Anderson County is made and entered into as of this day 
of , 2020, by and between Greenville County, South Carolina ("Greenville County'~ and 
Anderson County, South Carolina ("Anderson County" and collectively, the "Counties'l 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Greenville County and Anderson County are contiguous counties, which pursuant 
to Ordinance No. enacted by Greenville County Council on , 2020, and 
Ordinance No. 2020-__ enacted by Anderson County Council on , 2020 (collectively, 
the "Enabling Ordinances'~ , have each determined that, in order to promote economic development and 
thus provide additional employment opportunities within both Counties, there should be established, 
initially in Greenville County, a Joint County Industrial/Business Park (Lighthouse Greenville LLC) (the 
"Park'~, to be located upon property described in Exhibit A hereto; and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment of the Park, property comprising the Park 
and all property having a situs therein shall be exempt from ad valorem taxation pursuant to Article VIII, 
Section 13 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as amended (the "State 
Constitution'~ , but the owners or lessees of such property shall pay annual fees in an amount equal to that 
amount for which such owner or lessee would be liable except for such exemption; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and benefits 
contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows : 

1. Binding Agreement. This Agreement serves as a written instrument setting forth the 
entire agreement between the parties and shall be binding on Greenville County and Anderson County, 
and their successors and assigns. 

2. Authorization. Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution provides that 
counties may jointly develop an industrial or business park with other counties within the geographical 
boundaries of one or more of the partner counties, provided that certain conditions specified therein are 
met and further provided that the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina provides by law a 
manner in which the value of property in such park will be considered for purposes of bonded 
indebtedness of political subdivisions and school districts and for purposes of computing the index of 
taxpaying ability pursuant to any provision of law which measures the relative fiscal capacity of a school 
district to support its schools based on the assessed valuation of taxable property in the district as 
compared to the assessed valuation of taxable property in all school districts in South Carolina. Section 
4-1-170, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "SC Code'~ satisfied the conditions 
imposed by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle 
whereby a joint county industrial or business park may be created. 



3. Location of the Park. 

(A) Upon execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Parties hereto and without further 
action by either County, effective immediately upon the earlier of the following: the release of the 
Greenville County Property, hereinafter defined, from the West End Tax Increment District ("West End 
TIP"); or (ii) the expiration of the West End TIP, which is scheduled to expire on September 8, 2021 , the 
Park shall consist solely of property located in Greenville County only, as further identified in Exhibit A 
("Greenville County Property"). It is specifically recognized that the Park may, from time to time, consist 
of non-contiguous properties within each County. The boundaries of the Park may be enlarged or 
diminished from time to time as authorized by ordinances or resolutions of the County Councils of both 
Greenville County and Anderson County. Since the Park encompasses a portion of the City of Greenville, 
South Carolina, the Counties have obtained the consent of the City of Greenville prior to creation of the 
Park. If the Park subsequently encompasses all or a portion of a municipality, the Counties must obtain 
the consent of the municipality prior to expanding the Park. 

(B) In the event of any enlargement or diminution of the boundaries of the Park, this 
Agreement shall be deemed amended and there shall be attached to the ordinance an Exhibit A 
(Greenville County Property) which shall contain a legal description of the property to be added and/or 
diminished. 

(C) Prior to the enactment by Greenville County Council and by Anderson County Council of 
ordinances authorizing the diminution of the boundaries of the Park, separate public hearings shall first be 
held by Greenville County Council and by Anderson County Council. Notice of such public hearings 
shall be published in newspapers of general circulation in Greenville County and Anderson County, 
respectively, at least once and not less than fifteen (15) days prior to such hearing. Notice of such public 
hearings shall also be served in the manner of service of process at least fifteen (15) days prior to such 
public hearing upon the owner and, if applicable, the lessee of any real property which would be excluded 
from the Park by virtue of the diminution. 

(D) The owner, or, if applicable, lessee of any property located within the Park, may remove 
personal property from the Park at any time, unless specifically prohibited otherwise. 

4. Fee in Lieu of Taxes. Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution, 
property located in the Park shall be exempt from ad valorem taxation. The owners or lessees of the 
Greenville County Property situated in the Park shall pay in accordance with this Agreement an amount 
(referred to as fees in lieu of ad valorem property taxes) equivalent to the ad valorem property taxes that 
would have been due and payable but for the location of such property within the Park, provided that this 
paragraph shall not prohibit Greenville County or Anderson County from entering into a negotiated fee
in-lieu of tax incentive agreement applicable to any property located within the Park. Payments of fees in 
lieu of taxes will be made on or before the due date for taxes for a particular year. Penalties for late 
payment will be at the same rate as late tax payment. Any late payment beyond said date will accrue 
interest at the rate of statutory judgment interest. The Counties, acting by and through the Treasurers of 
Greenville County and Anderson County, shall maintain all liens and rights to foreclose upon liens 
provided for counties in the collection of ad valorem taxes . 

5. Allocation of Expenses. Greenville County and Anderson County shall bear expenses, 
including, but not limited to, development, operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park and the cost 
of providing public services, in the following proportions: 

2 
Ordinance 2020-042 

44205228 v i 

HSB 6425812 v.S 



If property is in the Greenville County portion of the Park: 

A. Greenville County 100% 

B. Anderson County 0% 

If property is in the Anderson County portion of the Park: 

A. Greenville County 0% 

B. Anderson County 100% 

6. Allocation of Revenues. Greenville County and Anderson County shall receive an 
allocation of all revenue generated by the Park through payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem property 
taxes or from any other source (net of any special source revenue credits provided by either County) in 
the following proportions: 

If property is in the Greenville County portion of the Park: 

A. Greenville County 99% 

B. Anderson County 1% 

If property is in the Anderson County portion of the Park: 

A. Greenville County 1% 

B. Anderson County 99% 

7. Revenue Allocation Within Each County. 

(A) Revenues generated by the Park through the payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes shall be distributed to Greenville County and to Anderson County, as the case may be, 
according to the proportions established by Paragraph 6 herein. With respect to revenues allocable to 
Greenville County or Anderson County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated within its own County 
(the "Host County'~, such revenue shall be distributed within the Host County in the manner provided by 
the county council of the Host County; provided, that (i) all taxing districts which overlap the applicable 
revenue-generating portion of the Park shall receive at least some portion of the revenues generated from 
such portion, and (ii) with respect to amounts receivable in any fiscal year by a taxing entity, the 
governing body of such taxing entity shall allocate the revenues received to operations and/or debt service 
of such entity. Each Host County is hereby specifically authorized to use a portion of revenue for 
economic development purposes as permitted by law and as established by ordinance of the County 
Council of the Host County. 

(B) Revenues allocable to Greenville County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated within 
Anderson County shall be distributed solely to Greenville County. Revenues allocated to Anderson 
County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated within Greenville County shall be distributed solely to 
Anderson County. 

3 
Ordinance 2020-042 

44205228 v i 

HSB 6425812 v.5 



8. Fees In Lieu of Taxes Pursuant to Title 4 or Title 12 of the SC Code. It is hereby agreed 
that the entry by Greenville County into any one or more fee in lieu of tax agreements pursuant to Title 4 
or Title 12 of the SC Code with respect to Greenvi.Jle County Property located within the Greenville 
County portion of the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be at the sole discretion of Greenville 
County. Likewise, entry by Anderson County into any one or more fee in lieu of tax agreements pursuant 
to Title 4 or Title 12 of the SC Code with respect to Greenville County Property located within the 
Anderson County portion of the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be at the sole discretion of 
Anderson County. 

9. Regulation and Jurisdiction. Except with respect to Park property located within the 
corporate limits of a municipality wherein such municipality's applicable ordinances shall apply, any 
ordinances of Greenville County and Anderson County concerning zoning, health and safety regulations, 
and building code requirements will apply for the respective portions of the Park in Greenville County 
and Anderson County. The Sheriffs Departments of Greenville County and Anderson County will have 
jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise all authority and power within the boundaries of the respective 
portions of the Park in Greenville County and Anderson County. Municipal police shall have concurrent 
law enforcement jurisdiction for any portion of the Park located within the corporate limits of such 
municipality. Emergency services and all other municipal services will be provided in the Park by 
whatever providers provide such services in the respective Greenville County and Anderson County 
portions of the Park. 

1 0. Assessed Valuation. For the purpose of calculating the bonded indebtedness limitation 
and for the purpose of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to Section 59-20-20(3) of the SC 
Code, allocation of the assessed value of property within the Park to Greenville County and Anderson 
County and to each of the taxing entities within the participating Counties shall be identical to the 
allocation of revenue received and retained by each of the Counties and by each of the taxing entities 
within the participating Counties, pursuant to Paragraph 6 and 7 herein. 

11. Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any provision or 
any part of a provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remainder of that 
provision or any other provision or part of a provision of this Agreement. 

12. Termination. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, 
Greenville County and Anderson County agree that this Agreement will automatically terminate upon the 
expiration or earlier termination of the Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement by and between Greenville County, 
South Carolina and Lighthouse Greenville LLC dated as of , 2020. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

4 
Ordinance 2020-042 

44205228 v i 

HSB 6425812 v.5 



WITNESS our hands and seals as of the date first above written. 

GREENVll.,LE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: 
----~------~----------------------

Chairman of County Council 
Greenville County, South Carolina 

By: ______________ _ 

County Administrator 
Greenville County, South Carolina 

ATIEST: 

By: ---------------------------------
Clerk to County Council 
Greenville County, South Carolina 

[Signature Page 1 -Agreement for Development of Joint County Industrial/Business Park 
(Lighthouse Greenville LLC)] 

5 
Ordinance 2020-042 

44205228 vi 

HSB 6425812 v.S 



ATTEST: 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

[Signature Page 2 - Agreement for Development of Joint County Industrial/Business Park 
(Lighthouse Greenville LLC)] 

6 
Ordinance 2020-042 

44205228 vi 

HSB 6425812 v.S 



EXHIDIT A 

GREENVILLE COUNTY PROPERTIES 

A-1 
44205228 v i 

HSB 64258 12 v.S 



EXHIDITB 

ANDERSON COUNTY PROPERTIES 

None. 

44205228 v i B-1 
HSB 6425812 v.S 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-043 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND A COMPANY OR COMPANIES KNOWN 
TO THE COUNTY AT TIDS TIME AS PROJECT MALIDU WITH RESPECT TO 
CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, 
WHEREBY SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS 
IN LIEU OF TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL 
SOURCE CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the "County '~ , acting by and 
through its County Council (the "County Council'~, is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "PILOT Act'~ , Title 4, Chapter 1 (the "Multi-County Park 
Act'~, and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such 
powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the "State'~ will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated October 6, 2020 (the "Inducement 
Agreement'~ with Project Malibu, a South Carolina limited liability company (the "Company'~ , with 
respect to the acquisition, construction, and installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures , 
machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property to constitute an upfitting 
of an existing facility in the County for the manufacturing of blow molding plastic (collectively, the 
"Project'~; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $80,000,000 in the County and the expected creation of 131 new, full-time jobs at the 
Project, all within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the hereinafter defmed Fee Agreement; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a "project" and "economic development property" as such terms are 
defmed in the PILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the PILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
Vill, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park such that the Project 
will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other 
things,( a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the "Fee 
Agreement'~, whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by the 
Company with respect to the Project, and (b) provide for certain special source credits to be claimed by the 



Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-1-
175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and 

WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 

WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows : 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a "project" and "economic development property" as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County's actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of 
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver 
the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby 
authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and 
Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby 
approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the County Administrator, upon 
advice of counsel, his execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and all 
changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 4. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 

2 Ordinance 2020-043 



Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this 1st day of December, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: November 12, 2020 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

3 Ordinance 2020-043 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of November 12, 2020, _ __ _ 
2020, and December 1, 2020, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated: _ _ _ , 2020 



FEE IN LIE U OF TAX AND 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

Between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

and 

Project Malibu 

Dated as of ____ , 20 _ 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 D EFfN!TlONS . .... ....... .. .... ...... ... ... .. ....... . .. . .. . ..... ...... ..... . ..................... .... .. ........... ....... ......... ... .. ......... ... ..... 3 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ..... ..... . .. .. .............. ................................................. .. ..... .... . . .. ...... ....... 6 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, W ARRANTrES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY ................................................. 7 
S ECTION 2.02 R EPRESENTATIONS, W ARRANTrES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COM PANY .. .. .... ............ ........ .. .... .. .......... 7 

ARTICLE Ill 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ... . .. .. .... ... .. . ... ..... ............... .... .. ... ..... ... ... . .... .. ............................ .. ..... ... .............. .. .... . .. .. .... .. . 8 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ........... .. .. ........... ................... ...... .. ..... .. ... .......... .... . .. . .. .... ................ ...... .. ...... ...... 8 
S ECTION 3.03 FILfNGS AND REPORTS ........................................ .. ...... ................. .. .. . .. ......... ..... ............... .... ....... .... ........ 8 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

S ECTION 4 .01 FlLOT PAYMENTS ............................................................................................. ................ ................... 1 0 
S ECTION 4 .02 SPEC IAL S OU RCE REVE NUE CREDITS .................................. ...... .. . . ........ . .. ....... .. ........................... ... 11 
SECTION 4 .03 FAILURE TO A C HIEVE MfNIM UM I NVESTM ENT REQUIREMENT ...... .. .... .. ......... ........................... ............ 12 
SECTION 4 .04 R EMOVAL OF EQU IPMENT ................................. .... .......... ......... ...... .............................. .......................... 12 
SECTION 4.05 FILOT P AYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .......................... ............ .... . ..................................... 13 
SECTION 4.06 REDUCTIONS fN P AYMENT OFT AXES UPON DIMINUT ION IN V ALUE; INVESTMENT M AINTENANCE 

REQUrREM ENT ...... .. .. .................................... .... ..................... .... .. .... .. .. . . .... . .... ... .......... .. ....................... 13 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

S ECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF 0PERATIONS ....................................................... ..... .. ..... ... . ...... .. .. ..... ....... .. ........... . .. .... .. 14 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSP ECT ... ...... ... .......... . ........ .. ... . ..... ............ .. . .. .. .. ... ... ......... . ............. .......... ... ... .. ... .. ............. 14 
S ECTION 5.03 CONF!DENTIALITY ..... ..... . .. ... . ... . ... ...... .. ....... ....... ..... .. .. .. .... ...... .... ... .. ........ ... ..................... ........... .. .... ..... 14 
S ECTION 5.04 LfMITATION OF COUNTY ' S LIABILITY ......... .. ... .. .......... . ...... ..................... ........ .... ......................... .. . ... ... 14 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS , REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANS FERS .... .. .. ..... .. .... .. .... .. .... ........ ...... .. ............... ..... .. .. 15 
SECTION 5.06 I NDEMN IFICATION COVENANTS ... ..... .... .. . ... . .... ... .. . .. .... ..... ................... .. . ...... ... ............... ......... .. ... ..... ... . 15 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION fN STATE ............... .... .... .. ........ .. ......................................... . ....... .... .. ............. .. .... .. ....... 16 
S ECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY'S PERSONNEL ....... ...... .. .. . ............ ................... .. ........ .... ........ ................. .... .. 16 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNM ENT, LEASES OR TRANS FERS ....... .... ....... .. ................ ..... ... ............................ .... .. ................ ..... 16 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION E XPENSES .......... . . ....... ............... ..... ..... ... ... ... .. ......... .. ... . ......... .. ................... . ... .. ... . .... l7 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS ................................ ...... ....................... .... ......................................................... 17 
S ECTION 5. 12 INTEREST; PENAL TrES .... .. ....... .. .. .. ... ............ ....... .. .. .. ...... ........... .................................. ....................... ... 17 
S ECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFIL!ATES ............. .. ... . .. .. ........................... .. ... . .. .... ........... ... . ............... ...... ............ . .. ............ 17 



ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

SECTIO 6.0 1 E VE TS OFOEFAULT ........ ....... .. .. .... ... .... .... ... .... ...... ... ........... ........ .. ... ... ... .... ....... ... ....................... ... ..... 19 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON D EFAULT .. ..... .. ............... .. ..... ..... ........ ... .......... ................ ................................ .... ....... 19 
SECTION 6.03 RElMBURSEMENT OF L EGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES .. ........ .... .... ...... ... ... ... .... ... .... . 20 
SECTION 6.04 Now AN ER ... ..... ........ ... ........ .. ....... ....... .......................... ............ ...... .... .. ... ........ .... .. ... .... ...... ... .... .. .... .. . 20 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES .... ......... ... ...... .......... .... ... ... .. ... ....... ... ........ .... .. ..... ...... ... .. ...... .... .... ............... .... ......... .... ... ... ..... . 2 1 
SECTION 7.02 B INDING EFFECT ....... .... ... ............ ...... .. ..... ... ... .... ..... .... ....... .. ...... .. ... ... ..... ... .... .... ....... .... ... .. ....... ... ......... 21 
SECT ION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS .................. ............. ........ ........ .. .... .... .. ..... .... .. ..... ...... ... .. .... .. ...... .. ... .... ..... ... ... ..... .... .. .. .. 22 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING L AW ........... .... .. ..... ... ... ...... ..... .. .. .. ............. ... .. ...... ............. ... ... ..... .... ... .. .. .. .. ... .... .. ..... ... ...... 22 
SECTION 7.05 H EADINGS .... ... .... .. ..... ... ....... ......... .. ... .... .. .... .. .... ..... .. .... .. ...... ..... .. ... .... ........ ... ... ....... ............ .. ...... .. .. .. .... 22 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS .... .... ............... ............... .... ... ..... ... .. .......... .. ........... .... ..... ... ... .......... ..... .. .. .... ... ..... ..... ..... .. 22 
SECTIO 7.07 F URTHER ASSURANCE ...................... ...... ......... .. ... ....... .. ........... .. ......... ....... .. .. ....... ... ...... ... .... .. .. .. .. .... ..... 22 
SECTION 7.08 I NVALIDITY; C HANGE IN L AWS ......... ........ ....... ... .. .... .. ... .. ...... ... ........ ...... ..... ........... ...... ... ..... .... .. ...... .. ... 22 
SECTION 7.09 T ERMINATION BY COMPANY ..... ... ....... .... ... .... ........ ....... .... ... .... .... ................. .... .... .. ..... .. .. ........ ....... .. .. ... 22 
SECTION 7. I 0 ENTlRE U NDERSTANDING ....... ..... ...... ....... .... ...... ... ........ ... .. .... ..... .... ...... ......... .... ..... ............ ... .... .... ...... . 23 
SECTIOJ 7.1 1 W AN ER ...... ... ..... .... ........ ... ... .. ....... ... ..... ..... ... .. .... ... ......... ..... .. ... ... .......... ............... .. .. .......... ... .... .... .. ..... 23 
SECTION 7.12 B USINESS D AY .... ........ ............ .. ....... ....... ... ... .... .... ................. .......... .... ...... ....... .. ..... .... ... .. ... .. ... ....... ... ... 23 

EXHffiiT A - D ESCRIPTION OF L AND 

EXHffiiT B - I NVESTM ENT CERTIFICATION 

EXHffilT C - I NFRASTRUCTURE I NVESTM ENT C ERTIFICATION 

11 



SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the 
"Code"), the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code. The 
following is a summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement. This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in 
Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the 
Code. 

Company Name: Pro.iect Name: Project Malibu 
Projected Investment: $80,000,000 Projected Jobs: 131 
Location (street): 200 Masters Boulevard Tax Map No.: 

Anderson, SC 29626 
1. FILOT 

Required Investment: $20,000,000 
Investment Period: 5 years after the Commencement Ordinance No./Date: 

Date 
Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (yea rs): 30 
Fixed Millage: Net Present Value (if 

320.5 yes, discount rate) : 
Clawback information : 

See Section 4 .03 

2. MCIP Yes 
Included in an MCIP: 
If yes, Name & Date: 

3. SSRC 
Total Amount: See Sect ion 4.02 
No. of Years 20 
Yearly Increments : 80% years l -5 , 60% years 6- 10 and 50% years ll-20 
Clawbac k information: 

Sec Section 4.02(c) 

4. Other information 

iii 



FEE IN LIEU OFT AX AGREEMENT 

THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (the "Fee 
Agreement") is made and entered into as of , 20_ by and between ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the "County") , a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the "State"), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the 
"County Councif') as the govemmg body of the County, and Project 
Malibu , a organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of South Carolina (the "Company") . 

RECITALS 

l. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "FILOT Act"), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended (the "Code") , authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage 
industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, 
products, and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the 
requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development 
property and provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-l-170 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source 
revenue credit ("Special Source Revenue Credit") financing secured by and payable solely from revenues 
of the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the 
Code, namely: the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
"I nfrastr uct ure"). 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a facility in the County for 
the manufacturing distribution of blow molding plastic and related products . 

4. Based on infotmation supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to 
accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or 
maintained, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section l2-44-40(H)( 1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately 
provided locally; (b) the Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality therein and to no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be 
accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the 
Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created 
with an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the 
Code and Article VIII, Section l3(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on , 20 _, the County Council has authorized 
the County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 



provision of Special Source Revenue Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain 
Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERA TlON of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

2 



ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01 Definitions 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

"Administration Expenses" shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County 
has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the 
reason it has been or will be incurred. 

"Affiliate" shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity 
which owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or 
which is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor 
Affiliate) or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, 
such Sponsor Affiliate) , as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship 
to the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 
267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Code" shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended. 

"Commencement Date" shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

"Company" shall mean , a , and any surviving, resulting, or 
transferee entity in any merger, consolidation , or transfer of assets; or any other person or entity which 
may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company. 

"Condemnation Event" shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority 
through condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 

"Contract Minimum Investment Requirement" shall mean, with respect to the Project, 
investment by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least $20,000,000 in Economic 
Development Property subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the absence of this Fee 
Agreement). 

"County" shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as 
the governing body of the County. 

"County Administrator" shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 

"County Assessor" shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

3 



"County Auditor" shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

"County Council" shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

"County Treasurer" shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

"Defaulting Entity" shall have the meaning set forth for such tenn in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

"Deficiency Amount" shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

"Department" shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

"Diminution in Value" in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step l of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT 
payments which may be caused by the Company's or any Sponsor Affiliate's removal and/or disposal of 
equipment pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a 
result of any damage or destmction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

"Economic Development Property" shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which arc eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act 
and this Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its 
annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300S or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be 
amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

"Equipment" shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture , office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

"Event ofDefault" shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.0 I hereof. 

"Exemption Period" shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year 
after the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in 
service and ending on the Termination Date. In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption 
Period applies to each year's investment made during the Investment Period. 

"Fee Agreement" shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement. 

"FILOT" or "FILOT Payments" shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

"F/LOT Act" shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

"FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement" shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5 ,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 

4 



"Improvements" shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessiOns, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

"Infrastructure" shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

"Investment Period" shall mean, and shall be equal to , the Standard Investment Period 

"Investment Target" shall mean the result in an expected investment by the Company in the 
Project of at least $80,000,000 

"Jobs Creation Target" shall mean the expected creation by the Company of at least 131 net new, 
full-time, jobs (with benefits) with respect thereto. 

"Standard Investment Period" shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement 
Date. 

"Land" means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.0l(c) 
hereof. 

"MCIP Act" shall mean Title 4, Chapter I , of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

"MCIP Agreement" shall mean the [name of agreement] dated as of __ , as 
amended, between the County and County, South Carolina, as the same may be further 
amended or supplemented from time to time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with 
respect to the Project to offer the benefits of the Special Source Revenue Credits to the Company 
hereunder. 

"MCIP" shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

"Phase" or "Phases" in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word "Phase" shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the 
Investment Period. 

"Project" shall mean [the Land and] all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property. Notwithstanding anything in this 
Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the 
FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-ll 0 of the FILOT Act, including without limitation property which has 
been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; 
provided, however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real 

5 



property portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-11 0(2) of the 
FILOT Act. 

"Removed Components" shall mean components of the Project or p01iions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

"Replacement Property" shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of 
whether such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether 
more than one piece of propetiy replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent 
that the FILOT Act permits . 

"Special Source Credits" shall mean the annual special source credits provided to the Company 
pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof. 

"Sponsor Affiliate" shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

"Standard Investment Period" shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Prope1iy and ending five (5) years after the Commencement 
Date. 

"State" shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

"Termination Date" shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

"Transfer Provisions" shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers . 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02 Project-Related Investments 

The term "investment" or "invest" as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants , to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments by the Company. 

[End of Article I] 

6 



ARTlCLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 2.01 Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 

The County hereby represents , warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and 
acts through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a "project" within 
the meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is 320.5 mills, which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2021, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-SO(A)(l )(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a 
MCIP for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special 
Source Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02 Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 

The Company hereby represents , warrants, and agrees as follows : 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of South 
Carolina, is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, 
and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a "project" within the meaning of the 
FILOT Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of 
manufacturing blow molding plastic, and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act permits as the 
Company may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. 

[End of Article II] 

7 



ARTICLE Ill 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

Section 3.01 The Project 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct 
and acquire the Project, (ii) meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement, and (iii) create 
approximately 131 net new, full-time jobs (with benefits) within the Investment Period. The Company 
anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service during the calendar year ending 
December 31, 2021. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the 
County hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets 
which are eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT -300S 
form (or comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) 
and that by listing such assets , such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property 
and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained 
in this Fee Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not 
be obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any 
Sponsor Affiliates, does not meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period, the provisions of Section 4 .03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real propetiy, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deli ve r an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee 
Agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02 Diligent Completion 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon 
as practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03 Filings and Reports 

(a) Each year during the tem1 of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer 
a copy of their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than 
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the 
completed Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, 
and to their counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fcc Agreement by all 
parties hereto . 

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project. Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) 
confirm the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made 

8 



by the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with 
respect to property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article rii] 

9 



ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

Section 4.01 FILOT Payments 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates, as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with 
respect to the Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial 
investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax aJTangement under Section 
12-44-50(A)(l) of the FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the 
FILOT Payments in accordance therewith . The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the 
Project and is placed in service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic 
Development Property or, if there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to 
each Phase of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and 
payable and subject to penalty assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the 
County for ad valorem taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be 
in accordance with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the 
FILOT Act) : 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Propetiy) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income 
tax basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to 
depreciation (provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length 
transaction is equal to the original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market 
value is by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal 
property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary 
obsolescence shall be allowable . The fair market value of the real property for the first year of the 
Exemption Period remains the fair market value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the 
Exemption Period. The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable property tax 
exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were 
taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows . 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to 
establ ish the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such 
longer period of years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT payments . 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of 320.5 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value to 
determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates. 

10 



(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County. If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with 
appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates. Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and 
such Sponsor Affiliates, with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates 
previously remitted FILOT Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all app licable 
tax exemptions to which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic 
Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and 
(ii) be reduced by the total amount of FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had 
made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof. 

Section 4.02 Special Source Credits 

(a) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-l-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Standard Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to 
receive, and the County agrees to provide Special Source Credits to reimburse the Company in respect of 
its investment in Infrastructure pertaining to the Project. In these respects , the Company shall be entitled 
to claim a Special Source Credit equal to (i) 80% of each year's FILOT Payments for each of the first five 
years of FILOT Payments, (ii) 60% of each year's FILOT Payments for years 6 through l 0, and (iii) 50% 
of each year's FILOT Payments for years ll through 20 with each Special Source Credit to be calculated 
and applied after any amount due the non-host county(ies) , with respect to the Project (that is , with 
respect to investment made by the Company under the Fee Agreement during the Investment Period) for 
twenty (20) consecutive years. Provided, if either the Investment Target or the Jobs Creation Target are 
not in place within the five years of the first year of investment of economic investment property subject 
to the Fee Agreement, the Special Source Credits shall be reduced to 40% for the remaining term. 
However, if the Investment Target and the Jobs Creation Target are obtained by December 31 of the 
seventh year of the Fee Agreement, the Special Source Credits shall return to 60% for the remaining years 
until the 1 0'11 year and 50% for years ll through 20. The Company shall not be entitled to any recapture 
of credits during the 6'11 and 7'11 year that this reduction is enacted. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken. 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the 
Company exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company 
shall be responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the 
preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
~. 

(d) Should the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement not be met by the end of the 
Standard Investment Period, any Special Source Credits otherwise payable under this Agreement shall no 
longer be payable by the County, and the Company shall be retroactively liable to the County for the 

II 



amount of the Special Source Credits previously received by the Company, plus interest at the rate 
payable for late payment of taxes . Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing 
sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth (120t") day following the 
last day of the Investment Period. 

(e) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credit is taken 
against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the Project 
at any time during the term of this Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), the 
amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property was 
removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(f) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for FILOT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such FILOT Payments otherwise due by the 
amount of the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax year. 

(g) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the FILOT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to , a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory 
limitation, are payable solely from a special source that docs not include revenues from any tax or license, 
and are not a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the 
County. 

Section 4.03 Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates , fails to meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate and the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount which is equal to 
the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on the 
Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts , and other 
political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic Development Propet1y were not 
Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and 
abatements to which the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled in such a case, through 
and including the end of the Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of FILOT payments the 
Company and such Sponsor Affiliates have made with respect to the Economic Development Property 
(after taking into account any Special Source Revenue Credits received) (such excess, a "Deficiency 
Amount") for the period through and including the end of the Investment Period. Any amounts determined 
to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one 
hundred twentieth ( 120t") day following the last day of the Investment Period. 

b As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding 
December 31 of each year during the Investment Period. 

Section 4 .04 Removal of Equipment 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project 
in its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the 

12 



Project and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to 
the terms of this Fee Agreement. Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is 
scrapped or sold or removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem 
property taxes to the extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem 
property taxes. 

Section 4.05 FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic 
Development Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement 
Property, then, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard 
to such Replacement Property in accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the 
Economic Development Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is deemed to replace the 
oldest Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is 
disposed of in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service. 
Replacement Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the 
original income tax basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the 
same property tax year. More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic 
Development Property. To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property 
exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is 
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for 
Economic Development Property were not allowable. Replacement Property is entitled to 
treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time remaining during the Exemption Period 
for the Economic Development Property which it is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Propetiy which qualifies for the FILOT shall be 
recorded using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate 
and assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06 Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the Payment in 
Lieu of Taxes with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion 
as the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic 
Development Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.0 l(a) hereof; provided, however, 
that if at any time subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining 
in the County based on the original income tax basis thereof (that is , without regard to depreciation), is 
less than the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment 
thereafter due hereunder and continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled 
to the incentive provided in Section 4.01 , and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore 
commence to pay regular ad valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.0 l(b) hereof. 

[End of Article IV) 

13 



ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 5.0 I Cessation of Operations 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County's obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may 
end, and this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County's sole discretion, if the 
Company ceases operations at the Project; provided, however, that the Special Source Credits provided 
for in this Fee Agreement shall automatically terminate if the Company ceases operations as set forth in 
this Section 5.01. For purposes of this Section, "ceases operations" means closure of the facility or the 
cessation of production and shipment of products to customers for a continuous period of twelve (12) 
months. The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, 
if this Fee Agreement is terminated in accordance with this Section prior to the end of the Investment 
Period. Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is tetminated 
pursuant to this subsection, that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any 
monies to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02 Rights to Inspect 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all 
reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The 
County and its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable 
notice, to have access to examine and inspect the Company 's South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. 
The aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and 
necessary terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of 
Section 5.03 hereof. 

Section 5.03 Confidentiality 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials , services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein "Confidential Information"). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County "Confidential Information." The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law. Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04 Limitation of County ' s Liability 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or 

l4 



a debt or general obligation of the County [(it being intended herein that any obligations of the County 
with respect to the Special Source Revenue Credits shall be payable only from FILOT payments received 
from or payable by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates)] ; provided, however, that nothing herein shall 
prevent the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05 Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-
120 of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for 
purposes of the Transfer Provisions . Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it 
is not intended in this Fee Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the 
Company, any Sponsor Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06 Indemnification Covenants 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the "Indemnified 
Parties") harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, 
contractors, and agents during the Term, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, defend and save the 
Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the Term from (i) entering into 
and perfonning its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach 
or default on the part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of any of its 
obligations under this Fee Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
or its agents , contractors, servants, employees or licensees, (v) any act of negligence of any assignee or 
lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or (vi) any environmental 
violation, condition, or effect with respect to the Project. The Company shall indemnify, defend and save 
the County harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such 
claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon 
notice from the County, the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with 
legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld) . 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings 
required of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the FILOT, by reason of the execution of 
this Fee Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, or by reason of the County's relationship to the Project or by the operation of the 
Project by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in 
connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the 
County or any of the other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such 
event the Company shall indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of 
any person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the 

15 



Company shall defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County 
(the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall 
not apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or 
willful misconduct of the County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee 
Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party 
resulting from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, shall survive any tennination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07 Qualification in State 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08 No Liability of County's Personnel 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and 
shall be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and 
no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing 
body of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no 
recourse shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, 
servant or employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the 
County herein contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09 Assignment, Leases or Transfers 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all 
or any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the 
Project, or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part 
of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, 
synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar 
arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of 
such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the 
Project in question to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate. In order to preserve the FILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion 
of the Project so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any 
transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers , leases, or financing 
arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent 
ratification of the County which consent or subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its 
sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the 
Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing the 
obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any 

16 



Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated 
to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may 
be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; 
(iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) 
days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy 
of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions . 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the 
assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
under this Fee Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this 
Section. 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.1 0 Administration Expenses 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly 
provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice 
from the County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the 
County' s or Indemnified Party's right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and 
requesting payment of same. 

Section 5.11 Priority Lien Status 

The County's right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(£) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49 , 51 , 53 , and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12 Interest; Penalties 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was 
due and, in the case of FILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law 
and subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 

Section 5.13 Sponsor Affiliates 

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 

17 



investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to 
the terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably 
acceptable to the County. The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice 
of any Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the 
calendar year during which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the FILOT Act. 

[End of Article V] 

18 



ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

Section 6.01 Events ofDefault 

The following shall be "Events of Default" under this Fee Agreement, and the term "Event of 
Default" shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the 
following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described 
in Section 4 .01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or 

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
o~ligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above) , which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is 
diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be 
extended to cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 

Section 6.02 Remedies Upon Default 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the 
"Defaulting Entity") shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of 
the following remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder. 

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company's (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet 
the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act. In this regard, and 

19 



notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies 
that general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced 
collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03 Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred. 

Section 6.04 No Waiver 

No failure or delay on the part of any patiy hereto in exercising any right , power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, 
power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, 
or remedy hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the waiving party hereto . 

[End of Artic le VI] 

20 



ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 7.01 Notices 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such 
provision shall control: 

Section 7.02 

If to the Company: 

Attn: 

With a copy to : 

If to the County: 

Anderson County 
Attn: County Administrator 
I 0 l S. Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 296--24 

With a copy to: 

Anderson County Attorney 
1 0 1 S. Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

Binding Effect 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns . In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of 
the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other 
such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee 
Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any 
entity, officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of 
the County bas been transferred. 

21 



Section 7.03 Counterparts 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04 Governing Law 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05 Headings 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are insetied for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement . 

Section 7.06 Amendments 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parti es. 

Section 7.07 Further Assurance 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FlLOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08 Invalidity; Change in Laws 

In the event that the inclusion of proper1y as Economic Development Property or any other issue 
is unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of 
this Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the 
terms of this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent 
not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof. If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and 
such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most closely the legal , 
valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the 
maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the FILOT Act, to 
locate the Project in the County. In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws eliminates or 
reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates and 
the FILOT incentive, the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full consideration to 
reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws . 

Section 7.09 Termination by Company 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days' written notice; provided. however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party 

22 



hereto (including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any 
provisions which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following 
such termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu 
of taxation that would apply absent this Agreement . The Company's obligation to make FILOT Payments 
under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination pursuant to 
this section. 

Section 7.10 Entire Understanding 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any 
representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates 
delivered in connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11 Waiver 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12 Business Day 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of A11icle VII] 

23 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the Chairman of County Council and to be 
attested by the County Administrator and the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above 
written. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

(SEAL) By: ________________ _ 
Chairman of County Council 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________ _ 
County Administrator 

By: ______________ ___ 

Clerk to County Council of 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

[Signature Page I to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement} 

24 



By: 
Its: 

{Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu ofTax and Special Source Credit Agreement} 

25 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

[Insert legal description here] 

A-1 



EXHIDITB 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I , the of (the "Company") , do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 

, 20_ between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the "Agreement") , as 
----
follows: 

(I) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31 , 20 _ was $ ____ _ 

(2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning , 20 _ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment 
Period) and ending December 31 , 20 _, is $ ___ _ 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanmg set forth m the 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _ _ day of ____ , 20_ . 

Name: ______________ _ 

Its : -----------------

8-1 



EXHIBITC 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I , the of (the "Company") , do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
_____ , 20_ between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the "Agreement"), as 
follows : 

(1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Revenue Credits previously 
received by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is$ ___ _ 

(2) As of December 3 l , 20 _, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure 
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$ ___ _ 

(3) Use only if expenditures for personal property will be used to account for Special 
Source Revenue Credits. Of the total amount set forth in (2) above, $ pertains to the 
investment in personal property, including machinery and equipment, at the Project. The applicable 
personal property, and associated expenditures, are listed below: 

Personal Property Description Investment Amount 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanmg set forth in the 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this __ day of ____ , 20 

Name: _______________ _ 
Tts : ________________ _ 

C-1 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) ORDINANCE NO. 2020-044 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING {1) THE EXECUTION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND 
FRIENDSHIP SC PRESERVATION, L.P. TO PROVIDE FOR INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS 
WITH RESPECT TO A REHABILITATION PROJECT LOCATED AT 719 MAULDIN STREET, 
ANDERSON, SC, {2) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A MULTI-COUNTY PARK 
AGREEMENT WITH OCONEE COUNTY TO INCLUDE SUCH PROPERTY, {3) 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH 
THE CITY OF ANDERSON, AND {4) OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County ("County"), acting by and through its County Council ("County 
Council"), is authorized pursuant to the provisions of Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina 
Constitution and the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended (collectively, "Act"), to (i) develop a multicounty park with counties having contiguous borders 
with the County; and (ii) include property in the multicounty park which inclusion under the terms of the 
Act (A) makes such property exempt from ad valorem property taxes, and (B) changes the character of the 
annual receipts from such property to fees-in-lieu of ad valorem property taxes in an amount equal to the 
ad valorem taxes that would have been due and payable but for the location of the property in such 
multicounty park ("Fee Payments"); and 

WHEREAS, the County is further authorized by Section 4-1-175 of the Act, to grant credits against 
Fee Payments ("Infrastructure Credits") to pay costs of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving or 
expanding (i) infrastructure serving a project or the County, and (ii) improved and unimproved real estate 
and personal property used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or commercial enterprise 
(collectively, "Infrastructure"); and 

WHEREAS, Friendship SC Preservation, L.P. (the "Company") has committed to rehabilitate a 
commercial housing development in the County ("Project") on property located at 719 W. Mauldin Street, 
Anderson, SC, consisting of tax map number 123-18-03-001-000 ("Property"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority provided in the Act, the County intends to enter into a 
multicounty park agreement with Oconee County, South Carolina ("Park"), pursuant to an agreement 
governing the establishment of the Park between the County and Oconee County executed substantially 
contemporaneously with this Agreement ("Park Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, in order for the Park Agreement to be effective, the City of Anderson (the "City") must 
consent to the inclusion of the Property in the Park; and 

WHEREAS, the City has tentatively indicated its willingness to consent to the inclusion of the Property 
in the Park, subject to the terms and conditions of an Intergovernmental Agreement that has been prepared 
and presented to the County; and 

WHEREAS, the redevelopment of the Project is consistent with the public purposes identified in 
Section 4-9-195 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1975, as amended, commonly referred to as the 
"Bailey Bill," which, when implemented, provides an effective "freeze" on the pre-rehabilitation value of 
certain historic or low and moderate income housing property in order to induce such rehabilitation; and 



WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the County has agreed to provide Infrastructure Credits 
in an amount that would provide the approximate level of savings that the Company would realize if the 
County and City of Anderson utilized and applied the Bailey Bill with respect to the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the County agree to enter into an Infrastructure Credit 
Agreement between the County and the Company, the substantially final form of which is attached as 
Exhibit A ("Agreement"), to provide Infrastructure Credits against certain of the Company's Fee Payments 
with respect to the Project for the purpose of assisting in paying the costs of certain Infrastructure. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council in meeting duly assembled as 
follows: 

Section 1. County Findings. Based on representations made by the Company to the County, the 
County hereby makes the following findings: 

(a) The County' s actions herein will subserve the purposes and in all respects conform to the provisions 
and requirements of the Act. 

(b) The Project and the payments in lieu of taxes set forth herein are beneficial to the County, and the 
County has evaluated the Project based upon all criteria prescribed by law, including the anticipated dollar 
amount and nature of the investment to be made and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. 

(c) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, 
employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally. 

(d) The Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a 
charge against the general credit or taxing power of either. 

(e) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e. , economic development, creation of jobs, and 
addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes. 

(f) The inducement of the location or expansion of the Project within the County and State is of 
paramount importance. 

(g) The benefits of the Project to the public will be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. Approval of Infrastructure Credit; Authorization to Execute and Deliver Agreement. 
The County hereby approves the Infrastructure Credits, as more particularly set forth in the Agreement. 
The form, terms, and provisions of the Agreement that is before this meeting are approved, and all of the 
Agreement ' s terms are incorporated in this Ordinance by reference as if the Agreement was set out in this 
Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council is authorized and directed to execute the 
Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, together with such revisions or changes as are not 
materially adverse to the County, as determined by the Chairman of County Council, upon advice of 
counsel, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and directed to attest the Agreement and to 
deliver the Agreement to the Company. 

Section 3. Approval of Multi-County Park Agreement. The County hereby approves the Multi
County Park Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B (the "MCIP Agreement"). 
The form, terms, and provisions of the MCIP Agreement that is before this meeting are approved, and all 
of the MCIP Agreement ' s terms are incorporated in this Ordinance by reference as if the MCIP Agreement 
was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council is authorized and directed to 
execute the MCIP Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, together with such revisions or 

2 Ordinance 2020-044 



changes as are not materially adverse to the County, as determined by the Chairman of County Council, 
upon advice of counsel, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and directed to attest the 
MCIP Agreement and to deliver the MCIP Agreement to the Company, Oconee County, and the City. 

Section 4. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Anderson. The County hereby 
approves the Intergovernmental Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C (the 
"Intergovernmental Agreement"). The form, terms, and provisions of the Intergovernmental Agreement 
that is before this meeting are approved, and all of the Intergovernmental Agreement ' s terms are 
incorporated in this Ordinance by reference as if the Intergovernmental Agreement was set out in this 
Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council is authorized and directed to execute the 
Intergovernmental Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, together with such revisions or 
changes as are not materially adverse to the County, as determined by the Chairman of County Council, 
upon advice of counsel, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and directed to attest the 
Intergovernmental Agreement and to deliver the Agreement to the Company, Oconee County, and the City. 

Section 5. Further Assurances. The County Council confmns the authority of the Chairman of 
County Council, the County Administrator, the Clerk to County Council, and various other County officials 
and staff, acting at the direction of the Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator or the Clerk 
to County Council, as appropriate, to take whatever further action and to negotiate, execute, and deliver 
whatever further documents as may be appropriate to effect the intent of this Ordinance and the incentives 
offered to the Company under this Ordinance and the Agreement. 

Section 6. Savings Clause. The provisions of this Ordinance are separable. If any part of this 
Ordinance is, for any reason, unenforceable then the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance is 
unaffected. 

Section 7. General Repealer. Any prior ordinance, resolution, or order, the terms of which are in 
conflict with this Ordinance, is, only to the extent of that conflict, repealed. 

Section 8. Effectiveness. This Ordinance is effective after its third reading and public hearing. 

3 Ordinance 2020-044 



(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: November 12, 2020 
Second Reading: 
Public Hearing: 
Third Reading: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

4 Ordinance 2020-044 



Exhibit A 

Form of Infrastructure Credit Agreement 

5 Ordinance 2020-044 



Exhibit B 

Form of MCIP Agreement 

6 Ordinance 2020-044 



Exhibit C 

Intergovernmental Agreement 

7 Ordinance 2020-044 



INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

by and between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

and 

FRIENDSHIP SC PRESERVATION, L.P. 

Effective as of: ____ _, 2020 



INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

This INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT, effective as of , 2020 
("Agreement"), is by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and 
corporate, and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina ("County"), and FRIENDSHIP SC 
PRESERVATION, L.P., a South Carolina limited liability company ("Company" together with the County, 
"Parties," each, a "Party") . 

WITNESSETH : 

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council ("County Council"), is authorized 
and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Article VIII, Section 13(D) ofthe South Carolina 
Constitution and the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended (collectively, "Act"), to (i) develop multicounty parks with counties having contiguous borders 
with the County; and (ii) include property in the multicounty park which inclusion under the terms of the 
Act (A) makes such property exempt from ad valorem property taxes, and (B) changes the character of the 
annual receipts from such property to fees-in-lieu of ad valorem property taxes in an amount equal to the 
ad valorem taxes that would have been due and payable but for the location of the property in such 
multicounty park ("Fee Payments"); and 

WHEREAS, the County is further authorized by Section 4-1-175 of the Act, to grant credits against 
Fee Payments ("Infrastructure Credits") to pay costs of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving or 
expanding (i) infrastructure serving a project or the County and (ii) improved and unimproved real estate 
and personal property used in the operation of a commercial enterprise or manufacturing facility 
(collectively, "Infrastructure"); and 

WHEREAS, the Company has committed to rehabilitate a commercial housing development in the 
County ("Project") on property located at 719 W. Mauldin Street, Anderson, SC, consisting of tax map 
number 123-18-03-001-000 ("Property"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority provided in the Act, the County and Oconee County have 
established or will establish a joint county industrial and business park (the "Park") by entering into an 
Agreement for Development for Joint County Industrial/Business Park (the "Park Agreement"), and will 
designate the Property as being included within the Park, and the County desires to cause the Property to 
continue to be located in the Park or such other multi-county industrial and business park so as to afford the 
Company the benefits of the Act as provided herein; and 

WHEREAS, the redevelopment of the Project is consistent with the public purposes identified in 
Section 4-9-195 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1975, as amended, commonly referred to as the 
"Bailey Bill," which, when implemented, provides an effective "freeze" on the pre-rehabilitation value of 
certain historic or low and moderate income housing property in order to induce such rehabilitation; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the County has agreed to provide Infrastructure Credits 
in an amount that would provide the approximate level of savings that the Company would realize if the 
County and City of Anderson (the "City") utilized and applied the Bailey Bill with respect to the Property; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an ordinance of the County enacted contemporaneously with the effective date 
of this Agreement (the "SSRC Ordinance"), the County authorized the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement to provide Infrastructure Credits against the Company's Fee Payments with respect to the 

2 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V.l 



Project for the purpose of assisting in paying the costs of certain Infrastructure, subject to the terms and 
conditions below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements hereinafter 
contained, the County and the Company agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS 

Section 1.1. Representations by the County. The County represents to the Company as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South 
Carolina; 

(b) The County is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into and 
carry out its obligations under this Agreement; 

(c) The County has duly authorized and approved the execution and deli very of this Agreement 
by adoption of the SSRC Ordinance in accordance with the procedural requirements of the Act and any 
other applicable state law; 

(d) To the best knowledge of the undersigned representatives of the County, the County is not 
in default of any of its obligations (contractual or otherwise) as a result of entering into and performing its 
obligations under this Agreement; 

(e) Based on representations made by the Company to the County, the County has made the 
findings set forth in Section 1 of the SSRC Ordinance. Therefore, the County is entering into this Agreement 
for the purpose of promoting the economic development of the County. 

Section 1.2. Representations by the Company. The Company represents to the County as follows: 

(a) The Company is a limited partnership duly formed, validly existing and in good standing 
under the laws of the State of New York and qualified to do business in the State of South Carolina, has 
power to enter into this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder, and by proper company action 
has authorized the officials signing this Agreement to execute and deliver it; and 

(b) The Company' s execution and delivery of this Agreement, and its compliance with the 
provisions of this Agreement do not result in a default under any agreement or instrument to which the 
Company is now a party or by which it is bound. 

(c) To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or 
investigation, at law or in equity, or before or by any court, public body, or public board which is pending or 
threatened challenging the power of the Company to enter into the transactions contemplated hereby or wherein 
an unfavorable decision, ruling or fmding would adversely affect the transactions contemplated hereby or 
would affect the validity, or adversely affect the enforceability, of this Agreement, or any other agreement or 
instrument to which the Company is a party and which is to be used in connection with or is contemplated by 
this Agreement, nor to the best of the knowledge of the Company is there any basis therefore. 

ARTICLE II 
INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS 

3 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V.l 



Section 2.1. Infrastructure Credits. 

(a) To assist in paying for costs of Infrastructure, the County shall provide an Infrastructure 
Credit against certain of the Company's Fee Payments due with respect to the Project. The Infrastructure 
Credits shall be calculated as follows: 

[Taxable Value of Property- $1 ,358,800] I [Taxable Value of Property] 

For example, and by way of example only, if the taxable value of the Property after completion of 
rehabilitation is $2,038,200, the Infrastructure Credit would be calculated as follows: 

[$2,038,200- $1 ,358,800] I $2,038,200 = 33.333% 

In such case, the Infrastructure Credits would reduce the Fee Payments by 33 .333%. 

The Infrastructure Credits shall apply for a period of 20 consecutive years, commencing with the 
property tax year following the year in which the Project is complete. If the taxable value of the property 
is adjusted in future property tax years (for example, in a countywide reassessment), the Infrastructure 
Credit percentage shall be reset based on the revised taxable value. 

(b) For each property tax year in which the Company is entitled to an Infrastructure Credit 
("Credit Term"), the County shall prepare and issue the Company's annual bill with respect to the Project 
net of the Infrastructure Credit set forth in Section 2.1(a) ("Net Fee Payment"). Following receipt of the 
bill, the Company shall timely remit the Net Fee Payment to the County in accordance with applicable law. 

(c) THIS AGREEMENT AND THE INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS PROVIDED BY THIS 
AGREEMENT ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY. THE SOURCE OF THE 
INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS IS DERIVED SOLELY FROM THE FEE PAYMENTS MADE BY THE 
COMPANY TO THE COUNTY PURSUANT TO THE ACT AND THE PARK AGREEMENT. THE 
INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS DO NOT AND SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE A GENERAL 
OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY OR ANY MUNICIPALITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY 
CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY LIMITATION AND DO NOT AND SHALL NOT 
CONSTITUTE OR GIVE RISE TO A PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COUNTY OR ANY 
MUNICIPALITY OR A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT OR TAXING POWER. THE 
FULL FAITH, CREDIT, AND TAXING POWER OF THE COUNTY OR ANY MUNICIPALITY ARE 
NOT PLEDGED FOR THE PROVISION OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS. 

Section 2.2. Cumulative Infrastructure Credit. The cumulative dollar amount expended by the 
Company on Infrastructure shall equal or exceed the cumulative dollar amount of all the Infrastructure 
Credits received by the Company. The Company shall be responsible for making written annual certification 
as to compliance with the provisions of the preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 2.3. Condition Precedent to Infrastructure Credits. The Company shall provide 
written certification to the County and the City within 180 days after completion of the Project that 
it has satisfied the requirements of this Section 2 of the Intergovernmental Agreement dated 
________ by and between the County and the City relating to the Park (the "IGA"); provided, 
such certification must be provided to the County Administrator of the County prior to the first 
date upon which the County is to provide an Infrastructure Credit against the Company's Fee 
Payments with respect to the Project pursuant to this Agreement. In the absence of such 

4 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V.l 



certification, the City's consent to the inclusion of the Land and the Project in the Park shall be 
automatically revoked. 

Section 2.4. Infrastructure Credits for Personal Property. As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Act, 
to the extent any Infrastructure Credit is taken against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the 
personal property is removed from the Project at any time during the term of this Agreement (and not replaced 
with qualifying replacement property), the amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for 
the year in which the personal property was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years 
immediately following such removal. 

ARTICLE III 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 3.1. Events of Default. The following are "Events of Default" under this Fee Agreement: 

(a) Failure by the Company to make a Net Fee Payment, which failure has not been cured within 
30 days following receipt of written notice from the County specifying the delinquency in payment and 
requesting that it be remedied; 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company which is deemed materially incorrect when 
deemed made; 

(c) Failure by the Company to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants under 
this Agreement (other than those described in Section 2.1 and under (a) above), which failure has not been 
cured within 30 days after written notice from the County to the Company specifying such failure and 
requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company has instituted corrective action within the 30-day period 
and is diligently pursuing corrective action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period is 
extended to include the period during which the Company is diligently pursuing corrective action; 

(d) A representation or warranty made by the County which is deemed materially incorrect when 
deemed made; or 

(e) Failure by the Company to comply with the requirements relating to investment in security and 
maintenance enhancements and the written notice provision set forth in Section 2 of the IGA; 

(f) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure has not been cured within 30 days after written notice from the Company to the 
County specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the County has instituted 
corrective action within the 30-day period and is diligently pursuing corrective action until the default is 
corrected, in which case the 30-day period is extended to include the period during which the County is 
diligently pursuing corrective action. 

Section 3.2. Remedies on Default. 

(a) If an Event of Default by the Company has occurred and is continuing, then the County may 
take any one or more of the following remedial actions: 

(i) terminate the Agreement; or 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect 

5 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V.l 



amounts due or otherwise remedy the Event of Default or recover its damages. 

(b) If an Event of Default by the County has occurred and is continuing, the Company may take 
one or more of the following actions : 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 

(ii) terminate the Agreement; or 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 3.3. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Other Expenses. On the occurrence of an Event 
of Default, if a party is required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection 
of payments due under this Agreement or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any 
obligation or agreement, the prevailing party is entitled to seek reimbursement of the reasonable fees of 
such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred. The Company shall also pay the reasonable 
legal fees of the County for the legal review of all documents constituting this matter. 

Section 3.4. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy described in this Agreement is intended to be 
exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such remedy is cumulative and in addition 
to every other remedy given under this Agreement or existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

Section 3.5. Nonwaiver. A delay or omission by the Company or County to exercise any right or 
power accruing on an Event of Default does not waive such right or power and is not deemed to be a waiver 
or acquiescence of the Event of Default. Every power and remedy given to the Company or County by this 
Agreement may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 4.1. Examination of Records; Confidentiality. 

(a) The County and its authorized agents, at any reasonable time on prior notice, may enter 
and examine the Project and have access to and examine the Company' s books and records relating to the 
Project for the purpose of(i) identifying the Project; (ii) confirming achievement of the required investment 
in security and maintenance enhancements as set forth in the IGA; and (iii) permitting the County to carry 
out its duties and obligations in its sovereign capacity (such as, without limitation, for such routine health 
and safety purposes as would be applied to any other manufacturing or commercial facility in the County). 

(b) The County acknowledges that the Company may utilize confidential and proprietary 
processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and techniques ("Confidential Information") 
and that disclosure of the Confidential Information could result in substantial economic harm to the 
Company. The Company may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County pursuant 
to this Agreement as "Confidential Information." Except as required by law, the County, or any employee, 
agent, or contractor of the County, shall not knowingly and intentionally disclose or otherwise divulge any 
labeled Confidential Information to any other person, firm, governmental body or agency. The Company 
acknowledges that the County is subject to the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, 
must disclose certain documents and information on request, absent an exemption. If the County is required 
to disclose any Confidential Information to a third party, the County shall provide the Company with as 

6 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V. l 



much advance notice as is reasonably possible of such disclosure requirement prior to making such 
disclosure, and will cooperate reasonably with any attempts by the Company to obtain judicial or other 
relief from such disclosure requirement. 

Section 4.2. Assignment. The Company may assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights and 
interest in this Agreement on prior written consent of the County, which may be given by resolution, and 
which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. 

Section 4.3. Provisions of Agreement for Sole Benefit of County and Company. Except as 
otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied confers 
on any person or entity other than the County and the Company any right, remedy, or claim under or by 
reason of this Agreement, this Agreement being intended to be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the 
County and the Company. 

Section 4.4. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this Agreement are unimpaired, and the Parties 
shall reform such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision to effectuate most closely the legal, valid, and 
enforceable intent of this Agreement. Each and every term and provision of this Agreement is deemed 
separable. 

Section 4.5. Limitation of Liability. 

(a) The County is not liable to the Company for any costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims 
or actions in connection with this Agreement, except from amounts received by the County from the 
Company under this Agreement. 

(b) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained 
in this Agreement are covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and are 
binding on members of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or employee of 
the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and no recourse for 
the payment of any moneys or performance of any of the covenants and agreements under this Agreement 
or for any claims based on the Agreement may be had against any member of County Council or any elected 
official, officer, agent, servant or employee of the County except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 4.6. Indemnification Covenant. 

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (d) below, the Company shall indemnify and save the 
County, its employees, elected officials, officers and agents (each, an "Indemnified Party") harmless against 
and from all liability or claims arising from the County' s execution of this Agreement, performance of the 
County's obligations under this Agreement or the administration of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, 
or otherwise by virtue of the County having entered into this Agreement. 

(b) The County is entitled to use counsel of its choice and the Company shall reimburse the County 
for all of its costs, including attorneys' fees, incurred in connection with the response to or defense against 
such liability or claims as described in paragraph (a) above. The County shall provide a statement of the 
costs incurred in the response or defense, and the Company shall pay the County within 30 days of receipt 
of the statement. The Company may request reasonable documentation evidencing the costs shown on the 
statement. However, the County is not required to provide any documentation which may be privileged or 
confidential to evidence the costs. 

7 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V.l 



(c) The County may request the Company to resist or defend against any claim on behalf of an 
Indemnified Party. On such request, the Company shall resist or defend against such claim on behalf of the 
Indemnified Party, at the Company's expense. In such instance, the Company is entitled to use counsel of 
its choice, manage and control the defense of or response to such claim for the Indemnified Party; provided 
the Company is not entitled to settle any such claim without the consent of that Indemnified Party. 

(d) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company is not required to indemnify any 
Indemnified Party against or reimburse the County for costs arising from any claim or liability (i) 
occasioned by the acts of that Indemnified Party, which are unrelated to the execution of this Agreement, 
performance of the County's obligations under this Agreement, or the administration of its duties under this 
Agreement, or otherwise by virtue of the County having entered into this Agreement; or (ii) resulting from 
that Indemnified Party's own gross negligence, bad faith, fraud, deceit, or willful misconduct. 

(e) An Indemnified Party may not avail itself of the indemnification or reimbursement of costs 
provided in this Section unless it provides the Company with prompt notice, reasonable under the 
circumstances, of the existence or threat of any claim or liability, including, without limitation, copies of 
any citations, orders, fines, charges, remediation requests, or other claims or threats of claims, in order to 
afford the Company notice, reasonable under the circumstances, within which to defend or otherwise 
respond to a claim. 

Section 4.7. Notices. All notices, certificates, requests, or other communications under this 
Agreement are sufficiently given and are deemed given, unless otherwise required by this Agreement, when 
(i) delivered or (ii) sent by facsimile and confirmed by United States first-class registered mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed as follows: 

if to the County: 

with a copy to 
(does not constitute notice): 

if to the Company: 

with a copy to 
(does not constitute notice): 

8 

Anderson County, South Carolina 
Attn: County Administrator 
101 South Main Street 
Anderson, SC 29624 
Phone: 864.260.4031 

County Attorney 
Attn: Leon Harmon 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29666 
Phone: 864.964.6538 
Fax: 864.260.4548 

Friendship SC Preservation, L.P. 
c/o Related Affordable, LLC 
30 Hudson Yards, 72nd Floor 
New York, NY 10001 
Phone: 212.419.8588 

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P A 
Attn: Will Johnson 
Post Office Box 11889 
Columbia, SC 29211-1889 
Phone: 803 .779.3080 
Fax: 803 .765.1243 

Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V.l 



The County and the Company may, by notice given under this Section, designate any further or 
different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or other communications shall be 
sent. 

Section 4.8. Administrative Fees. The Company will reimburse, or cause reimbursement to, the 
County for the Administration Expenses. The Company will reimburse the County for its Administration 
Expenses on receipt of a written request from the County or at the County's direction, which request shall 
include a statement of the amount and nature of the Administration Expense. The Company shall pay the 
Administration Expenses as set forth in the written request no later than 60 days following receipt of the 
written request from the County. For purposes of this Section, "Administration Expenses" means the 
reasonable expenses incurred by the County in the negotiation, approval and implementation of the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement, including reasonable attorney's fees. Administration Expenses does not 
include any costs, expenses, including attorney' s fees , incurred by the County (i) in defending challenges 
to the Fee Payments or Infrastructure Credits brought by third parties or the Company or its affiliates and 
related entities, or (ii) in connection with matters arising at the request of the Company outside of the 
immediate scope of this Agreement, including amendments to the terms of this Agreement. The payment 
by the Company of the County' s Administration Expenses shall not be construed as prohibiting the County 
from engaging, at its discretion, the counsel of the County' s choice. 

Section 4.9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all 
agreements of the Parties with each other, and neither Party is bound by any agreement or any representation 
to the other Party which is not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection 
with the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

Section 4.10 Agreement to Sign Other Documents. From time to time, and at the expense of the 
Company, to the extent any expense is incurred, the County agrees to execute and deliver to the Company 
such additional instruments as the Company may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the Act and this Agreement to effectuate the purposes of this 
this Agreement. 

Section 4.11. Agreement's Construction. Each Party and its counsel have reviewed this Agreement 
and any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against a drafting party does 
not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits to this Agreement. 

Section 4.12. Applicable Law. South Carolina law, exclusive of its conflicts of law provisions that 
would refer the governance of this Agreement to the laws of another jurisdiction, governs this Agreement 
and all documents executed in connection with this Agreement. 

Section 4.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and 
all of the counterparts together constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 4.14. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement of the 
parties hereto. 

Section 4.15. Waiver. Either Party may waive compliance by the other Party with any term or 
condition of this Agreement but the waiver is valid only if it is in a writing signed by the waiving Party. 

Section 4.16. Termination. Unless first terminated under any other provision of this Agreement, 
this Agreement terminates on the expiration of the Credit Term and payment by the Company of any 
outstanding Net Fee Payment due on the Project pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

9 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V. l 



Section 4.17. Business Day. If any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Agreement, 
required to be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the 
jurisdiction in which the Party obligated to act is situated, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, 
made, or given on the following business day with the same effect as if taken, made or given as required 
under this Agreement, and no interest will accrue in the interim. 

(Signature Pages Follow) 

10 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V. l 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Anderson County, South Carolina, has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by the appropriate officials of the County and its corporate seal to be affixed and attested, effective 
the day and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bum 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

II Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6542 109V. I 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Friendship SC Preservation, L.P., has caused this Agreement to be executed 
by a duly authorized officer, effective the day and year first above written. 

12 

FRIENDSHIP SC PRESERVATION, L.P. 
BY: FRIENDSHIP SC PRESERVATION GP, LLC, 
ITS GENERAL PARTNER 

Signature: ______ _________ _ 
Name: Matthew Finkle 
Title: Vice President 

Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6428478 V. l 



EXHffiiT A 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I , the of FRIENDSHIP SC PRESERVATION, L.P. (the 
"Company"), do hereby certify in connection with the Infrastructure Credit Agreement dated as of 

20 (the "Agreement") between Anderson County, South Carolina and 
__________ (the "Company"), as follows: 

(1) As of December 31, 20 _, the total amount of Infrastructure Credits received by the 
Company is as follows: 

(a) $ 

(c) Total Infrastructure Credits received $ 

(2) As of December 31, 20 _, the total amount of investment in Costs of Infrastructure by the 
Company is not less than $ ___ _ 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this __ day of ____ ., 20 _. 

FRIENDSIITP SC PRESERVATION, L.P. 

By: _______________ _ 

Name: ---------------

Its: ------------------

13 Ordinance 2020-044 
HSB: 6542109 V.1 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF OCONEE 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 
JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND 
BUSINESS PARK TO BE KNOWN AS 
"ANDERSON-OCONEE MULTI
COUNTY PARK (FRIENDSHIP COURT 
PARK)" 

THIS AGREEMENT for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 
to be located initially in Anderson County, South Carolina, dated as of , 2020 
is made and entered into by and between Oconee County, South Carolina and Anderson County, 
South Carolina, both political subdivisions of the State of South Carolina. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina ("Anderson County") and Oconee County, 
South Carolina ("Oconee County") (collectively the "Counties") have determined that, in order to 
promote economic development and thus provide additional employment opportunities within both 
of said Counties, and to increase the tax base of the Counties, there should be established, initially in 
Anderson County, a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (the "Park"), which Park shall be 
known as the "Anderson-Oconee Multi-County Park (Friendship Court Park)" and which shall be in 
addition to all previous joint county industrial and business parks previously established between the 
Counties; and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment of the Park, property therein shall be 
exempt from ad valorem taxation, during the term of this Agreement, but the owners or lessees of 
such property shall pay annual fees during that term in an amount equal to that amount of ad 
valorem taxes for which such owner or lessee would be liable except for such exemption. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and 
benefits contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Binding Agreement. This Agreement serves as a written instrument setting forth 
the entire agreement between the parties and shall be binding on the Counties, their successors and 
asstgns. 

2. Authorization. Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the Constitution of South Carolina 
provides that counties may jointly develop an industrial and business park with other counties within 
the geographical boundaries of one or more of the member counties, provided that certain conditions 
specified therein are met and further provided that the General Assembly of the State of South 
Carolina provides by law a means by which the value of property in such park will be considered for 
purposes of bonded indebtedness of political subdivisions and school districts and for purposes of 
computing the index of taxpaying ability for school districts. Section 4-1-170, Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 197 6, as amended ("Section 4-1-170"), satisfies the conditions imposed by Article VIII, 
Section 13(D), of the Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle whereby a joint county industrial 
and business park may be created. 



3. Location of the Park. 

(A) The Park consists of property located in Anderson County, as is hereinafter 
more specifically described in Exhibit "A", as amended from time to time by the parties. The Park shall 
consist initially only of property located in Anderson County and currently owned by Friendship SC 
Preservation, L.P. (the "Friendship Court Property"). It is specifically recognized that the Park may 
from time to time consist of non-contiguous properties. 

(B) The boundaries of the Park may be enlarged or diminished from time to time 
as authorized by ordinance of Anderson County and by ordinance of the County Council of Oconee 
County. In the event of any enlargement or diminution of the boundaries of the Park, this Agreement 
shall be deemed amended and there shall be attached hereto a revised Exhibit "A," as applicable, which 
shall contain a legal description of the boundaries ofthe Park, as enlarged or diminished, together with 
copies of the ordinances of Anderson County and Oconee County pursuant to which such enlargement 
or diminution was authorized. 

(C) Notwithstanding anything in subparagraphs 3(A) and 3(B) above to the 
contrary, in the event that a tract or site of land located in the Park is purchased and developed by a 
person or business enterprise whose employees, because of the nature of their employment, do not 
qualify for the corporate income tax credit provided in South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as 
amended, Section 12-6-3360 (the "Non-qualifying Site"), Anderson County may unilaterally remove 
by ordinance, the Non-qualifying Site from the Park, so long as, and to the extent that such removal 
does not adversely impact any financing or other incentive then in effect. Upon such removal, 
Anderson County shall provide notice to the Oconee County Administration office, with a copy to 
the Oconee County Attorney. 

4 . Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes. Property located in the Park shall be exempt from ad valorem 
taxation during the term of this Agreement. The owners or lessees of any property situated in the 
Park shall pay, in accordance with and during the term of this Agreement, an amount equivalent to 
the ad valorem property taxes or other in-lieu of payments that would have been due and payable 
but for the location of such property within the Park. Where, in this Agreement, reference is made 
to payment of ad valorem property taxes or other in-lieu of payments, such reference shall be 
construed, in accordance with this Paragraph 4, to mean the ad valorem property taxes or other in
lieu of payments that would otherwise have been due to be paid to Anderson County, after deduction 
of all applicable allowances, credits, deductions, and exemptions authorized or required by state 
law. 

5. Allocation of Park Expenses. The Counties shall bear expenses, including, but not 
limited to, development, operation, maintenance and promotion of the Park in the following 
proportions: 

With respect to property geographically located in Anderson County: 

A. 
B. 

Anderson County 
Oconee County 

100% 
0% 

With respect to property geographically located in Oconee County: 

A. Anderson County 0% 

2 Ordinance 2020-044 
HOSB: 65421 36 V. l 



B. Oconee County 100% 

6. Allocation of Park Revenues. The Counties shall receive an allocation of all 
revenue generated by the Park through payment of fees-in-lieu of ad valorem property taxes or 
from any other source in the following proportions: 

With respect to property geographically located in Anderson County: 

A. 
B. 

Anderson County 
Oconee County 

99% 
1% 

With respect to property geographically located in Oconee County: 

A. 
B. 

Anderson County 
Oconee County 

1% 
99% 

The percentage of Park revenues allocable to Oconee County shall be net of any 
allowances, credits, deductions, and exemptions authorized by State law or by Anderson County 
pursuant to Section 8 of this Agreement. Any payment by Anderson County to Oconee County of 
its allocable share of the fees-in-lieu of taxes from the Park shall be made not later than ninety (90) 
days from the end of the Anderson County fiscal year in which Anderson County receives such 
payment from the occupants of the Park. In the event that the payment made by any occupant of a 
Park is made under protest or is otherwise in dispute, Anderson County shall not be obligated to 
pay to Oconee County more than Oconee County's share of the undisputed portion thereof until 
thirty (30) days after the final resolution of such protest or dispute. 

7. Revenue Allocation Within Each County. Park revenues allocable to Oconee 
County shall be retained by Oconee County, and Park revenues allocable to Anderson County shall 
be distributed to the political subdivisions and overlapping tax districts within Anderson County 
in the manner directed by Anderson County ordinance(s) relating thereto. 

8. Fees-in-Lieu of Taxes and Special Source Bonds or Credits Pursuant to Code 
of Laws of South Carolina. It is hereby agreed that Anderson County may enter into any one or 
more negotiated fee-in-lieu of tax agreements with respect to property within the Park pursuant to 
Titles 4 or 12, South Carolina Code, 1976, as amended, or any successor or comparable statutes, 
and may issue special source bonds, may make special source payments or grant special source 
credits as provided in Section 4-1-175, South Carolina Code, 1976, as amended, or any related, 
successor or comparable statutes, payable in whole or in part from revenues derived by Anderson 
County pursuant to this Agreement or with respect to property located within the Park, and the 
terms of such agreements, bonds or credits shall be at the sole discretion of Anderson County. 

9. Assessed Valuation. For the purpose of calculating the bonded indebtedness 
limitation of the Participating Taxing Entities of each of the Counties, and for the purpose of 
computing the index of taxpaying ability of any school district of either of the Counties pursuant 
to Section 59-20-20(3), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, allocation of the 
assessed value of property within the Park to each County shall be identical to the percentage 
established for the allocation of revenue to such County pursuant to Paragraphs 6 and 7 

3 Ordinance 2020-044 
HOSB: 65421 36 V. l 



respectively, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 4-29-68(E) of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina, 1976, or any successor legislation. 

10. Records. The Counties, parties to this Agreement, covenant and agree that, upon the 
request of either, the other will provide to the requesting party copies of the records of the annual tax 
levy and copies of the actual tax bills, for parcels of property encompassed by this Agreement, and 
will further provide copies of the County Treasurer's collection records for the taxes so imposed, all 
as such records become available in the normal course of County procedures. It is further agreed that 
none of the parties shall request such records from any other party more frequently than once annually, 
absent compelling justification to the contrary. 

11. Additional Provisions. 

(A) The applicable tax credits allowable by Section 12-6-3360 of the Code ofLaws 
of South Carolina, 1976, as amended or any successor statute, will apply to any business enterprise 
locating in the Park. 

(B) Any business enterprise locating in the Park shall pay a fee-in-lieu of ad 
valorem taxes as provided for in the Agreement, Article VIII Section 13 of the South Carolina 
Constitution and the Act. The user fee paid in lieu of ad valorem taxes shall be paid to the county 
treasurer for the County in which the premises is located. That portion of the fees from the Park 
premises allocated pursuant to the Agreement to Oconee County shall be paid by the Anderson 
County Treasurer to the Oconee County Treasurer within fifteen (15) days following the end of the 
Anderson County fiscal year of receipt for distribution, and such distribution shall be made in 
accordance with the Agreement. Payments shall be made by a business or industrial enterprise on 
or before the due date for taxes for a particular year. Penalties for late payment will be at the same 
rate and at the same times as for late tax payment. Any late payment beyond said date will accrue 
interest at the rate of statutory judgment interest. Anderson County, acting by and through the 
county tax collector for the county where the premises is located, shall maintain all liens and rights 
to foreclose upon liens provided for counties in the collection of ad valorem taxes. 

(C) The administration, development, promotion, and operation of the Park shall 
be the responsibility of the county in which each premises of the Park is located. Provided, that to the 
extent any Park premises is owned by a private developer, the developer shall be responsible for 
development expenses as contained in the Agreement. 

(D) In order to avoid any conflict oflaws for ordinances between the Counties, the 
Anderson County ordinances will be the reference for such regulations or laws in connection with the 
Park premises. Nothing herein shall be taken to supersede any state or federal law or regulation. If any 
part of the Park is located within a municipality, the municipal ordinances of that municipality shall 
apply, in lieu of any County ordinances. 

(E) The Anderson County Sheriffs Department will have initial jurisdiction to 
make arrests and exercise all authority and power within the boundaries of the Park premises and fire, 
sewer, water and EMS service will be provided by the service district or other political unit within 
whose jurisdiction the Park premises are located. If any part of the Park is located within a 
municipality, the municipal police force will also have jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise police 
authority and power within the boundaries of the Park premises. 

4 Ordinance 2020-044 
HOSB: 6542136 V.l 



12. Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any provision 
or any part of a provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remainder of 
that provision or any other provision or part of a provision of this Agreement 

13. Term. This Agreement shall have a term oftwenty-five (25) years from the end of 
the first full calendar year following execution and delivery hereof by both Counties. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

5 Ordinance 2020-044 
HOSB: 6542136 V.l 



WITNESS our hands and seals as of the of , 2020. ------ --------------

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

6 Ordinance 2020-044 
HOSB: 6542136 V. l 



WITNESS our hands and seals as of the ___ day of _______ , 2020. 

OCONEE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: _________________ __ 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Katie Smith 
Clerk to County Council 
Oconee County, South Carolina 

Amanda Brock 
County Administrator 
Oconee County, South Carolina 

7 Ordinance 2020-044 
HOSB: 6542136 V.l 



EXIDBIT "A" 
To the Agreement for Development of 

Joint County Industrial and Business Park (Friendship Court Park) between 
Oconee County and Anderson County 

Dated as of , 2020 
(Anderson County Parcels) 

That certain property located at 719 W. Mauldin Street, Anderson, SC, Tax Map Number 123-
18-03-001-000, more particularly described as follows: 

A.ll tl~~ \'~ (l~i1'-'1ir1 p~m~l~ 1}1' ~mil~ 11-f l~nt! l!itu~~~. lyinu ii'll'ld bsii10 it1 u,~ 8ttlt~ uf 8!lu~h C~roliml . Ct1tm!y t1f Md!iir~tlfl , 
Ci!y t1f Aftik;rl;!t:m. h~vi''\1!1 f~t~flt~!Jiii t!'' Nl~uklifl Stl'~t1l. W~~·t ~~ Av~,IJ~. Loo mrn~t 8~nt! Av~1111~ tmd 'fhird AV~''IJ~ 
~fld oolrH~ ~~Wl1 Ull Ul~l pl~t by ~ii'lflY1¢.H & 8imp~un ~"Ui'WI~~ tl~·too Augu!!t ~1 . i~1i ii'111d <m'litl~d 'Mii'lultli11 S·~~t Apl'~ .. 
Ar~~l'~fl , 8. t;/, f1ro~1::·t No. ()tlti··StlflTtl Nfl 8liF'. whi:~h pl~t i~ t1f r~~:;t:)l'tl in thg C}fftl.~ o1 et~rk iJ( {;~juri 'for Al1d§ri;!Ufl 
CU\.lflly i1' Plat Book 71 a t pag~ 294, 'fh~ 1!~11 ·twu 'rM!~ ttr~ in!~rl;!~t;IOO by ~nt! ~~r~~ by 'Third AwmJ~ ~nd 
ii'IOOijltfi ''!J tu ~id pl~t ~~et' \Nilr;l mtty b~ mm§ p~rti~uh~!'ly dooeriood tt:J ftllll)w~ ; 

'1 . §~<l!NNING ~tin~ Pi''~~ ~tm ~UI:l of ·ttm l'iUh~·llf·w~y \at 'h~ il'lt~~r::~lo11 f.t.lil1~ uf L~~:~ Strns\ ii'l'vJ 
8~!lnd AvMIJI:l !ln ·th~ N<:~rttm~!!!~rn l!id~ ijf l!U~ ln~s~~ljl)''· w ;i;::h iro11 pi1' m~rl<§ Uls 
~oo\hw~:J~~"' t;i1/11~r uf'thil! !milt. th~l'lef3 N 'f 41u W Oufl.'l'li!ltlng Ul~t~ ~1,1~1-w~y o·fS~ooflcl 
Av~''ll~ ti1 iru11 pit~ oom~:~r. 'll1sm::~ N ~-81 ~ t~ . t' t1k111g ths ligh~·-uf·wtly ~t ·thltl if,·mm~t:rUon o'f 
S~nd Av~lliJI:l ~nd M~uldin S~~~ tu iron pill oorn~r; 'U1~11e~ N 1'1~f.l ~ i66.11 ~l11o11~ th~ rioht-uf.. 
w~y ~f Nhmkiifl tHr~lttl i~t~fl pir, f:lt~msr; th~1100 ~ r .. ~() ~ n~u· ~ltlnU ·n,~ right 1:}1 w~v vf 'fhird 
Av~,u~ Ill iron pir1 oom~r; thsflt::~ ~ 31··i1S W i!)t!-13' ~lt)f'!J ~h~ right~f .. w~y of L~ltl8trool to irll'' pin 
llf MQirmi"l.il OO!W~f. Tl'~ ~~~-d~~urib~ ·~r~~~ il! OOIJI~ W1 ttl~ ~vUU1 by l~l:l ~~r~~t; tlft lh~ W~l!l by 
8~t~ooTitl Av~nu!!l; tm 'll'r~ Mr\h by Nl!i!lJidin &lr~s~ ~nct f'lli th~ ~§\ by 'f ;ird A~T11JS. 

~ . §~<liNNINi:i ~t il'lm pi11 ~·t ~h~ ~t~u~:~ uf ths tiuh~·tlf·w~v tt'l ~h~ it~t~~e!io11 pt.lin~ of L~~ Strn~\ ~"d 
'fhird Av~niJ~ Ofl '!h~ Nfirlh~~l!t~m §k!~ of tnmh in!sr§sulit.:·m. wtti~;:l; il'tlrt pil1l,t:1rk~ 'lim 
~t~ulh~:J~sm t.lt.rtlflr t~f thil! !mot. ths11t!:l N 1 ~t W MV}' !alm10 U19 r~ht~l-w~y of Third Av~T11J~ 
ttl il'tlfl pir1 ~mrrmr; ·tt,~r,t§ N 1'1··5ff ~ 1g,a· 'ttl i~t~t1 oln OOI'I~r. !h~''tl§ ~ 1'··M ~ 35,3' tu irflfl p n 
f.lvmGr; ths,t!!! N .Oi ·~3 ~ 8UI ttl iron Pi11 com~t~r ""til~ righl--llf·Wtl'/ fiji' W~~~ ~r1d AV~I1L~; 
U1s11r:;~ ~ -· &-85 @ iM,()' ~lonu t 1:} r'i!Jhl~f-w~y for Woot ~nd Av:}"ll~ t;.} ironr*' oomlm 'thsfloo 8 
!Ji ·25 w 11}f.l, T1 to iron f}ir, f.ll}l'fiGf; tf11~11C~ ~ 1-M 10,01 ·to iron pil' t:;l~t~r. th~ftO~ N 8<1~8 ~ 
1J1',3' to ir11o11 uin: 'llmfl'.l~t~ N 8<'1vt18 ~ ~~.01 \1} iron p\r1 OOT'fl~r; ·u,~11oo ~ 3&~a ~ @t),t)' 'lo iror' ph, 
ttorcrt~r; lll~''tl~ ~1 ~~v~a ~ 1{}3,1}' to il'tl!1 pill OOff,Sl' (lf1 ~h:} ~~~t~·f·W~:t o1 W:}:j! !511~ AV~f11Jg ; 
tttsrte~ tj &45 @ ;~tM' ttll:li1Q ~h~ ~t,·t~t-wtty o·f W~! ~~~ Av~n~ 'lo if!}'' pi11 uom~r; ltl~t~M~ ~ 
5i .... '26 W 1 f).~ , ti 1 'tl iron pir' 11ll'flGl'; thsuc~:~ N 31.hlJ W .dtUi'lo lrt~ ,pi'' m~rMr; ll~flti~ 8 fl "4() ~ 
tltH~' tt:) imr1 oin ellr,,sr ljft 'lh~ right4··wt:1y ot Ls~ ~tl'~!; tltl:lfl(l~ 8 8iu43 W M8.JI' tl} irofl p111 of 
b~oint~i"~ tlom~r, Th§ Mid lrt1et 11! bour'lll 011 tllG Sou\11 by L~:~~ 8~r~~t ~nt! pmp~rty flf W~ll;~, un 
lhs W~!!t by 'fl1iro Av~''IJ~: or' th~ oorll\ by prop~liy "' N~:~ll ThWtl:J~''tl flrntJbyll;lri~" t llure11; &' 
Uls s~~! by ~rop~rty l}f Nsll Thw!1:J:}"d l=lr~!!by!~rit:1n t;t,urotl. Wim\ ~m1 Av~r1u~ . ~ro~srty ll1 fl~Yfl9 
~fld umo~~ ijf w~u~. 

8 Ordinance 2020-044 
HOSB: 6542136 V. l 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

CITY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT 

AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA AND THE CITY OF 
ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA 
PERTAINING TO THE ADDITION 
OF CERTAIN PROPERTY TO A JOINT 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS 
PARK WITHIN ANDERSON COUNTY 
AND THE CITY OF ANDERSON 
(FRIENDSHIP COURT) 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its County 
Council (the "County Council") is empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws 
of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, and specifically, Title 4, Chapter 1 (the "Multi-County Park Act") to 
enter into agreements with other counties within the State of South Carolina for the purpose of creating 
joint county industrial and business parks ("MCIP"), pursuant to which certain state tax credits are made 
available to investors locating, improving, or expanding projects within such parks, through which the 
economic development of the county and the state will be promoted and trade developed by inducing 
manufacturing and certain other business enterprises to locate in and remain in the State of South Carolina, 
and thus utilize and employ the manpower and resources of the State of South Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, Friendship SC Preservation, L.P., a New York limited partnership (the "Company"), 
has represented to the County that the Company intends to rehabilitate a low and moderate income housing 
development (the "Project") located at a site identified in Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Land") located in 
the City of Anderson, South Carolina (the "City"); and 

WHEREAS, the County, pursuant to certain negotiations heretofore undertaken with the Company 
with respect to the Project intends to enter into an Infrastructure Credit Agreement (the " SSRC Agreement") 
with the Company, pursuant to which the County has agreed, among other things, to use its best efforts to 
cause the Land and the Project to be included in the MCIP (the "Park") which has been or is being 
established pursuant to an agreement (the "Park Agreement") between the County and Oconee County, 
South Carolina, dated , 2020; and 

WHEREAS, because the Land is located within the corporate limits of the City, the Multi-County 
Park Act requires the consent of the City before the Land may be included in the Park; and 

WHEREAS, in order to induce the Company to undertake the Project, and to facilitate the 
utilization of various tax credits available to the Company, the City desires to consent to the County 
including the Land and the Project into the Park, provided that the County agrees to distribute a portion of 
the fees in lieu of taxes paid on behalf of the Land and all property located therein, including the Project, 
to the City as more particularly described herein and provided that certain security and maintenance 
enhancements are made to the Project as more particularly described herein (the "Enhancements"); and 

WHEREAS, the County agrees with the City 's position regarding distribution of the fee in lieu of 
tax revenues and the undertaking by the Company of the Enhancements, and desires to include the Land 
and the Project in the Park in accordance with that understanding; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the City have reduced their mutual understandings regarding the 
City' s conditional consent to the County' s addition of the Land to the Park, to include the Company' s 

Ordinance 2020-044 



investment in the Project located on the Land, and the mutual understanding regarding distribution of fee 
in lieu of tax revenues paid on behalf of the Land and all property located therein, including the Project, to 
this Intergovernmental Agreement (the "Intergovernmental Agreement"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed between Anderson County and the City of Anderson that: 

1. The City consents to the inclusion of the Land and the Project in the Park for so long as the 
City receives from the County a distribution of fees in lieu of taxes paid on behalf of the Land and all 
property located therein, including the Project, based on the percentage that the City's millage bears to the 
total millage applicable to the Land for the applicable tax year, such calculation to be made after (i) 
application of special source revenue credits to the fees in lieu of taxes to be paid on behalf of the Project 
in accordance with the provisions of the SSRC Agreement, and after (ii) distribution of a portion of the fees 
in lieu of taxes paid on behalf of the Land and the property located therein to Oconee County in accordance 
with the Park Agreement. 

2. The City' s consent is further conditioned on the Company spending at least $70,000 on 
Enhancements to the Project, with such amounts invested in all of the following items: 

• security enhancements to include new surveillance cameras in the property' s common 
areas as well as on the buildings ' exteriors overlooking the parking areas; 

• exterior lighting to ensure well-lit parking areas and improved visibility at night at the 
site; 

• select new fencing to better control pedestrian and vehicular traffic across the grounds; 
• install license plate readers - no more than two (2) -to detect incoming and outgoing 

guests and alarm the City's police department and Company if and when felonious 
visitors enter and exit the premises; and 

• A single dumpster enclosure to hide and maintain trash overflow to ensure site 
cleanliness. 

The Company shall provide written certification to the City within 180 days after completion of 
the Project that it has satisfied the requirements of this Section 2; provided, such certification must be 
provided to the City Manager of the City no later than the first date upon which the County provides an 
Infrastructure Credit against the Company's Fee Payments with respect to the Project pursuant to the SSRC 
Agreement (as such terms are defined in the SSRC Agreement). In the absence of such certification, the 
City's consent to the inclusion of the Land and the Project in the Park shall be automatically revoked. 

3. Should any part, term, or provision of this Intergovernmental Agreement be finally 
declared to be invalid or otherwise enforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such declaration 
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions hereunder, all of which 
are hereby declared to be separable. 

[Signature Page to follow] 

2 Ordinance 2020-044 



Agreed upon and entered into as of the __ day of ____ , 2020. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

CITY OF ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: --------------

Its: City Manager 

Ordinance 2020-044 



EXHIBIT A 

That certain property located at 719 W. Mauldin Street, Anderson, SC, Tax Map Number 123-
18-03-001 -000, more particularly described as follows: 

A.l l l)'i~j~ t'Ntl e~r!f1il1 pt~ro~l~ ..,,. !rust~ of l~rtd l!itlJ~~~. lying ~fld ~ifl!J ill tli~ 8t~t~ tlf 8ou~h C:~ruUnt~ , C:tlW1~Y llf Ar~tlflrof1 , 
C:i!y fJf A11ds~f:ln. ~twir11,1 ·frorttil~G 011 Mt~uklif1 Str'tl ~t. Ws~l ~~~ Av~IVJG. l oo 8~met. Sgoond Av'tlf1US t~.nd 'fhird A\1~1\U~ 
~1'11.1 ooin~ l!hown on Uu~l plt~t by T?!ilrmGr & Simu~on ~1\Qili{l~~ 1t~'l~ Augul!t 3t i ~t1 tlfld ;;rili tl~d "M~.:~uld i ll s-~tll Apl':.!., 
Ar~~l'§tlf1 , S. {; , ~ . f'm~t~t No. 0~"3otl1G Nf' 81JP. whitlh plt~t II! (j·f r~tlffl in th~ OWtl'tl t'if elsrk eJf Court for Afl®Yl!f:ll1 
C:tll.~f1'ty ir, PlatJ3ook 7 1 at page ~-~4 , Tli'tl l!~k1 twtl ~rno~ t~rt~ ir;~t~'l!Gtlt~ by !clnd ~s~:mrnt~cl by "Third Av~n•Je ~nd 
t!IJ(~l:Hd i f\~ teJ ~id pl~t, 9t!Ch tr~;~11l tnt!}' bGIYlOY~ p~artitiJI~!'Iy d~!Jri~tl ~:3 1oiii:}W~ ; 

1- §@(jiNN IN~ lilt ktui piri ~t !lm ~gt1 of ttw riQ1it·4::>f -wt~y t~t !ht~ iflt~~!J!iflr1 rm 11! of Ltle 8tm'tll <;1r~ 
8eoom1 Av~niJ~ t.m 'lhtl Norltwt~!:.!~;}rll l!idt~ ·tlf l!Yt'lti il11'tl'l!OO\itll1, whitlh imu pili rntarkl! th~ 
:3tR~!hW9:3!tlffi tltli'I19Y tlf tliil! !mot th~f100 N r ~ w 6tl3. i . l11m;g the ri';;jh~-'Of·Wt!Y of 8~t:l011d 
Av:;!r1u~ ttl iron piu e~::>mGr; ·tt~Sfltl~ N 34·81 ~ 'Tek?'' ~klflg tlw riQh!·Of·W~1 ~t lhG i r1ters~t:l-li t:'ln uf 
8Qtmid Avt~n•JG tmd M~ultlin 8~l;!t ·to1mr; pif1 r.orn;;r; lh~tll:l~ N 1'1 ·4~ .~ iM.1' tlltli\Ulh~ riQht-{lf·· 
wt~y ur M~ukliu 8!mG·t ttl iru11 pili l:lt::>r1wr.: th~l\oo 8 1·-20 ~ 716.1~' ~ l~::>nQ ·111~ ri';;lht tJf w~y uf 'f!lird 
Av~r~u~ t~::> iror1 pit'l oomGr; ·lh~flt.:~ ~ IH~!!l~ W 1fPtl.5' ~ltl''~ !h~ right'-'tlf.-w~,;~y oft;;~ 8tm~l to \r~::>r1 olr1 
of ~t.l ilinil\1,1 oorrwr. Ths ~f~::>rs·dtl~tlriboo !rMt il! oour1rl or1 tllG ~tluth by l ;m Strs~t; ou •he w~l!t by 
l9~eond Av~nue; tui 'lhs nor!h by Nl~uldin tilr~~ ~nd on 'lh~ ~ta~t by 'fhird Av~n•Js . 

:2. §~(jiNN IN~ ~t iro11 piri ~t ~h~ ~Qiil of ttw riQht-·~::>f-w~y ~t !h~ it'1t~~l:l!illl1 poin! of l l}l!l Str~! ~.:~r~ 
Third Av~r11J~ oil ~litl NeJrlh~~~ttlrri ~k1tl of gutJh in~sr~st:ltion . whit::h iru11 pili m~rk~ Uw 
~I::>U!hWS:3!Srl1 t:lt~l1!3r ~::>f thil! !r~ot. thS!100 N ~ -31' w ao~.~· l1ltll11;1 the ri';;jht'-'tlf·w~y of Third Av~l11J~ 
t~::> iru11 pili r.omsr: tl1l;!f1ts N 1'1-.5~ ~ "11},~· to iruu oln oorr1~r; !htlrms 8 't~M ~ 36,6' to irutt p1n 
t;tlruer; thslitllil N ili ·i~ ~ {IIHI' ttl iron o1ii comer 1::>'1 U1~ righ !~f·w~y ftlr w~lj! tsl\d Aveflus: 
tl1s111:ltl 8 3&·35 ~ iMJJ' ~lor1g !h~ fiiJht-4·w~y fm W~l!t ~nd Av~riu~ t~::> iron piri tlOff1!3r; lhst1oo 8 
~'1 -:26 W 1!}3, t' !t1 iron pir1 f:itlf't1!3t; tiH:Jl100 8 7"33 ~ 10.0' !o iron pili tltlrMr: thsnof:l N ~..d6 ~ 
§7,3' to iror1 oin; ·!hsm:;e N 3d-4{1 ~ ~~.01 to iron pit~ ~l.lm~r ; ·tt1~11o~ S 3{1-.::n:J ~ 61},()' to irur, pi11 
e~::>mer; tl1i;f10e N 13i ·2!l ~ Hltta' to iru11 piu t-:or11~r em ·H1~ right-of·Wt!Y eJ'i W~'lj~ ~lld Av~t1u~; 
thsue~ ;S 38·-35 ~ 1~1),()' t~lonQ !h~ ri1,1hl'-'tlf"w~y of W~:3~ ~r1d Avenu~ 'to imr1 pill t.Juflii;r; \hQntls ;S 
61 --:26 W 1 ()3,61 !o iron pit~ t.:l::>i11flr: ths1100 N ;J3"M W t14.1J' !o lmri pir1 tltlrn~r; tli~fll:l~ t; ~"4() ~ 
M,a· to irori uin e-orr~r ljfl !h~ riQh\·of.·w~y of tsf:l8tres!: thgne~ i! 64~3 W .23tl.1' ttl irut1 plii of 
b~!,;linflir'g uomtlr, Th~ 1!1>1111 !r~ot il! bour~ 011 the Soul~ by Lc:l{l 1:Hme·t ~ritl pmotlriy of W~ll :1, 011 
ths Wtl~t by Third Avtlrm~: uri t~li nt:)r!li by pmp~rty uf N~ll 'fuWt1:3~'id flrf:l~byteri~" {;1\urot,: &1 
ths s~:3! by omp~rly of Nsll1hwt1:1~''tl ~m!!byt~ri11n et1ureh. Wel!t ~M Avsr1u~. proosrty u·f f'~Yf!S 
~ud omo~riy l}f W~ill!! , 

Exhibit A Ordinance 2020-044 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-046 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK. 

(PROJECT SPRUCE) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
"Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the "Park") may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in Greenville County; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so 
include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______ , 20 _. 
(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: November 12, 2020 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

A-1 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



Address: 

TMS#: 

SCHEDULE 
Addition to Exhibit A to 

Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park dated as ofDecember 1, 2010, as amended, 

between Anderson County and Greenville County 

200 East Camperdown Way 
Greenville, SC 29601 

0069000300100 

A-2 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of November 12, 20, 2020, _ __ _ 
20 and , 20 _ , at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated: _ _ __ , 20 _ 

4820-2475-9501 v.2 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-048 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 44 OF TITLE 12 AND 
CHAPTER 1 OF TITLE 4, SOUTH CAROLINA CODE OF LAWS, 1976, AS AMENDED, 
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AMENDMENT TO A FEE IN LIEU OFT AX 
AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, AND PROJECT LINE FIVE; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING 
THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County (the "County"), a public body corporate and politic 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina, is authorized by Title 12, 
Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Fee Act") to enter into 
a fee agreement with a company to provide for payments of fees-in-lieu of taxes for a project 
qualifying under the provisions of the Act; 

WHEREAS, the County is authorized by Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "SSRC Act") to (i) create multi-county industrial parks in 
partnership with contiguous counties; (ii) include the property of eligible companies within such 
parks as an inducement to locate within the County, which inclusion under the terms of Section 13 
of Article VIII of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina makes such property exempt from 
ad valorem property taxes, therefore changing the character of the annual receipts from such 
properties from ad valorem property taxes to fees-in-lieu of ad valorem property taxes; and (iii) 
grant an annual special source revenue credit against such fee-in-lieu of tax payments in order to 
assist a company in paying the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding 
the infrastructure serving the property of any company located within such multi-county industrial 
parks or for improved or unimproved real estate used in the operation of a commercial enterprise 
located within such multi-county parks in order to enhance the economic development of the 
County; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended, the County and Project Line Five (the "Company") entered into a Fee 
in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement (as amended, the "Fee Agreement"), for the purpose of, 
among other things, providing incentives to the Company in connection with the "Project," as 
defined in the Fee Agreement; 

WHEREAS, in order to incentivize the Company to make additional investments 
in the Project, the County has agreed with the Company to enter into a second amendment to the 
Fee Agreement (the "Amendment") to provide certain additional incentives to the Company; 

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and presented to this meeting of County 
Council the proposed form of the Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, it appears that the Amendment now before this meeting is in 
appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council in meeting duly 
assembled as follows: 

Section 1. In accordance with the Acts, the County Council has made and hereby 
makes the following findings on the basis of the information supplied to it by the Company: 

(a) It is anticipated that the expanded Project will benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment and other public benefits not otherwise 
adequately provided locally; 

(b) Neither the expanded Project nor any documents or agreements entered into by 
the County in connection therewith will give rise to any pecuniary liability of the County or 
incorporated municipality or to any charge against their general credit or taxing power; 

(c) The purposes to be accomplished by the expanded Project are proper 
governmental and public purposes; and 

(d) The benefits of the expanded Project are greater than the costs. 

Section 2. In order to promote industry, develop trade and utilize the manpower, 
agricultural products and natural resources of the State, the form, terms and provisions of the 
Amendment which is before this meeting and filed with the Clerk to County Council are hereby 
approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference as if the Amendment was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair of the County 
Council be and he is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver the Amendment to the Company. The Amendment is to be in substantially the form now 
before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall not be materially 
adverse to the County and as shall be approved, upon advice of counsel, by the officials of the County 
executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any 
and all changes or revisions therein from the form of the Amendment now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The Chair of County Council and the Clerk to County Council, for and 
on behalf of the County, are hereby each authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary 
to effect the execution and delivery of the Amendment and the performance of all obligations of the 
County under and pursuant to the Amendment. 

Section 4. The consummation of all transactions contemplated by the Amendment 
is hereby approved and authorized. 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of South Carolina. 

Section 6. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable 
and if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder. 

2 
Ordinance 2020-048 



Section 7. All orders, resolutions, ordinances and parts thereof in conflict herewith 
are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed and revoked and rescinded, or amended as 
provided in the Amendment, as necessary to carry out the intent and substance of this Ordinance, 
and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and approval. 

DONE, RATIFIED AND ADOPTED this __ day of ______ , 2021. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Public Hearing: 
Third Reading: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

3 
Ordinance 2020-048 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 

I, the undersigned, Clerk to County Council of Anderson County ("County Council") DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY: 

That the foregoing constitutes a true, correct and verbatim copy of an Ordinance adopted 
by the County Council. The Ordinance was read and received a favorable vote at three public 
meetings of the County Council on three separate days. At least one day passed between first and 
second reading and at least seven days between second and third reading. At each meeting, a 
quorum of the County Council was present and remained present throughout the meeting. 

The Ordinance is now in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my Hand and the Seal of Anderson County 
Council, South Carolina, as of this __ day of , 2021. 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

4827-970 1-6528 v.4 

4 
Ordinance 2020-048 



RESOLUTION R2020-028 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING INTENT TO CEASE COUNTY MAINTENANCE ON AND 
TO AUTHORIZE COUNTY CONSENT TO JUDICIAL ABANDONMENT AND CLOSURE 
OF SUPREME INDUSTRIAL DRIVE DESIGNATED AS C-05-0108; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Supreme Industrial Drive (the "Road") is currently an asphalt Anderson County 
(the "County' ') public road, designated as Anderson County Road C-05-0 108 and, 

WHEREAS, the Road extends 1,626 feet from Harris Bridge Road, S-4-29 and exists on three 
parcels of property identified as Anderson County tax map numbers 119-00-02-003, 119-00-02-028, 
119-00-02-038, all of which have common ownership, as shown on the map prepared by Anderson 
County Roads and Bridges Department on October 19, 2020 attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference; 

WHEREAS, the property owners (hereinafter collective the "Petitioners") have requested that 
the County abandon said Road in for future expansion of the E & I Engineering plant. The Petition is 
attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference; 

WHEREAS, the County has complied with all of its Ordinances and Regulations pertaining 
to cessation of County maintenance and County consent to judicial abandonment and closure of 
County public roads, in the case of the above referenced Road; 

WHEREAS, none of the procedures undertaken by the County have revealed or reflected a 
need for said Road to remain under County maintenance or to remain a public road, and the County 
staffhave recommended that the County consent to the requested abandonment and judicial closure; 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State of South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council (the "County 
Council") desires to express its intent to cease County maintenance on, and to authorize County 
consent to judicial abandonment and closure of the Road; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. Anderson County, acting by and through its County Council, consents to the judicial 
abandonment and closure of Supreme Industrial Drive (C-05-0108) by the property 
owners. 

2. In the event Supreme Industrial Drive is closed by a Judicial Order, the county shall 
immediately cease all maintenance of this Road. 

3. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 
only, repealed and rescinded. 



4. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall 
not affect the remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

5. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment. 

RESOLVED this 17th day of November, 2020, in meeting duly assembled. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



Exhibit A 

N 

A 

10/19/2020 Anderson County Roads & Bridges 



Exhibit B 

Anderson County Roads & Bridges 
735 Michelin Boulevard, Andetson, SC 29625 

(864) 260-4190 

Roadway Abandonment Petition 

*Only one signature per household will be counted Date: C> C:, /t C b.o?..o 

I am the Contact Person for this road and will be responsible for the expedition of information between 
the Anderson County Roads & Bridges Engineering Section and the landowners on the proposed road. 

Name: E&l Engineering USA Corporation 
M&~g I 
Address: 4oo S'vOaGM:~ IN!Ms-@JA<...: 
City: A&RF Q...(Qh) State: SG. Zip: ;?96 2 I 
Telephone#: ---.!~~b:::::.:Lt::I::-.... 3e..;.?/:~S"'----Lt -=1'1-r:-:S:~'±-:I:...&.... --------------

Road Name: Supreme lr'ldustrial Drive 

Reason for abandonment To tadlitate tfte development of undeveloped parcels adjacent to Supreme Industrial Drive 

We, the undersigned landowners, do petition Anderson County Roads & Bridges to abandon the road, or 
portion of road, named above. 

Sign~ture (Do not print) 

~/~ 
Address Phone Number 

&oo s .. Mffi<-& _krovsr-13•~<.. v~. ~ofi@5ottJ1f,JGN i:G4..4-i:f 3~ I b 



MEMORANDUM 
ANDERSON COUNTY ROADS AND BRIDGES 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

November 9, 2020 

Mr. Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Matt Hogan. Roads and Bridges Manager 

SUBJECT: Proposed abandonment of Supreme Industrial Drive, C-05-0108 

Council District Four 

Please find attached information regarding the proposed abandonment of Supreme 
Industrial Drive . Property owners have requested abandonment due to future expansion of 
E & I Engineering plant. 

A signed petition by the property owners is enclosed. Owners were provided a copy of 
Anderson County Ordinance regarding abandonment and closure of public roads policies 
and procedures and notified in writing of their responsibilities for obtaining legal title to 
the road if Council approves abandonment by resolution. 

Notification signs were posted on the road on October 7, 2020. Signs were in place for 30 
days on November 6, 2020. This road was accepted into the county system by a special tax 
district on April2, 2013. The special tax district was paid in full on September 21, 2020. 

Notification of the proposed abandonment was mailed to Emergency Service providers and 
Anderson School District Four Transportation Department. There was no response was 
received from either. 

Our department has conducted a thorough investigation of this road. 
• Public notification signs were posted for 30 days 
• There were no inquiries 
• Section of road is in general public use 
• Road runs Harris Bridge Road, S·4·20 to a cul-de-sac 
• The Asphalt road is 1,626 linear feet and 21 feet wide 
• 50' right-of-way 
• Average Daily Traffic Count i 855 cars per day 

With the information provided, I recommend Anderson County abandon interest in 
Supreme Industrial Drive. 

Photographs and location map are enclosed for your convenience. 

Enclosures 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Chairman. District 5 Council District 1 

Brett Sanders Gracie Floyd 
V. Chairman. District 4 Council District 2 

Ray Graham 
Council District 3 

Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

Lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

735 Michelin Blvd, Anderson, South Carolina 29626- 106 1 I www.andersoncountysc.org 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
~~ 

ualy tuma I ~'lmW M!lfflinistmt01' 
i'M!m@~n1:!~~~nlY!~-~@ 



Anderson County Roads & Bridges 
735 Michelin Boulevard, Anderson, SC 29625 

(864) 260-4190 

Roadway Abandonment Petition 

*Only one signature per household will he counted Date: 0 =-, /l r;; 1-:J..o?.o 

I am the Contact Person for this road and will be responsible for the expedition of information between 
the Anderson County Roads & Bridges Engineering Section and the landowners on the proposed road. 

Name: 1;:&1 Engineering USA Corporation 
Mailing 

Address: 4oo s;v0'4iM:c! Jlf'lfl<Agr~Au 
City: A&pec?...C.orJ State: Sc.. . Zip: ..Q 9 6 2 I 
Telephone#: ----!~~b~lt;;.L..:.... ...... 3<!-.?:f:~S",.____...~..t ~4-f---:~:::i!..---'-:f.....J..::....L... --------------

Road Name: Supreme l~dustrial Drive 

Reason for abandonment To facilitate the development of undeveloped parcels adjacent to Supreme Industrial Drive 

We, the undersigned landowners, do petition Anderson County Roads & Bridges to abandon the road, or 
portion of road, named above. 

Signl!ture (Do not print) 

~/,../!L_:_ 
Address Phone Number 



Supreme Industrial Drive, C-5-1 08 

N 

A 

Jolly Acres 
111 

C-5-45 ~ 

10/6/2020 Anderson County Roads & Bridges 



Supreme Industrial Drive, C-5-108 Abandonment 

View from Harris Bridge Rd 

View of Cul-de-sac 



•• -e.G 
dl .,... 
....... 
c 
"" ,.. 
'" c •• -



,. MIMol\ ~-· • 1Ql00 

1111101~ Wlltn•m f,?QQ.OO 

1141401. ""MpMI .•. , 
M0tl011 ""_... ,.,. 
U\tfl01t (lfiUO) 

1131 " ~-· MU1011 (l'PU.IO) 
11\ 11 (lm.IO) 

1111.wo1? (lliUO) 

tiA,IIOU (lm.IO) 11,..,. (lm.IO) 

1 11 (!.liUO) 

1t1tQQIQ (lliUO) 



October 6, 2020 

Jimmy Ray Sutherland, Fire Chief 
Anderson County Fire Department 
210 McGee Road 
Anderson, South Carolina 29625 

Dear Chief Sutherland: 

ANC!RSON COUNlY 
S®TH C.UQllNA 

We have received a request to abandon Supreme Industrial Drive, C-05-0108. The 
abandonment is for future development of E & I Industrial plant. 

This is an industrial drive for plant access. This letter is a formality for abandonment 
process. However, we would appreciate as to how, if any, this closure might impact 
emergency vehicle response. A response from you within 30 days regarding this matter 
would be greatly appreciated. If this closure has no effect, we will proceed with the 
abandonment process. 

Thank you in advance for your assistance with this matter. You may contact me via email 
at wmhogan@andersoncountysc.org if you desire. 

Sincerely, 

Matt Hogan 
Roads and Bridges Manager 

Enclosures 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Chairman. District 5 Council District I 

Brett Sanders Gracie Floyd 
V. Chairman, District 4 Council District 2 

Ray Graham 
Council District 3 

Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

Lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

735 Michelin Blvd, Anderson, South Carolina 29626- 106 1 I www.andersoncountysc.org 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
~~ 

lu:aty lum:a I ~\11\l*' Mmmtlf.lmt 
m\!Jlm~~~'ii~~"'~~t~--~~ 



ANC!RSON COUNTY 
s.Q(!TH CA;tQUHA 

October 6, 2020 

John Chmelar, Supervisor of Transportation 
Anderson County School District Four 
902 E. Queen Street 
Pendleton, South Carolina 29670 

Dear Mr. Chmelar: 

This letter is to inform you that we have received a request to abandon Supreme Industrial 
Drive C-05-0 108. Although this is an industrial park, we are sending you this letter as a 
formality. 

We would appreciate your input as to how, if any, this closure might impact bus routing on 
this road. We would appreciate a response within 30 days. 

Thank you in advance for your assistance with this matter. You may contact me via email 
at wmhogan@andersoncountysc.org if you desire . 

Sincerely, 

Matt Hogan 
Roads and Bridges Manager 

Enclosures 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Chairman. Distric t 5 Council Distric t 1 

Brett Sanders Gracie Floyd 
V. Chairman. District 4 Council District 2 

Ray Graham 
Council Distric t 3 

Jimmy Davis 
Council Distric t 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Counc il District 7 

Lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Counc il 

735 Michelin Blvd, Anderson, South Carolina 29626-1 06 1 I www.andersoncountysc.org 

A"'OERSON COUNTY 
${),l,!lti ~W.. 

l Uily I Utnl ! ~lll'll~ MmiMlR!I'ek 
ffil\1Jlffi~lY~e!;~M~\lflt¥W·.~ 



Resolution No. 2020-034 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF THE RIGHTS OF JB 
FERGUSON PROPERTIES, LLC AND ESTATE PLANNING CONSULTANTS, INC. 
(COLLECTIVELY "COMPANY") IN THE INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT 
AGREEMENT OF JANUARY 1, 2018, BY AND AMONG ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, AND THE CITY OF ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND THE 
COMPANY; AND OTHERS MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the parties entered into an Infrastructure Credit Agreement (the 

"Agreement") effective as of January 1, 2018; 

WHEREAS, Section 4.2 of the Agreement provides that the Company may assign or 

otherwise transfer any of its rights and interests in the Agreement on prior written consent of the 

Local Governments, which may be given by resolution; 

WHEREAS, the Company has entered into an agreement to sell the subject property to 

201 S Murray, LLC; 

WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to transfer its interests and obligations in the 

agreement to 201 S Murray, LLC upon the closing of the sale of the subject property; 

WHEREAS, 201 S Murray, LLC has agreed to accept the rights and responsibilities of the 

Company provided in the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of County Council to consent to the transfer. 

NOW, THEREFORE. be it resolved by the County Council of the County of Anderson, 

South Carolina, in meeting duly assembled that: 

1. The County of Anderson consents to the transfer of the rights and obligations of the 

Company provided in the Infrastructure Credit Agreement to 201 S Murray, LLC, upon the closing 

of the sale of the property. 



2. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 

only, repealed and rescinded. 

3. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall not affect the 

remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment. 

RESOLVED this 20th day ofNovember, 2020, in meeting duly assembled. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 

For Budget Year 2019 - 2020 

Mark 

APPROVED 

Finance Meeting of: 

Council Meeting: 

DATE 

DEPARTMENT 

NAME 

1112012020 

BETWEEN DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TO DETENTION erR 

BETWEEN DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TO SRO 

BETWEEN DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYEE BEN EmS TO TREASURER 

BETWEEN DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TO DETENTION erR 

BETWEEN DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TO SPORTS COMPLEX 

FROM: ACCOUNT NAME 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

001-5B31-Q00-160 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

001-5831-Q00-160 

COST OF UVING I MERIT 

001-5831-Q00-115 

COST OF UVING I MERIT 

001-5831-Q00-115 

COST OF UVING I MERIT 

001-5831-Q00-115 

TO: ACCOUNT NAME 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

HEALTH INSURANCE 

001-5141-Q00-160 

HEALTH INSURANCE 

001-5162-Q00-160 

BANK FEES AND CHARGES 

001-5042-Q00-203 

HEALTH INSURANCE 

001-5141-Q00-160 

HEALTH INSURANCE 

001-5956-000-160 

Page 1 

AMOUNT REASON 

40,500.00 ACTUAL RX AND CLAIMS HIGHER THAN ANTIOPATED 

21,000.00 ACTUAL RX AND CLAIMS HIGHER THAN ANTICIPATED 

6,700.00 CREDIT CARD FEE WAIVED DUE TO COVID 

32,000.00 ACTUAL RX AND CLAIMS HIGHER THAN ANTICIPATED 

4,445.00 ACTUAL RX AND CLAIMS HIGHER THAN ANTICIPATED 



ANDERSON 
COUNTY 
SOUT!i CAROLI 'A 

T~Ihum 
Chi\irwa.ll 

Council District 11 

lmltt S~md11~ 
\"ice Chairma11 

('ilunc\1 Dilltr-ic~ 4 

C~W®Wft 
\_')ouncil Uistrict \ 

G~S.F~d 
('ouncil District \1 

IW>Gfl\lvm1 
Council Distlict :\ 

Jiwn.1 Dam 
Co1u1Cil District 6 

M,~Wil&Qn 
Co11ncil District 7 

l.Mey A, CNetMffl 
Clerlr; to Co,uncil 

R-R~ 
CQ11"~ d~ui ln\ilf 

A.ME~ 'DED AG bA 
IA\nd tiso Ad•b.Oc commttwe M:eetina 

Friday, Novm~ber lJJ 2020 at 10:00 am 
Anderson County Civic Cotn 

3027 Mvtln Luther Kina Jr. Blvd~ Anderson~ South CllNUna 29612 

L CnU to Ord.Qr: 

l, lnvooation tmd Plroae: 

3, Proposttbl: 

5, Qu~Uon~: 

~, ltthl"IQ: ~~ -tt)}}m~ni RfJl~llHofi_pmtd 

7, Citimw Comment~: 

.1\l.<!t Oft'iw &.~ 800a, Anderson, So\IUl CaroliM 31)6~ 
www.lln®ftlOOCO\.Incy.,.Qff I (86<\) aG0-4000 



TOWN OF PELZER 

November 15, 2020 

Cindy Wilson 

Anderson County Council 

Post Office Box 8002 

Anderson, SC 29622 

Dear Cindy, 

PO BOX 427. PELZER. SC 29669 

The Town of Pelzer was awarded a PARD grant last year for commercial-grade kitchen appliances for our 

Community Building. We need to rewire the area where they will be installed. We humbly request 

$1,000.00 to assist us with this renovation project for our citizens. 

Thank you for your continued support of Pelzer! 

With sincere gratitude, 

1v.?2~ 
Will Ragland 

Mayor, Town of Pelzer 



November 15, 2020 

Cindy Wilson 

Anderson County Council 

Post Office Box 8002 

Anderson, SC 29622 

Dear Cindy, 

Thank you for supporting Mill Town Players during our first 6 seasons. 

We currently build our sets in the old kitchen of the cafeteria that once served Pelzer Elementary 

School. The kitchen is divided into 2 small rooms and has no roll up door. Currently, everything we build 

must fit through a standard sized door. To maximize the space and streamline our set construction 

process, we have planned a renovation of the space. We have received $5,000 from SCPRT towards this 

project, which includes removing the center wall to open up the space to one large room, adding a roll 

up door that will be 9'6" high and 9' wide so that we are able to build large set pieces and move then in 

and out of the shop easily, and updating electrical, plumbing, and HVAC to fit our needs. 

We have had to close our doors in mid-March due to the pandemic and have made the decision to stay 

closed through next April. In that time, we are making needed upgrades to make things more 

manageable and efficient in producing live theater for our community. The addition of a roll up door to 

our makeshift scene shop is an essential part of this plan. 

We humbly request $1,300.00 to pay for the roll up door. The quote is attached. Thanks for your 

consideration. 

With sincere gratitude, 

1v-'R~ 
Will Ragland 

Executive Artistic Director 

Mill Town Players, Inc. is a S01(c)(3) nonprofit organization, Federa/ID number 57-1001314. 

MILL TOWH PLAYERS I PELZER AUDITORIUM I 214 LEBBY STREET PELZER, SC 29669 

MAILING ADDRESS PO BOX 121 PELZER SC. 29669 (864) 947-8000 I WWW.MILLTOWNPLAYERS.ORG 



Remit to: 
POBox2226 
Greer, SC 29652 

Phone:864-439-8002 
Fax: 864-439-2714 
Email :scdoorman@yahoo.co 

QUOTATION 

Bill To: MILL TOWN PLAYERS 

ATTN: WILL RAGLAND 

1
Date 

I 

I I I 

I O"'nt;cy Description 

Date: 6/16/20 

Job Location: 214 LEBBY STREET 
PELZER. SC 

Sales Rep. FOB Ship Via Terms .. 
I I I 

Unit Price 

1 CANISTER 9' s· X 9' MODEL 2000 DBCI WHITE 
DOOR WITH CHAIN HOIST INSTALLED 

\ # 

t TAX 

FREIGHT 

TOTAL 

THANK YOU 

TaxiD 

I 
Total 

$ 1300.00 

$ 42.00 

INC 

$ 1342.00 



RECREATION FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
APPLICATION FORM 

WHAT DISTRICT(S) ARE YOU REQUESTING FUNDING FROM: 
DISTRICT: ___.A_H _ 

Mail/Email to: 
Anderson County Council Clerk 

P. 0 . Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

lacroegaert@andersoncountysc.org 

1. Name of entity requesting recreation fund appropriation: 
-r o.. <. ):. \ l ~ \~<.. )Ic-c e. 1"-....S 

2. Amount of request (If requesting funds from more than one district, annotate amount from each 
district): ~ 5

1 
6 o o 

3. The purpose for which the funds are being requested: Jc.J 1N- 1 c..S-.5 hrtvf1/ne.. t; ih /1\ 
&ch ol}s-f. i A Dec 

4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the South Carolina Secretary of State? If so, 
please attach evidence of that good standing. y e...,S 

5. ContactPerson: ~(t). ~~.Av(\ ~6Jo.\J.so~ 
Mailing Address: ~.o. So 'l ) 4 ~ ~ l P."'Jc.r.>dtJ 5, C)? 6 ;)- t.; 
Phone Number: 8' b LJ-q Lf () -71 Lf :J-. 
Email: 

[frlt11~r'lol 777 eJ- fa fo e;() ' (c;rV\ 

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching funds: 

;titJ 
I certify that the forgoing is true d accurate to the best of my knowledge and that I am authorized to 

make this application on be fthe above named entity. 

Date 



South Carolina Secretary of State 

Business Entities Online 
File, Search, and Retrieve Documents Electronically 

TACKLING THE STREETS 

Corporate Information 

Entity Type: Nonprofit 

Status: Good Standing 

Domestic/Foreign: Domestic 

Incorporated South Carolina 

State: 

Registered Agent 

Agent: EMMANUEL DONALDSON 

Address: 114 LANDAU LN 

ANDERSON, South Carolina 29625 

Official Documents On File 

Filing Type 
Amendment 

Incorporation 

For filing questions please contact us at 803-734-2158 

Important Dates 

Effective Date 08/ 19/20 I I 

Expi ration N/A 

Date: 

Term End N/A 

Date: 

Dissolved N/ A 

Date: 

Filing Date 
01 / 12/2012 

08/ 19/2011 

Copyright © 2020 State of South Carolina 



Anderson County Building & Codes 
Monthly Activity Report 

Sep-20 

Total Number Permit Transactions: 1132 

New Single Family: 100 
New Multi-Family: 4 
Residential Additions/Upgrades: 16 
Garages/Barns/Storage: 27 
New Manufactured Homes: 21 
New Commercial: 2 
Commercial Upfits/Upgrades: 4 
Courtesy Permits/Fees Waived: __ ......=,6 ___ /SH Attlldrd} 

Inspection Activity: 

Citizens Inquiries: 
(New & Follow Up; Includes Sub·Stondord Housing /Mobile Homes) 
Tall Grass Complaints (New and Follow Ups): 
Number of Scheduled Building Inspections Performed (II of Site VIsits): 
Courtesy, Site and Miscellaneous Inspections: 
Manufactured Home Inspections: 

Total Number of Inspections (Site VIsits) for Department: 

Reviews/Misc. Activity: 

9 
951 -s 
85 

1190 

Plans Reviewed: 
Mech/EiecjPiumb Reviews: 
New Derelict Manufactured Home Cases: 

__ ..;;.1 ..:..44..:.._ __ (1ndudes preliminary consulbllons, resubmlt!.>ls ~nd solar) 

__ ...:4:.,::1:..._ __ (1ncludi!S rcsldcntl.'ll solar) 

0 
Hearings: 
Court Cases: 

Revenue Collected: 

Reins ection Fees Collected: 
Plan Review Revenue: 

Total Revenue For The Month: 

0 
0 

$490.00 
$30,275.50 

$185,545.10 



January 
February 
March 
[April 
May 
June 
July 
August 
September 
October 
November 
December 

Total 

Building 

$101,087.80 
$92,614.00 
$115,192.40 
$103,169.80 
$70,420.00 

$105,841.60 
$125,399.20 
$121 ,801.60 
$99,384.60 

$934,911.00 

$250,000.00 

$200,000.00 

$150,000.00 

$100,000.00 

$50,000.00 

$0.00 

Electrical 

$19179.00 
$24,488.00 
$22,078.00 
$27,1n.oo 
$20,915.00 
$26,290.00 
$29,863.50 
$23,914.00 
$24,086.00 

$217,990.50 

Anderson County Building & Codes 
Permit Revenue for 2020 

Plumbing 

$10,775.00 $11,990.00 $2,940.00 
$11,286.00 $12,515.00 $2,423.00 
$8,596.00 $9,476.00 $3309.00 
$9,272.00 $11,586.50 $3,421.00 
$8,922.00 $9,245.00 $2,758.00 

$12,716.00 $13,762.00 $3 304.00 
$15,834.00 $16,436.00 $6,527.00 
$13,819.00 $13,867.00 $2 449.00 
$12,368.00 $12,813.00 $4,558.00 

$103,588.00 $111,690.50 $31,689.00 

Permit Revenue 

Wrecking Moving 

$810.00 $450.00 
$540.00 $500.00 
$180.00 $450.00 
$180.00 $400.00 
$615.00 $300.00 
$630.00 $550.00 
$990.00 $500.00 
$450.00 $350.00 
$720.00 $850.00 

$5,115.00 $4,350.00 

$8,470.00 
$12,997.90 
$3,464.80 
$2,759.70 
$9,239.20 

$10,451.10 
$8,249.60 

$11,885.30 
$30,765.50 

$98,283.10 

•January 
•February 
a March 
cApril 
•May 
oJune 
•July 
a August 
•September 
•October 
a November 
•December 

-

$155,701.80 
$157,363.90 
$162,746.20 
$157,966.00 
$122,414.20 
$173,544.70 
$203 799.30 
$188 535.90 
$185,545.10 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$1,507,617.10 



Anderson County Building & Codes 
Permits Issued for 2020 

Month Building Electrical Plumbing HVAC MH Wrecking Moving Misc. Total 

January 253 258 151 154 79 22 10 41 968 i 

February 269 311 158 168 69 16 10 75 1076 1 

March 239 264 129 130 65 4 9 46 886 I 

April 208 235 132 129 53 4 8 44 813 : 
May 230 282 122 129 52 15 6 54 890 • 
June 315 373 165 175 62 30 11 71 1202 
July 326 366 206 218 119 26 10 49 1320 

August 309 324 190 196 73 12 7 66 1177 . 
September 2n 310 160 167 120 18 17 63 1132 

October 0 
November 0 
December 0 

Total 2426_ - 2723 1413 1466 692 147 88 509 9464 
-------

Permits Issued 

1500 11 January 

1400 II February 

1300 &March 

1200 IIApril 

"---~-::-::---::-:------.......--......___ II May 1100 "'I' 

Ujune 
1000 ll july 

900 II August 

800 USeptember 

700 II October 

600 II November 

500 &December 



F.W. DODGE BUILDING STATISTICS 
Tuli-Fn·l' l'hnm·: ll77-~!N-~Il92 Fax: !illti - HIJ.2-7~7tl 

For the month of: 

COUNTY BUILDING & CODES 

Sntinn:! 

llcm 

Nu. UuHJin1• fl uvsing 

Units 

th) flo:) 

4J.I 16 

438 tJ 
• t "\ 1 1 & I "\' 

Snlinn 5 
Rem AND RAZING 

No llu iWln11 Hnu.•inJ 

Uniu 

tel 

Consuunkm 

OmH C'tnJJ 

CmUINcllnn 

Om~ CllfllS 

I~ ) 

CurulnK.'1iun 

Otr?itum.t 

(~ ) 

S845,662 

$838,751 

ConsiNctlnn 

Orrut ct'nlS 

REPORT OF BUILDING OR 

ZONING PERMITS ISSUED AND 
LOCAL PUBLIC CONST RUCTION 

Cnn.ururlion 

O~t~lrcmu 

Cnruuvctiun 

OtMcsnts 

(c) 

UuihJints lluulin~ Cnn.nnw.1inn 

tel 

Hulldlnv• lluusin1 CunstnM."tltm 

Uniu cmur ctttrJ 



BCR021 
REQUESTED BY : TEDOWDY 

PERMIT II 
ISSUE 
DATE COST 

ANDERSON COUNTY BUILDING CODES 
CENSUS REPORT FOR 9/01/2020 TO 9/30/2020 

COURTESY PERMITS 

OWNER NAME MOD DESCRIPTION 

8:21:54 10/01/20 PAGE 1 

==============• ••s~~===•= ===; =======;= = = =====;=~========================================= = ======= ===== ~= ==== =====azs•D~~ ============ 

MOD 702 

202002966 
202003117 
202003147 
2 02003195 
202003287 
202003288 

TOTALS : 

COURTESY PERMIT/NO CHARGE 

9/02/2020 
9/16/2020 
9/18/2020 
9/22/2020 
9/28/2020 
9/28/2020 

6 

190,260 . 00 
4,800 . 00 

8,031,716 . 00 
6,000 . 00 

727,307.00 
810,382 . 00 

9,770,465 . 00 

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF ANDERSON INC 
ANDERSON BETSY G 
ANDERSON COUNTY SC 
HENDRICKS SHANNON + SHERRY 
TECHTRONIC INDUSTRIES NORTH AMERICA 
TECHTRONIC INDUSTRIES NORTH AMERICA 

_ s;nJtR.. foJn·~ 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY HOME ...J. 11 .,_"- ~ ~ 
DEMO MH LICENSE 11374 - ~I~ ~ 
ANDERSON COUNTY FLEET SERVICES -~C., 
DEMO MH LICENSE 19-159-01 - ~ I 
UPFIT - TTI INNOVATION CENTER- ()~t d ~ 
TTI INNVOATION CENTER/UPFIT - ~~(ft. aj lA~fi+ 



Total Number Permit Transactions: 

Inspection Activity: 

t;ltiBM ltlqlddfs• 

And non County BuUdlq It Codes 
Moatlaly Activity Report 

Oct-20 

10 

(New & Follow Up; Includes Sub·Standard Housing /Mobile Homes) 
Til G('IIM e~'- {!#errtMd Follow~}~ 
llwnb« ot ~ Bulldinf ICI~tion4 Perfoaned(l ot Sn. Vls~J~ 
~Yo --~tnspeclioM~ 
~·~~~ 

To\11 NIH'I\btr ot tntpHtlont • Vl 

Revlewllt.t,ac. ctlvttr. 

'1$ (lftckuloo Updoting S..b-S-d C.He) - .-

p ltwlew.cft 
~iiMWS? 
Ntw~Nttlt~ 
Htttrl,.,: 

...,..,.,~1~lf~......,.,.,(lndudes P"'llmhuryconsultatlons, resubNIUals and sour) 

..,.,.,.....,._ ~;:~r....,..,...,._llndudes resl~nlbl solar) 

• C'ottrt~ 



Codes ... ...... 
Pe 

Jfrecldng lllpylng ~ TCl ___ 

258 151 154 79 22 10 41 968 
311 158 168 69 16 10 75 1076 
264 129 130 65 4 9 46 886 
235 132 129 53 4 8 44 813 
282 122 129 52 15 6 54 890 
313 165 115 62 30 11 71 1202 
366 206 218 119 26 10 49 1320 
324 190 196 73 12 7 66 1177 
310 160 167 120 18 17 63 1132 
315 142 147 93 14 14 42 998 

0 
0 

2861 I 3038 I 1555 1 1e1a I 785 I 161 I 1102 I 551 I 10482 

Pel'lllits Issued 

·~ .,._, ..... .... . .., 
Joe 

•~u~.r 

·~ 



.-
l~.IIIIIIIII!'I 

RiiMiliiii' 

IT oW 

$101ifJ:• 
411107 Ann 

J 
iiii-....M ".u lllfU Mt 

~_1.179~ , .. 

IIMJJ~r 
~ 

:derson County Buildifll & Codes 
Permit Rft'enue for 2028 

11! .I!Cid!!q ..,.,. ••cr !2fi!l 

:J!0,775.00± f11.9!UJO r::a.oo Fr".oo 1.$450-1:1 --~470.00 I $155;701• 
Stt286.oo $12.511s.oo .. =Ji£Ct3..oo ... . =iQQ.oo __ . _ I641Q..oo~ .. , ... 2-997JJO __ t:tsr..-..u 

"~10 h14MUO ... 
fif.ii 

f1~.71$.t'fOJ -~~~ I 111.f.fi61J..CQ I $tZ3Ji87..50 p;,ou..oo J f.S..f356.£JO _.I $6Jl50..00I $11S.A)0950 I 11...,....10 

f:!SO.OOO..OO 

$2ITO.OOO.GO 

$150.000.00 

$100,.000 . .00 

$150..000.40 

fO..OO 

Pennit Revenue ~ 

·~ DMa!R:h 
OApil 
• May 
OJane 

[]J..._.._ 



1".\\ POIILI 1ll lllll'\l:.SI \ll.;:l'lt 'S 
• ,,IJ t I' I 1''11 ' 111 ·' j. jt-.·• ;, l· t.. I .• , !"jil l ·' '' • • • H 

~ ~ . 



~1f.Uli~Y3 
:;)g.'~~ 

:Jfi~~ 

~~'"( 

I!JI'OOlS't: 
0'0 'l))lflt:'l 

OaJt/fJt/fl"t '!fCOOt:Ot 
O~t/et/ "t 6L!ff00tot 
Oltot/~/ · t: CttffOtOt 

.u2'.Qi VJL 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8125/2020 

8/25/2020 

10/6/2020 

Check 

Dated: 

9/2/2020 

9/2/2020 

10/1412020 

Check 

Number 

88827 

88946 

90366 

DISTRICT 1 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-001-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

Return of Appropriation from SC Upstate Equine that was not used - FY 16/17 

Anderson Pregnancy Care 

Proverbs Mentoring Organization 

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies) 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed : 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

November 5, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

2,759.43 

1,000.00 

(5,000.00) 

(1 ,000.00) 

(250.00) 

27,509.43 

27,509.43 

November 05 , 2020 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8/25/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

Check 

Dated: 

8/26/2020 

10/14/2020 

10/14/2020 

10/14/2020 

10/14/2020 

10/21/2020 

Check 

Number 

88807 

90239 

90275 

90360 

90360 

90526 

DISTRICT 2 -SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-002-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Zone Services, The 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

Calvary Homes for Children 

Generation 4 (Community Food Bank) 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Food Bank) 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

Potter's House Restoration 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

November 5, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

14,657.50 

(820.00) 

(2,000.00) 

(2,000.00) 

(2,000.00) 

(250.00) 

(2,500.00) 

35,087.50 

35,087.50 

November 05 , 2020 



Council 

Meeting of: 

7/7/2020 

7/7/2020 

10/6/2020 

Check 

Dated: 

7/15/2020 

7/15/2020 

10/14/2020 

Check 

Number 

87579 

87740 

90360 

DISTRICT 3 -SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001 -5829-003-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

American Legion Post #44 

Town of Starr for PRO Grant 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed : 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

November 5, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

578.89 

(2,000.00) 

(960.00) 

(250.00) 

27,368.89 

27,368.89 

November 05 , 2020 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8/25/2020 

8/25/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

Check 

Dated : 

9/2/2020 

9/2/2020 

10/1412020 

10/1412020 

Check 

Number 

88828 

88875 

90360 

90366 

DISTRICT 4 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001 -5829-004-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

Return of Appropriation from SC Upstate Equine that was not used - FY 16/17 

Anderson Pregnancy Care 

Distinguished Young Women 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies) 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed : 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

November 5, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

18,706.99 

5,000.00 

(500.00) 

(300.00) 

(250.00) 

(250.00) 

52,406.99 

52,406.99 

L I /t lh/aPcm 
November 05 , 2020 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8/25/2020 

8/25/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

Check 

Dated : 

9/212020 

9/212020 

10/14/2020 

10/14/2020 

Check 

Number 

88829 

88874 

90360 

90366 

DISTRICT 5 ·SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001 -5829-005-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Anderson Pregnancy Care 

Distinguished Young Women 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies) 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed : 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above infonnation to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Counc il 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

November 5, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

8,390.05 

(500.00) 

(300.00) 

(250.00) 

(250.00) 

37,090.05 

37,090.05 

November 05 , 2020 



Council 

Meeting of: 

8/26/2020 

8/25/2020 

8/26/2020 

10/6/2020 

10/6/2020 

Check 

Dated: 

9/212020 

9/212020 

9/212020 

10/1412020 

10/1412020 

Check 

Number 

88856 

88873 

88942 

90360 

90389 

DISTRICT 6 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001 -5829-006-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

CESA Tri County 

Distinguished Young Women 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

PLAY (Powdersville league of Athletic Youth) 

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide) 

YMCA of Powdersville (mentor Program) 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed : 

Ending Balance d Q ooo,. ""m"''"" lli• "'"'"'"' '"~'oo'' •• ••·"•~ '"' "'""-

~ ~~ Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

~ 1. "0>~ ''M ''''""' ""'""m ""'"" MOMO" 

November 5, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

9,194.45 

(6,000.00) 

(300.00) 

(5,000.00) 

(250.00) 

(2,500.00) 

25,144.45 

25,144.45 

I L /flaj~d--0 
November 05 , 2020 



Council 

Meeting of: 

Check 

Dated : 

Check 

Number 

DISTRICT 7 -SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001 -5829-007-241 

Budget 2020 - 2021 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Committed: 

End ing Balance 

FY Ended June 30, 2021 

Vendor I Description 

SUB-TOTAL 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

November 5, 2020 

DATE: 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

50.00 

30,050.00 

30,050.00 

t L /J u /J-c>d-0 
November 05 , 2020 



All Project Report - October, 2020 

Total $2.270.842.04 Prepared by: Amy Merritt 
FY 18-19 Bud et 1.500.000.00 Date: 11-5-2020 

Transfer In 770.842.04 

Committed $2.270.840.041 

AVAILABLE $2.001 

Pro]ecls/Towns-Ciffes/ Oiher 

Approved Date Project Scope Appropriated Amount Total Spent to Dote Completion Date 

08/07/18 Townville Fire Department Pave ParkinQ Lot $10.000.00 $1,600.00 04/30/19 

08/07/18 Town of Honea Path Pavino $48.000.00 $17,188.22 

08/07/18 Town of Pelzer Paving $17.000.00 $4.746.77 

08/07/18 Town of West Pelzer PavinQ $25.000.00 $11,675.98 

08/07/18 Town of Williamston Pavino $52.000.00 $16.689.41 

08/21/18 School District Road in D6 Paving $20.000.00 $0.00 

10/02/18 Mental Health Parkinq Lot Pave ParkinQ Lot $60,000.00 $23.158.55 

10/04/18 C-Fund Matchino Funds Pavino $315.000.00 $315,000.00 Transfer complete 

11/07/18 Road Improvement Pion See Below $1,723.840.04 $2.224,750.68 

Totals: $2.270.840.04 $2.614.809.61 

Road Name District Scope of Work Esffmale Total Spenllo Dale Compleffon Dale 

Hobson Road I CS/Pave $83.571 $81,449.14 01/00/00 

Oakridae Court I CS/Pave $18,908 $19.346.79 01/00/00 

Harbison Drive 7 FDP/Pave $46,633 $0.00 01/00/00 

Plantation Road 4 CIPR $51.000 $52.205.60 01/00/00 

Branch Road '4 CIPR $86.288 $81,550.68 01/00/00 

Valley Drive 4 CIPR $43.144 $43.967.21 01/00/00 

Meadow Road 4 CIPR $51.584 $25.396.28 01/00/00 

Governor's Boulevard I FDR/Pave $171.024 $164.979.09 01/00/00 

Hopewell RidQe 7 CIPR/Pave $152.636 $137.189.01 01/00/00 

Windino Creek Road 7 CIPR/Pave $73.901 $69,591.91 01/00/00 

Creekside Court 7 CIPR/Pave $14.425 $20.651.79 01/00/00 

Crossridae Lane 7 CIPR/Pave $17,224 $23.667.65 01/00/00 

Old Oak Trail 7 CIPR/Pave $21.092 $29.644.68 01/00/00 

Grove Road 2/3 Pave $142.944 $142.805.44 01/00/00 

Shirley Drive 2 Pave $175.467 _$138.488.64 01/00/00 

Airline Road 3/5 FDP/ST/FS $243.293 $237.157.95 01/00/00 

Firetower Road 6/4 FDP/ST/FS $142.982 $188.392.08 01/00/00 

Old Webb Road 5 FDP/Pave $184.905 $17 5.614.78 01/00/00 

Holden Lane 5 Mill/Binder/Pave $10.515 $12.895.20 01/00/00 
Cely Lone 6 FDP/Pave $244.679 $365.7 58.33 01/00/00 

$1.976.215 $2.010.752.25 

FOP = Full-Depth PatchinQ; FOR = Full-Depth Reclamation, ST = SinQie-Treatment; FS = FoQ Seal; Pave: Resurface wflh Asphalt; CS =Crock Seal 



District I Paving Report 
Through October 3 I, 2020 

FY 18-19 Budget includes Carryforward from FY 17-18 Budget $65,290.00 

Committed $65,290.00 

AVA ILA BLE $0.00 

FDP = Full Depth Patching· FDR = Full Depth Reclamation ST = Single Treat· FS = Fog Seal· Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt· CS = Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

City of Anderson 

11 /2/2016 Civic Center 

1/16/2018 Oak Hill Drive Traffic Control 

Approval Date Project 

All monies now in account 000 

We certify that the above informat ion , to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of October 31 , 2020 

Projectsffowns-Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

- $0.00 

Upgrade roads, 
landscaping $119,000.00 

Radar sign & 
reflectors $6,500.00 

Totals: $125,500.00 

District I Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Neil Carney 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

$56,306. 16 

$3,903.03 

$60,209. 19 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads & Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$000 

Completion Date 

incomplete 

incomplete 

Completion Date 

Amy Merrill 

November 5, 2020 



FY 18-1 9 Budget includes Carryforward from FY 17-18 Budget 

Committed 

AVA ILABLE 

District 2 Paving Report 
Through October 3 I st, 2020 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

FDP = Full Depth Patching; FDR =Full Depth Reclamation, ST = Single Treat; FS = Fog Seal; Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt; CS =Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

City of Anderson 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

We certify that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of October 3 I st, 2020 

Projects/Cities& Towns/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Grading/Drainage 

Totals: $0.00 

District 2 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified by: Neil Carney 

Toatal Project Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads & Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

Completion Date 

Amy Merritt 

November 5, 2020 



FY 18-19 Budget includes Carryforward from FY 17-18 Budget 

Committed 

AVA ILABLE 

District 3 Paving Report 
Through October 31st, 2020 

$42,690.00 

$22,690.00 

$20,000.00 

FDP =Full Depth Patching· FDR = Full Depth Reclamation ST =Single Treat· FS =Fog Seal · Pave= Resurface with Ashphalt CS =Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

8/8/2013 Town of Iva (6/4/ 19 rei $20K) 

7/7/20 15 Town of Iva 

7/7/20 15 Town of Starr 

City of Belton 

6/4/2019 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

6/4/2019 Ebenezer Fire Dept 

6/4/2019 Starr Fire Dept 

We certify that the above information , to the best of our knowledge, 

is up· to-date and is accurate information as of October 31st, 2020 

Projectsffow ns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Grading/Drainage $45,000.00 

Grading/Drainage $16,250.00 

Grading/Drainage $8,000.00 

Grading/Drainage 

Totals: $69,250.00 

District 3 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Paving $11 ,300.00 

Paving_ $8,700.00 

Totals: $20,000.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Neil Carney 

Total Project Spent To·Date 

$26,352.74 

$0.00 

$6,0 13.56 

$0.00 

$32,36630 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads and Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$11 ,300.00 

$11 ,30000 

Completion Date 

Incomplete 

Incomplete 

Incomplete 

Completion Date 

12/4/2019 

Amy Merritt 

November 5, 2020 



District 4 Paving Report 
Through October 3 I st, 2020 

FY 18-1 9 Budget includes Carryforward from FY I 7-18 Budget $ 12,455.00 

Committed $12,455 .00 

AVAILABLE $0.00 I 

FDP = Full Depth Patching· FDR = Full Depth Reclamation ST = Single Treat· FS =Fog Seal· Pave = Resurface wi th Ashphalt · CS =Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

717/2015 Town of Pendleton 

Approval Date Project 

All mon ies moved to account 000 

We certify that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of October 3 1st, 2020 

Projectsffowns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Grading/drainage $39,500.00 

Totals: $39,500.00 

District 4 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0 .00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certi fied By: Nei l Carney 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$27,042.90 

$27,042.90 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads & Bridges 

Date 

Nei l Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

incomplete 

Completion Date 

Amy Merritt 

November 5, 2020 



FY 18- 19 Budget includes Carryforward from FY 17-18 Budget 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

District 5 Paving Report 
Through October 3 1st, 2020 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

FDP =Full Depth Patching· FDR =Full Depth Reclamation ST =Single Treat· FS = Fog Seal· Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt" CS =Crack Seal 
' ' ' 

Approval Date Project 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

We certify that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of October 31st, 2020 

Projectsffowns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

District 5 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Nei l Carney 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads and Bridges 

Date 

Nei l Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

Completion Date 

Amy Merritt 

November 5, 2020 



District 6 Paving Report 
Through October 3 1st, 2020 

FY18-19 Budget includes Carryforward from FYI 7-18 Budget $0.00 

Committed $0 .00 

AVA ILABLE $0.00 

FDP = Full Depth Patching· FDR = Full Depth Reclamation ST = Single Treat · FS = Fog Seal · Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt · CS = Crack Seal 

Approval Date Project 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

We certify that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate infonnation as of October 3 I st, 2020 

Totals: 

Totals 

Projectsffowns&Cities/Otber 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

$0.00 

District 6 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

$0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Certified By: Neil Carney 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads and Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$0 .00 

Completion Date 

Completion Date 

Amy Merrill 

November j , 2020 



District 7 Paving Report 
Through October 3 I st, 2020 

FY 18-19 Budget includes Carryforward from FY 17-18 Budget $47,665 .07 

Committed $47,665 .07 

AVAILA BLE $0.00 

FOP = Full Depth Patching· FOR = Full Depth Reclamation ST = Single Treat· FS = Fog Seal · Pave = Resurface with Ashphalt· CS =Crack Seal , , 

Approval Date Project 

7/7/2015 Town of Honea Path 

10/ 19/2016 Town of Honea Path 

11 / 18/2014 Town of Pelzer 

7/7/2015 Town of Pelzer 

10/ 19/2016 Town of Pelzer 

Town of West Pelzer 

10/19/20 16 Town of Williamston 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to account 000 

We certifY that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-date and is accurate information as of October 31st, 2020 

Projectsrfowns&Cities/Other 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Grading/drainage $48,000.00 

Grading/drainage $48,000.00 

Grading/drainage $5 ,000.00 

Grading/drainage $2,500.00 

Grading/drainage $17,000.00 

Grading/drainage $0.00 

Grading/drainage $52,000.00 

Totals: $172,500.00 

District 7 Paving Plan 

Scope Appropriated Amount 

Totals: $0.00 

Prepared By: Amy Merritt 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

$48,000.00 

$25,627.46 

$2,812.55 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$24,579.51 

$101 ,019.52 

Total Project Spent To-Date 

Roads and Bridges 

Date 

Neil Carney 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

3/21 /20 17 

incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

Completion Date 

Amy Merritt 

November 5, 2020 



Council Meeting: November 12, 2020 

Attached transfers have been posted 
to General Ledger. This is notice to 
council of the processed transfers. 

Transfers FY 2019-2020 

Last Fiscal Year 



DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 

For Budget Year 2019 • 2020 

Mark 
APPROVED 

DEPARTMENT 
NAME 

FROM: ACCOUNT NAME 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 

TO: ACCOUNT NAME 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 

TRANSFERS UNDER THE $20,000 APPROVED BY R BURNS FOR FY 2019-2020 

COUNOL ADVERTISING PHOTOCOPY EQUIPMENT MAINT 
001-5011-0Q0-201 001-5011-ooo-347 

2 ADMINISTRATION SUPPUES - OFFICE UNIFORMS AND CLOTHING 
001-5013-oo<l-269 001-5013-0Q0-280 

3 FINANCE TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 
001-5043-oo<l-277 001-5043-oo<l-211 

4 FINANCE TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES TELEPHONE 
001-5043-0Q0-277 001-5043-D00-275 

5 ASSESSOR POSTAGE SERVICE CONTRACTS 
001-5044-QOQ-243 001-5044-00Q-375 

6 CLERK OF COURT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PHOTOCOPY EQUIPMENT MAINT 
001-5052-0QO-304 001-5052-oo<l-347 

7 REGISTER OF DEEDS RETIREMENT - SC PHOTOCOPY EQUIPMENT MAINT 
001-5059-ooo-120 001-5059-ooo-347 

8 REGISTER OF DEEDS POSTAGE PHOTOCOPY EQUIPMENT MAINT 
001-5059-D00-243 001-5059-ooo-347 

9 MUSEUM MEALS SERVICE CONTRACTS 
001-5064-oo<l-236 001-5064-ooo-375 

10 SPEOAL POPULATION POSTAGE MEALS 
001-5066-001-243 001-5066-001-236 

11 SPEOAL POPULATION POSTAGE SUPPUES - OFFICE 
001-5066-001-243 001-5066-001-269 

12 SPEOAL POPULATION POSTAGE TELEPHONE 
001-5066-001-243 001-5066-001-275 

13 PLANNING POSTAGE SUPPUES - OFFICE 
001-5069-0Q0-243 001-5069-000-269 

14 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY TELEPHONE INSURANCE - DATA PROCESSING 
001-5092-0Q0-275 001-5092-oo<l-231 

15 CORONER COMMUNICATIONS INSURANCE - VEHICLES 
001-5131-oo<l-307 001-5131-ooo-228 

16 CORONER COMMUNICATIONS POSTAGE 
001-5131-oo<l-307 001-5131-oo<l-243 

17 CORONER COMMUNICATIONS PHOTOCOPY 
001-5131-{)QQ-307 001-5131-D00-347 

18 SHERIFF REPAIRS TO BUILDING SUPPUES - PHOTO 
001-5161-QD0-250 001-5161-0Q0-271 

AMOUNT REASON.c:= , 

WRBURNS 

100.00 USAGE HIGHER THAN EXPECTED 

125.00 SHIRTS FOR SECURITY PERSONNEL 

2,530.00 GFOA, UPSTATE SC APA, SC CPA 

105.00 INCREASE IN DATA USAGE 

25.00 COSTAR REALTY AND LEXIS NEXIS 

405.00 USAGE HIGHER THAN EXPECTED 

1,730.00 USAGE HIGHER THAN EXPECTED 

175.00 USAGE HIGHER THAN EXPECTED 

215.00 PEST CONTROL AND FIRE ALARMS 

80.00 LUNCH SERVED DURING ONE ACTIVITY 

5.00 SPEAKERS 

15.00 INCREASE IN DATA USAGE 

560.00 PRINTER RIBBONS 

5,200.00 INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR ADDffiONAL EQUIPMENT AT 1428 

185.00 INCREASE IN PREMIUM 

25.00 POSTAGE 

135.00 USAGE HIGHER THAN EXPECTED 

1,885.00 CAMERAS AND TRIPOD 



DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 

For Budget Year 2019 • 2020 

Mark 
APPROVED 

DEPARTMENT 
NAME 

FROM: ACCOUNT NAME 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 

TO: ACCOUNT NAME 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 

TRANSFERS UNDER THE $20,000 APPROVED BY R BURNS FOR FY 2019-2020 

19 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS TRAVEL FOOD 
001-5212-()()()-279 001-5212-()()()-215 

20 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS TRAVEL MEALS 
001-5212-Q00-279 001-5212-()()()-236 

21 ROADS AND BRIDGES INSURANCE - VEHICLES SUPPUES - LANDSCAPING 
001-5221-()()()-228 001-5221-()()()-270 

22 FLEET LODGING WATER AND SEWER 
001-5226-Q00-293 001-5226-Q00-286 

23 DSS TELEPHONE WATER AND SEWER 
001-5302-Q00-275 001-5302-()()()-286 

24 VETERANS AFFAlRS PRINTING TELEPHONE 
001-5391-()()()-245 001-5391-()()()-275 

25 OVIC CENTER REPAlRS TO BUILDING INSURANCE - EQUIPMENT 
001-5955-Q00-250 001-5955-()()()-226 

26 OVIC CENTER SUPPUES - BUILDING REPAlRS TO EQUIPMENT 
001-5955-QOO-268 001-5955-Q00-251 

27 OVICCENTER TELEPHONE REPAlRS TO EQUIPMENT 
001-5955-{)Q0-275 001-5955-()()()-251 

28 OVICCENTER SUPPUES - OFACE REPAlRS TO EQUIPMENT 
001-5955-()()()-269 001-5955-()()()-251 

29 OVICCENTER POSTAGE REPAlRS TO EQUIPMENT 
001-5955-{)QG-243 001-5955-()()()-251 

30 OVICCENTER SERVICE CONTRACTS - HVAC SERVICE CONTRACTS - ELEVA 
001-5955-()()()-376 001-5955-()()()-379 

31 SPORTS COMPLEX REPAlRS TO BUILDING SUPPUES - CONCESSION 
001-5956-Q00-250 001-5956-Q00-274 

32 SPORTS COMPLEX REPAlRS TO BUILDING TELEPHONE 
001-5956-Q00-250 001-5956-Q00-275 

33 PUBUC DEFENDER - ANDERSON POSTAGE DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 
114-5056-{)QO-243 114-5056-QOO-211 

34 PUBUC DEFENDER - ANDERSON TRAlNING FOR EMPLOYEES CAPITAL PURCHASES 
114-5056-ooo-2n 114-5056-()()()-499 

35 PUBUC DEFENDER - ANDERSON PHOTOCOPY EQUIPMENT MAlNT CAPITAL PURCHASES 
114-5056-QOO-347 114-5056-()()()-499 

36 FAMILY COURT MEALS TRAVEL 

AMOUNT 

WRBURNS 

630.00 LUNCH FOR EMPLOYEES WORKING TESTING SITES (COVID 19) 

325.00 MEALS FOR EOC STAFF 

650.00 SUPPUES NEEDED DUE TO WASHOUTS CAUSED BY FLOODING 

1,450.00 WEST ANDERSON AND ECU 

285.00 USAGE HIGHER THAN EXPECTED 

40.00 ADDED A MOBILE PHONE 

410.00 INCREASE IN PREMIUM 

4,650.00 EMERGENCY REPAlR FOR HVAC 

1,175.00 EMERGENCY REPAlR FOR HVAC 

475.00 EMERGENCY REPAlR FOR HVAC 

45.00 EMERGENCY REPAlR FOR HVAC 

1,100.00 CONTRACTUAL 

465.00 CONCESSIONS SOLD DURING EVENTS ON AELDS 

10.00 VERIZON AND AT & T CHARGES 

420.00 DUES FOR NATIONAL ASSOC OF CRIMINAL DEFENSE LAWYERS 

8,200.00 COMPUTERS 

3,600.00 COMPUTERS 



DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 

For Budget Year 2019 - 2020 

Mark 
APPROVED 

DEPARTMENT 
NAME 

FROM: ACCOUNT NAME 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 

TO: ACCOUNT NAME 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 

TRANSFERS UNDER THE $20,000 APPROVED BY R BURNS FOR FY 2019-2020 

37 E-911 

38 E-911 

39 EMS 

40 EMS 

41 EMS 

42 EMS 

43 WASTE-WATER 

44 STORM-WATER 

45 STORM-WATER 

46 STORM-WATER 

47 SOUD WASTE 

48 SOUD WASTE 

150-5909-Q00-236 

TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES 
174-5063-ooo-2n 

TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES 
174-5063-D00-277 

SUPPUES - OFFICE 
193-5972-D00-269 

SUPPUES - OFFICE 
193-5972-0Q0-269 

TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES 
193-5972-D00-277 

FOOD 
193-5972-D00-215 

SALARIES - OVERTIME 
41Q-5612-641-103 

SALARlES- FULL TIME 
415-5613-D00-101 

COST OF UVING/MERIT 
415-5613-D00-115 

HEALTH INSURANCE 
415-5613-D00-160 

UPGRADE(S) 
42Q-5954-D00-198 

SIGNS 
42Q-5954-00Q-259 

15Q-5909-ooo-279 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
174-5063-()()()-304 

CIP 
174-5063-{)()()-401 

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 
193-5972-()()()-209 

DUES AND SUSSCRlPTIONS 
193-5972-()()()-211 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE 
193-5972-()()()-310 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE 
193-5972-()()()-310 

PENSION EXPENSE - GASB 68 
41Q-5612-641-171 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
415-5613-000-110 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
415-5613-()()()-110 

PENSION EXPENSE - GASB 68 
415-5613-D00-171 

PENSION EXPENSE - GASB 68 
42Q-5954-000-171 

TELEPHONE 
42Q-5954-D00-275 

AMOUNT 

WRBURNS 
170.00 TRAVEL TO CONFERENCE IN JANUARY 

5,995.00 BARRACUDA WEB APPUCATION 

13,255.00 ZUERCHER TECHNOLOGY - NEW SOFTWARE 

1,905.00 VAlRKO 

135.00 SC EMS ASSOCIATION 

4,400.00 QRV 

1,125.00 QRV 

10,205.00 ADJUSTMENT TO ACTUAL PER GASB 68 

2,000.00 TO PROVIDE FOR ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES (VACATION) 

3,485.00 TO PROVIDE FOR ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES (VACATION) 

13,990.00 ADJUSTMENT TO ACTUAL PER GASB 68 

12,985.00 ADJUSTMENT TO ACTUAL PER GASB 68 

495.00 VERIZON AND AT & T CHARGES 

1031 

a 6 te t "?l{); <:{) 

f\o \f · ~."GO cO 

C(f;1.~ 



ANDERSON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
September 2020 

Uniform Patrol 
Average Daily Ca lls for Service 

Tota l Calls for Services 

Total Number of Incident Reports 

Total Number of Arrests 

Total Number of "Domestic" Incidents 

Total Number of "Unlawful Conduct Towards a 

Child" Reports 

Detention Center 
Average Dai ly Population 

Average Daily Population Capacity Percentage 

Total Number of Meals Served 

Litter Crew: Total Miles Cleaned/Cleared 

Litter Crew: Total Number ofT rash Bags Processe 

Litter Crew: Total Number atTires Removed 

Communications Center 
Average Daily Calls for Service 

Tota l Calls for Assistance 

Records 
Tota l DSS Histories & Reports 

Tota l Non Ferrous Metal Permits 

Total Number ofTickets 

Total Number of Case Jackets to Court 

Code Enforcement Investigations 

Tota l Number ofTraffic Tickets 

Number of Ordinance Summons/Clean Up Orders 

Cases Month Started 

Cases Month Ending (Pending) 

Worked the Follow1ng: 

Training in Columbia for 10hrs. & 5 hrs. in house 

Check Boat Ramps and County Parks 

Worked traffic for Jimmy Davis on Hamlin Rd. 

432 

12,956 

1515 

382 

82 

5 

314 

125.6% 

27,373 

3 

508 

42 

I 986 

29,584 

319 

148 

181 

103 

35 

4 

7 

5 

Worked traffic for Sheriff McBride & Major Hill on Bolt Dr. 

Worked traffic for Cindy Wilson in the Big Creek Rd. area & 
trash coming from commercial trucks for Greg Smith 

Bi-Weekly meeting with Environmental Control 

Worked traffic for Ray Graham on Hwy 81 S Starr & 
trash coming from commercial trucks for Greg Smith 

Animal Control 
Average Da ily Calls for Service 

Total Ca lls for Service 

Total Number of Animals Collected/Transported 

Total Number of State Tickets/Arrest Warrants 

Total Number of County Ordinance 

Tickets/Warnings Issued 

Traffic Stops/Reports Written 

Large Animal Calls 

Forensics 
Total Ind ividua l Ana lysis Completed 

Tota l Number of Evidence Pieces Collected 

Total Number of Evidence Pieces Processed 

Total Number of CSI Calls 

Total Number of Photos Taken 

Total Number of Finger Prints Collected 

Civil Process & Warrants 

Total Number of Civil Papers Received 

Total Number of Civi l Papers Served( Road Inc) 

Total Number of Evictions Scheduled 

Total Number of Evictions Completed 

Hours Spent on Evictions 

Total Number of Pick Up Orders 

Hours Spent on Pick Up Orders 

Total Warrants Received 

Total Warrants Served 

Total Judgments Satisfied/Nulla Bona 

Courthouse 
Number of People Screened 

Courthouse, Annex, Summary Crt & Library 

Number of Juveniles Transported 

Number of Wa lk-Up Bench Warrants 

Number of Family Cou"rt Cases 

Number of Inmates Through Courthouse 

Number of Bank Transports Conducted 

Number of Preliminary Hearings 

Number of Keep Checks on County Parks 

Number of Civil Papers Served 

Compiled from manually entered data 

18 

532 

112 

0 

10/131 

19/24 

17 

2,910 

1,110 

926 

258 

7,428 

280 

832 

672 

53 

39 

59 hrs. 

4 

7 hrs. 

297 

332 

0/25 

21,792 

0 

0 

281 

4 

84 

0 

254 

2 



ANDERSON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
October 2020 

Uniform Patrol 
Average Daily Ca lls for Service 

Total Ca lls for Services 

Tota l Number of Incident Reports 

Tota l Number of Arrests 

Tota l Number of "Domestic" Incidents 

Tota l Number of "Unlawful Conduct Towards a 

Child" Reports 

Detention Center 
Average Dai ly Population 

Average Daily Population Capacity Percentage 

Total Number of Meals Served 

Litter Crew: Total M iles Cleaned/Cleared 

Litter Crew: Total Number ofT rash Bags Processe 

Litter Crew: Total Number ofTires Removed 

Communications Center 
Average Daily Calls for Service 

Total Ca lls fo r Assistance 

Records 
Total DSS Histories & Reports 

Total Non Ferrous Metal Permits 

Total Number ofTickets 

Total Number of Case Jackets to Court 

Code Enforcement Investigations 

Total Number ofTraffic Tickets 

Number of Ordinance Summons/Clean Up Orders 

Cases Month Started 

Cases Month Ending (Pending) 

Worked t he Followmg: 

Off fo r two weeks fo r vacation & family sick time 

Check Boat Ramps and County Parks 

411 

12,750 

1514 

266 

109 

4 

308 

123.2% 

28,201 

11 

950 

40 

1,016 

31,508 

392 

166 

152 

78 

2 

2 

10 

6 

Animal Control 
Average Daily Ca lls for Service 

Total Calls for Service 

Tota l Number of Animals Collected/Transported 

Tota l Number of State Tickets/Arrest Warrants 

Total Number of County Ordinance 

Tickets/Warnings Issued 

Traffic Stops/Reports Written 

Large Animal Ca lls 

Forensics 
Total Individual Ana lysis Completed 

Tota l Number of Evidence Pieces Collected 

Total Nu mber of Evidence Pieces Processed 

Total Number of CSI Calls 

Total Number of Photos Taken 

Tota l Number of Finger Prints Collected 

Civil Process & Warrants 

Total Nu mber of Civi l Papers Received 

Total Number of Civil Papers Served( Road Inc) 

Tota l Nu mber of Evict ions Scheduled 

Tota l Number of Evictions Completed 

Hours Spent on Evict ions 

Tota l Number of Pick Up Orders 

Hours Spent on Pick Up Orders 

Tota l Warrants Received 

Tota l Warrants Served 

Tota l Judgments Satisfied/Nulla Bona 

Courthouse 
Number of People Screened 

Courthouse, Annex, Summary Crt & Library 

Nu mber of Juveniles Transported 

Number of Wa lk-Up Bench Warrants 

Number of Fami ly Cou rt Cases 

Number of Inmates Through Courthouse 

Number of Bank Transports Conducted 

Nu mber of Preliminary Hearings 

Number of Keep Checks on County Parks 

Number of Civil Papers Served 

Compiled from manually entered data 

20 

628 

122 

1 

22/150 

11/35 

16 

3,369 

1,048 

83 1 

245 

6,990 

243 

850 

889 

47 

30 

27 hrs. 

4 

10 hrs. 

268 

304 

1/9 

22,761 

1 

0 

221 

1 

88 

0 

156 

0 


	Anderson County Council agenda November 20,2020
	4a. Emergency Ordinance 2020-049 Attendance and voting by electronic means during COVID_19
	5a. Resolution R2020-033 Control Spread of Coronavirus
	6a. Ordinance 3rd Read  2020-024 rezone 10.01 acres C-2 to R-M1 Hwy 81, and Scenic Road
	6b. Ordinance 3rd Read  2020-025 amend FILOT BMW Manufacturing
	6c. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-029 AMend FILOT COI Anderson Industrial, LLC
	6d. Ordinance 3rd Read 2020-030 Amend FILOT Euwe Eugen WExler US Plastics
	7a. Ordinance 2nd Read 2020-015 amend zoning 141.81 acres I-2 to R-8  Liberty Highway
	7b. Ordinance 2nd Read 2020-034 amend Section 38-118(f) Traffic Impact Stydy Requirements 
	7c Ordinance 2nd Read 2020-037 Approve Sublease agree w/ Lake Hartwell Dev. for Asbury Park Site
	7d. Ordinance 2nd Read 2020-038 amend FILOT Project Underwood
	7e Ordinance 2nd Read 2020-042 MCIP   Greenville Project Lighthouse
	7f. Ordinance 2nd Read 2020-043 FILOT Project Malibu 
	7g. Ordinance 2nd Read 2020-044 IFA  and MCIP Friendship Preservation LP
	7h. Ordinance 2nd Read 2020-046 MCIP Project Spruce
	8a. Ordinance 1st Read 2020-048 amend FILOT Project Line FIve
	9a. Resolution R2020-028 Judicial Abandonment Supreme Industrial Drive
	9b. Resolution R2020-034 assignment of rights Ferguson Properties LLC & Estate Planning Consultantas IFA
	10. Transfers
	11. Report Land USe Ad-hoc Com. November 13,2020
	13. Requests by Council
	14a. Admin Report Building and Codes 
	14b. Admin Report Special Projects
	14c. Admin Report Paving 
	14d. Admin Report  Transfers
	14e. Admin Report Sheriffs Report



